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himfelf, and feveral of his Men: He prayed the
Mercy of the Court, and fo concluded, (5.
Where upon due Confideration of the Premifes,
the Court were of Opinion, that the faid Fobn
Confiable, Captain, fell under the 12th, 14th, and
ooth Articles of War; and adjudged the faid
Captain Fobn Conflable to be immediately cathier’d,
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fell under the 11th, 12th, 14th and 20th Articles
of War; and accordingly adjudged the faid
Cooper Wade to be fhot to Death :  But it was far-
ther declared by the Court, That the Execution of
the faid Cooper Wade be deferred till Her Majetty’s
Pleafure be known therein, bur be continued 1
clofe Prifoner till that Time.,

and render’d incapable of ferving Fer Majefty, and -

be imprifoned during Her Majefty’s Pleafure, and
fent home to Eugland a Prifoner in the firlt Ship
the Admiral fhall think fit ; and be confined a

Prifoner till then.

Aptain Cooper Wade, Comman-
Of. 10, 12, 'Ic)ler of ﬁlﬁ Greenwich, was
'T'ried before the aforefaid Court 3 on a Complaint
exhibited by the Judge Advocate, on the Behalf of
the Queen, of high Crimes and Mifdemeanors, of
Cowardice, Breach of Orders, and Neglect of Du-
ty, and other ill Praltices, committed during a
Fight, commenc’d the 1gth of Auguft, 1702, as
aforefaid, (Refer to that Part of Colonel Kirkby's
Trial,)

The Witneffes fworn on Behalf of the Queen.
The Honourable John Benbow, Efg; Admiral,
g Lieutenauts,
3 Maflers,
3 Inferior Officers,

el ——

16 Witneffes.

Nl

Who depofed, That during the Six Days En-
oagement, he never kept the Line of Battle, fired
all his Shot 1n vain, not reaching half way to the
Enemy ; That he was often told the fame by his
Lieutenants and otherOfficers ; but notwith{tanding,
he commanded them to fire, faying they muit do fo,
or the Admiral would not believe they fought if
they did not continue the Fire, That during the
whole Fight the Admiral was engaged in, the faid
Capt. Wade received but one Shot from the Ene-
my 3 That he was in Drink the greatelt Part of the
Time of Action ; And that he figned the Paper or
Confultation drawn up by Colonel Kirkby, as afore-
{aid 3 and in the "Time of Fight arraigned the ho-
nourable Courage and Conduét of the Admiral.

All which being fully proved as aforefaid :

That the faid Captain Cooper Hade denicd the
Arraignment of the honourable Courage and Con-
duct of the Admiral, during the whole fix Days En-
aagement 3 declaring the Bravery and good Ma-
nagement of the Admiral in this Time of Action,
and that no Man hiving could do more or better,
for the Honour of the Queen and Nation. He
called fome Perlons to jultify his Behaviour, who
faid little in his Favour, He begged the Mercy
of the Court, and fo concluded. Whereupon the
Court was of Opinion, That the fud Cosper W ade

: Aptuin Samuel Vincent, Com.
Oftaber 12, mander of the Falmouth, and

Capt. Chriffopber Fogg, Commander of the Breda),

-were tried before the aforefaid Court, on a Com-

plaint exhibited by the Judge-Advocate, for hioh
Crimes and Mifdemeanors, and ill Pratices in time
of Admiral Benbeso’s Fight with Monficur Dy
Caffe as aforefaid, in figning a Paper called a Con
fultation and Opinion held on Board the Bredal,
the 24th of Auguft, 1702,  (Which is Verbatim
recited in Colonel Kirkby’s Trial, 1o which refer.) It
tending to thegreat Hindrance and Differviceof Her
Majefty’s Fleet then in Fight : And the faid Paper
fo written, being fhewed to each of them, they
feverally owned thetr Hands to the fame, But the
faid Captain' Vincent and Captain Fogg, for reafon
of figning the fame, alledged, That being deferted
during each Days Engagement by Colonel Richard
Kirkby in the Defrance, Captain Fobn Cenflable in
the Windfor,. Capt, Cooper Wade in'the Greenswich,
and Capt. Thomas Hudfon in the Pendennis, and
left as a Prey to Monfieur Du Cafle, they had great
reafon to believe they fhould be Captives to the
Enemy. And the Honourable Fobu Benbow, Lfgs
Admiral, {gc. coming into Court, declared, That
during the Six Days Fight the faid Captain Forg
behaved himfelf with great Courage, Bravery, and
Conduét, like a true Englifbmen, and Lover of his
Queen and Country : And that the faid Captain
Samuel Vincent valtantly and couragioufly behaved
himfelf’ during the faid Ation, and defired Leave
to come into his the faid Admiral’s Afliftance, then
engaged with the Enemy, and deferted by all the
reft of the abovefuid Ships; which he did, to the
Relief of the faid Admiral, who otherwife had fal-
len into the Hands of Monfieur Du Caff.

Whereupon the Court being of Opinion, That
the figning of the aforefaid Paper brought them
under the Cenfure of the 20th Article of War,
accordingly adjudged Captain Samuel Pincent, and
Captain Chriftopher Fogg, to be fufpended : But the
Execuation thercof is hereby refpited, till his Royat
Highnels Prince George ot Denmark, Lord High
Admiral of England, &c. his further Pleafure bs
known therein.

Capt. Thomas Hudlon, Commander of the Pes-
dennis, died on Board his faid Ship, in the Harbour
of Port-Royal, at Famaica, the

At Five a-Clock the 12th Day of OFober. 1502.

the Prefident, {J¢. having finifhed all the Bufinefs
before the Court, diffolved the fame,

The
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CLXXV. The Trial of Haagen Swendfen, at the

Queen’s-

Bench, for forceably taking away and marrying Mbs. Plea-

fant Rawlins, Nov. 25. 1702.

 ORER) N Wednefday the 18th of November,
RS CT, 2
S

74 the Grand - Jury of Wefiminfler
%@ found the Bill of Indi&[tll';]ent Sgﬂinﬂ:
a =7y the Defendants, On that Day an
&% Habeas Corpus was moved for, and
lelc at Newgate, and the Keeper refufed to
bring up the Prifoner on Thurfday, but brought
him on Friday Morning 5 and then he was Ar-
raioned, and pleaded not Guilty 5 and the Court
then appointed the Trial to be on Wednefday the
o-th, that being the laft Day that he could be
tied, to have Sentence given againit Convicted
Perfons in that Term,

Mr. Swendfen moved for 2 longer Time, alledg-
ing, That a German, a material Witnefs for him,
was oone into Yorkfhire. The Court then told him,
that 1f any Perfon would Swear that any of his Wit-
neffes could not be at the Trial on Wednefday, the
Court would put off the T'rial 3 but no Qath there-
of being made, the Trial came on upon the Day
appointed.

The Court being fal, at which were prefent the
Right Honourable the Lord Chief Fuflice Holt,
Sir John Powell, Sir Litleton Powis, and Sir

Henry Gould :

Haagen Swendfen being brought to the Bar, Pro-
clamation was made for Silence; and he being a
Foreigner, claimed as his Right, the Benefit of
a Pariy Jury 3 which was allowed him, and Leave
to Challenge whom he would. He Challenged
fome ; and the Gentlemen fworn were, iz,

George Ford, Elgs
Enoch Reofe, Gent. | Erafmus Jobufon,
Timothy Thornbury, YAqs | Robert Bampton,
Abrabam Faulcon, Gent, | Matthew Boddin,
Jobi Pack, Elqs Thomas Pitts,
Jaumes Boyneth, Gent. | Henry Henderfon, J

| Francis Chapman,

Gent,

Cler, of Arr. Haagen Swendfen hold up thy
Hand, Which he did.

Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen of the Jury look upon the
Prifoner at the Bar, He flands indicted by the Name
of Haagen Swendfen, late of the Parifh of §t. Giles
it the Fields, in the County of Middlefex, Zeoman 5
jsr that on the Sixth of November 1702, one Plea-
lant Rawlins, Gentlewoman, and a Virgin, and Un-
married, Grand-danghter and Heir of Willlam Raw-

lins, Sen. then deceafed, and Daughter and Heir of

William Rawlins, Fuir. before then alfo deccafed, was
above the Age of Sixteen, and under the Age of Eigh-
feen, and then bad Subflance and Effate in Meve-
avles and in Lands and Tenements, viz. in Money,
Goods and Chattels, to the Value of 2000 L. and in
Lands and Tenements to the Value of 201, per An-
wum, to Her and ihe Heirs of ber Body.

And that the feveral Perfons, Swendfen, Bayn-

ton, Hartwelt, Spurr aid Tho, Bolt, the faid 6ib
YorL, V.,

Mich. 1 Ann.

Day of November, with Force and Arms, the faid
Pleafant Rawlins, as aferefaid, being Unmarried,
and Heir, and baving Subftance and Eftate at the Pa-
rifh of St. Giles in the Fields, in this County, for the
Lucre of fuch Eftate and Subftance of the faid Plea-
fant Rawlins, did anlawfully, felononfly, vidlently,
and againft the Will of the faid Pleafant Rawlins,
take, carry, and lead away, with Intent to canfe and
procure the faid Pleafant Rawlins, againft ber Will,
i Matrimony to the faid Haagen Swendfen to be

joined, and to bim to be IWedded and Married 5 and

that the faid Haagen Swendfen leing a Man of a
dsfloneft Converfation, and of none, or wery little Effate
or Subftance, then, and there, by the Help and Pro-
curement of the other Defendants, did felonionfly mar-
ry the faid Pleafant Rawlins, - and was joined to her
in Matrimony 5 and then, and there, her did car-
nally know ; to the great Difpleafure of God, againft
the Laws of the Queen, to the Difgrace and Difpa-
ragement of the faid Pleafant Rawlins, and to the
great Grief and Difconfolation of all her Friends, to
the evil Example of all others, againft the Form of
the Statute, and agamnft the Queen’s Peace, ker Crowns
and Dignity,  And that the faid Tho, Holt, after
the - faid Pleafant Rawlins bad been fo unlawfully,
violently, and felonioufly taken, carvied, and led
away, and 1o the faid Haagen Swendfen Married
and Wedded as aforcfaid 3 well knowing the faid Plea-
fant Rawlins to have been fo taken and lead away
againft ber Will, and to the faid Haagen Swendfen
to be Wedded and Married, afterwards, viz, the faid
Sixth Day of November, i the faid firft Year of the
Reign of this Queen, at the Parifh aforefaid, the fame
Pleafant Rawlins, and alfo the faid Haagen Swend-
fen, did wilfully, knowingly and felonionfly receive,
abet, comfort, conceal and affift, the faid- Haa-
gen Swendfen, with the faid Pleafant Rawlins fo
lye, and ber carnally to know, then and there did fe-
lonioufly incite, abet, belp, caufe andprocure, againft
the Form of the faid Statute, and againft the Queen's
Peace, ber Crown and Diguity, -

Cler. of Arr. Upon which Indi¢tment he hath
been arraign’d, and pleadea not Guilty, put him-
fe!f upon God and you the Jury at che Bar, being
half Foreigrers and half Natives. |

Cryer. Ovyes! 1f any one will give Evidenceon
Behalf of our Sovereign Lady the Queen, againft -
the Prifoner at the Bar, let them come forth, and

they fhall be heard ; the Prifoner ftands at the Bar
for his Deliverance.

Mr. Swendf. Pray, my Lord, let me have Pen
and Ink, I am not allowed Council; (which his -
Lordfhip granted.) My Lord, I would beg the
Favour of your Lordfhip, that the Evidence may
be examined apart,

* Mr. Soll, Gen. Is it not your Lord-  * Sir Simos
fhip’s Pleafure to call the other Jury, Harcourt.
the Facts are {o twifled together, and have fuch a
Dependance one upon another, thac there will be

an Inconvenience to us, If it be otherwife ?

Mmm Mr.
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M. Serj. Darnel. They may ftand at the Bar

by themitlves. _
Mr. Montagye. Or elfe it will break oyr Evi-

dence : They may ftand on the.other fide.

L. C. . Holt. He muft be tried fingle.

Mr, Soll. Gen. May it pleafe your Lordﬂaip_, and
Gentlemen of the Jury, f am of Council for the

aeen : It was formerly reckon’d a lefs Crime to
fteal 2 Fortune of 10000 /. than toifteal 12 4. of her

Money or Goods 3 but in the Third Xear of the

Reign of King HenryVIL. to cure this Defect 1n the
Law, an AQ of Parliament was made, whereby the
taking away aWoman, having Goods or Lands, or
being an Heir apparent, contrary to her. Will, and
afterwards Marrying her, is made Felony, and up-
on this Law the prefent Indi€tment is grounded.
Pleafaut Rawlins wasthe Daughter of Mr W illiqm
Rawlins 3 he having left her a confiderable Eftage,
appointed George Bright and Williaw Bufoy to be
her Guardians,  Mr. Bright heing dead, the other
Guardian Mr. Bufby, for the betier Education of
Mrs. Rawliys, placed her under the Care of his
Sifter Sgbina Bufby. Mrs. Bufby and Mrs. Ralins
have lodged about Three ¥ ears laft at the Houfe of
the Widow Nightingale. Hagagen Swendfen, with.
Mrs. Baynton, lodged at Mrs. Blake’s n Holbouen,
and therethey firdt projeCted and contrivid how they
might make a Prey of this young Gentlewoman,
The firft Step they fook tewards executing this De-
fign, was 1o get Laodgings at Mrs. Nightingale’s
Houfe for Mrs. Bayntan 5 for which Purpole fhe
was to pafs for a Country Gentlewoman of a plen-
tiful Fortune. One Mrs. St. Fobn was fent to Ms.
Niohtingale to take Lodgings for Mrs. Bayuton,
commending her to bea very gaod Woman 5 and
that hayipg the Misfortune of a Law-fuit, and being
obliged for that Reafon to attend 1t in Town, “rwas
her greateft Care to lodge in fo reputable a Foulfe as
Mrs. Nightiugale's was. Under this Pretence, Lodg-
ings weye there taken for her, Ather firft coming,
the was farced to put an a Difguife 5 fhe feem’d
to live a virtuous Life, that fhe might ingratiate her
felf into the Favour of the Family, as often as fhe
had an Qpportunity of converfing withany of them:
She pretended fhe had a Brother of a good Eftate,
one of the bet Men in the World ; and fhe hop’d
he would thortly come to Town, that fhe might fee
him. In a litle time after came this Swendfen
(being nothing related to her) and appeared as her
Brother, and 'frequently wifited her under Pretence
of that Relation.  But Mrs. Baynion was teo well
knawn inT'awn to continye long undifcover'd; No-
tice was foon given to Mrs, Bufky of the vicious Life
Mys. Baynton had led, and that the was not fitto be
in the fame Haufe with her. Mrs. Baynton having
dil:cm’,grqj this, and finding fhe had no Time to
bring about her Defigns by Frauds and Wiles, and
that no ptherWays was left but open Force, the Pri-
fongr at the Bar and fhe taok Meafures accordingly;
and in opder thereto *twasagreed, that aWrit thould

be taken out againlt Mrs. Rawlins. Mrs. Baynion .

contrives to get Mrs. Rawlins and Mrs. Bufby nto
a Conch, andata Plyceappointed a Signal wasgiven,
and the Writ exccuted s and Mrs. Bufy, Mrs.
Rasyplins, and Mrs, Baynton, were all carried in the
Coach tothe Starand Garter Tavern in Drury- Lane,
where parricular Care was taken to feparate Mrs.
Bufby and Mrs, Rawlins, becanfe unlefs they did
that, they could not hope to accomnplifh their De-
fians. Mys. Bufby was by Force kept at that Tavern,
withoyt anyProcefs againft her till theMarnage was
over 3 but Mrs, Rawlins was forcibly. carried to

Hartawell’s the Bailiff’s Houfe, Mis.
tended to be much concern’d for Mrs. gfﬁffi [;reé
went in all Hafte:to call fome .of her Friends I:D‘[ll)e
Bail for her. Some Time after Mrs, Rawlins Was
got to Hartwell’s, in comes Ms, Baynton, pretend-
ing that by mere Accident thé had difcover'd b
being there, -hearing her Name as fhe avas paffine:
by the Door ; ithat fhe had been in Search, but could
find-no Help; and-that her laftHopes washer doar
Brother Swendfen, and fhe doubted not bur he
would Bail her : He by Agreement had been plac’d
neartheBailiff*s, and fo was foon found, and broyel
thither, and waswery seady o afifther., In orfier
to her Difcharge, the Prifoner, the Bailiff, and M
Payuto, carry’d Mrs. Rewlins to another Tavern.
where they had a Parfon xeady for.the Purpofe, and
there this youngGentlewoman, thro’ diversArtifices
of w:y,hich you dhall have a full Account, was cuu:
ftrain’d to Marry, Thefe are the principal Circum.
(tances, and they fhall be plainly proved to you,
Mr. Serj. Darnel, My Laord, 1 think it neceffary
to.open aditele the Manner.of getting this young
Lady away, and the Contrivance of getting her in-
to the Coach ; for your Lordthip knows, that if any
are taken away without their Confent, tho’ they do
afterwards confent to be Married to fuchTaker, yet
he is guilty within this Statute. They were refolved
to take thisWoman by Force, when they found they
could not otherwife accomplifh their End, And
Mrs. Bayiton knowing Mrs, Bufby and Mrs, Raedins
were ufed every friday Morning to go to a Chapel
called Oxendon Chapel, Mrs, Baynton {aid, 1 am go-
ing to Golden-Square, and if you are going to the
Chapel, DIl fet you dowon if you pleafe : They, elad
of fuch a Convenience, thought no Harm, but went
in the Coach. They had gone no further than Dars-
month-Sireet, but thefe Bailiffs come., Harteell
opens the Coach, and goesintoit 5 they cry out to

the People for Help 5 Hartwel pluck’d up theGlaf- - -

{cs, and thofe Bailiffs aboyt the Coach cryed, I is
an Arreft of a Cheat that owes Money to Tradefinen.
By this Means they carried her to the §far and
Garter in Drury-Lane, When they had them there,
the pext Thing was to get her away from her Friend
Bufby, for unlefs that were done, they defpair’d of
oetting her to marry Swendfen. Mrs. Baynton pre-
tended to go find out Mrs, Rawlings Friends to Bail
her 3 but that was to meet with Swendfen : As {oon
as Mrs. Baynion was gone, the Bailiffs forced Mrs.
Rawlins from Mrs. Bufby, and Mrs. Bufby was kepe
there by Force till kive a-Clock, il all was over.
The Bailiffs, as they carried Mrs. Rawlins away,
called her Jade and Slut, and bid her pay her
Debts 5 and faid, Pat on your Mafk you Fade, for
we will have no Mob to refeue you 5 The put on her
Mafk, and the reft of the Bailiffs followed her, and
faid, She was a Cheat and was erréfled, Then it was
Time to open the Scene.  Hartwel) carried her to
hisHoufe, and Mrs. Bayafox preiending ta becoming
by and hearing of her Name, open’d the Door, and
by an exeraordinary Manner burft into the Houle,
and told her, Madam, Iwent to all your Frieuds,
bt could find none at howe 3 but I have been with
my dear Brother Swendfen, who will come with ano-
ther to Bail you, and *twill not be long before tbey
come 5 for they were placed at the Five Bells very
near Hartwell’s Houfe :  Upon this fhe went out
again, and brought in Swendfen, and one Holt whe
keeps the Mitre Favern in King-Street, Weftmirfier.
And truly whea they were there, and talked of be-
ing Bail, then they wouldall goina Coach to the

Vine Tavetn, the Place where they defigned the
Marriage 3
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Marriage 3 and they had got Two proper Inftru-
ments ready there for the Bufinefs, the Chaplain
.nd the Clork of the Fieer, When they had her
chere, my Lord, the Bailiff afked if fhe had any
Bul ? Mrs. Baynton faid, that Mr, Swendfen and
Mr. Holt would be her Bail 5 the Baihff faid, [
il not take Swendfen’s Bail, be is a Man Iknow
wot but My, Holo I kiow, Iwill take bis.  The
poor Woman begged upon her Knees, for Chnft’s
Sike let me fend for my Friends 5 and they pre-
ended to fend for abundance of them, but none
came.  Then fhe was threatned with Neiwgate, for
it often came outs Jf you camnol get Bail, fo
Newaate ysu muft go, and there muft lie.  Thiswas
often faid by Hartwell.  Then Mrs, Baynton cry’d
(as fhe could do at command) O bow I pity you,
Vs, Rawlins, Is there o way 11 the Latw to belp
5ol € [ believe if you were married that would put
o End 19 the Aidion.  Then fpeaking to the Bai-
W faid, If this Gentlewoman were married, wonld
it wot pul an Endto it ¢ T he Bailiff fard, 1 can’t
1ell but it might, if [fieeh a Thing were, Well, now
her rich Brother Swendfen is propofed, fhe muft
b= married to him ; the Bailiffs threatning her fe-
vercly, that to Newgate fhe mult go if fhe did
not.  Imimediately they brought in the Chaplain
nd Clerk of the Fleet, and read the Form of Mar-
riage, and afier carried her to feveral Places, lelt
they might be followed and prevented, Beds being
provided for the Purpofe at thofe Places, as your
Lordfhip fhallhear,  And, my Lord, this taking
of this Woman thus away againft her Will; 1s an
Offence againft the Actof 3 Henry VII. and my
Lord, we defire that the Statute may be read.

L. C. 7. Holt. It fhall be explain’d.

M. Broderick, My Lord, there was a whole
Night compleated before the Prifoner was feiz-
ed,

Then Mr. W. Bufby is called for, and fwori,

He is afked, Do you know Mrs. Pleafant Raw-
fins ¢

M. Serj. Darnel. Give an Acconnt of her.

Mr, Bufly. She is the Daughter of William
Rawlins deceafed, who left his Eftate to Dr. Bright
and my felf, to be fold for Payment of his Debts
and Legacies, and left the Surplufage to his Daugh-
rer, which is about 2000 /,

Mr. Serj. Darnel. What Lands has fhe 2

Mr. Bufby. She haszo /. a Year.

Mr. Serj. Dainel. What Age is fhe of ?

Mr. Bufby. She is near Eighteen.

Mr. Montague. Was fhe ever marricd, or no?

Mr. Bufby. She was unmarried.

Then Mys. Sabina Butby was called and fworn, as
alfo Mrs. Nightingale,

Mr, Swendfen. My Lord, 1 beg the favour that
only one Witnefs be heard at a Time.

Mr. Soll, Gen. Mrs. Nightingale, Do you know
Mrs. Pleafait Rawlins, and Mrs. Bufby ¢

Mre. Nightingale, Yes, 1 do.

Nr. Soll. Gen. Have they lodged at your Houfe ?

Mus. Niohtingale. Yes.

Mr. Soll. Gen. How long ?

Mrs, Nightingale, Above Thyree Years.

Mr. Soli. Gen. Flave you any Knowledge of Mys,
Baynton ?

Mrs. Nightingale, Yes.

Mr, Sell. Gen. How came you acquainted with her?

Mrs. Nightingale. One Mrs. §¢. Jobn came to me
to know whether I took Boarders? I faid, I had

taken fome, but would take no more, unlefs 1t were
the fame Ladies again,

Y

L. C., 7. Holt. Who was it came to you ¢

Mrs, Nisltingale. One Mirs. St Fobn.

Mr. Soll, Gen. Mrs. Nightingale, fpeak out, that
my Lord may hear you.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Did Mrs. Bufby lodge with you 2

Mis. Nightingale. Y es, my Lord,we were very inti-
mate before ; and fince 1t pleafed God to take away
her Flufband, I was pleafed with her, and very wil-
ling to take her into my Houfe.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Acquant his Lordthip how
Mrs. §t. Fobn came to you. |

M:s. Nightingale, Y es, my Lord, as near as I can.
She came to me, and afk’d me, if I took Boarders?
I told her, No, I would take none, except it were
thofe Ladies I had before: She told me, fhe had an
Acquaintance that was a Widow Lady that came
out of Wilifbire, about a Suit of Law, and would
be in a very fober Family near a Church, But how-
ever, I denied her Lodgings, and did expeét to hear
no more of her. But about threc ¥eeks or a Month
after, fhe came to me again, and aflced me whether
I had altered my Refolution.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Go on.

Mrs. Nightingale. My Lord, Mrs. 8. Fobn faid,
that the Lady was come to Town on the Saturday
Night before, very much indifpos’d in her Journey.
I afked her whether fhe knew this Bayaton or no ¢
Mis. 8t. Fobn faid, Yes 5 fhe was very intimate in the
Family, and fhe fuid a great deal more of her,
which I cannot remember.  She {aid alfo, that fhe
would have Boarded her her felf, and would have
been glad of her Company, if fhe had had Conve-
niences for her. ‘Then fhe atked me, whether fhe
fhould come her {felf and give her own CharaCter ¢
We thought no harm, fhe being 2 Woman, and not
a Man, She further faid, that Mrs, Bayuton had
{een 2 Maid whom I knew, and fhe believed fhe
would take her. I enquired of another who lived
in the Meaws, if he knew Mrs, Baynton 3 he faid, Yes,
and that fhe came of a good Family, At length
fhe came, and made a very modeft Appearance in
her Behaviour and Garb.  She faid to me, that I
was very curious in taking in Boarders, and for
that fhe liked me the better. I confented fhe fhould
come. She afked me what I would have a Week ?
I told her Twelve Shillings for her felf, and Ten
Shillings for her Maid. She concluded to come on
the Wednefday following 3 which fhe did with her
Maid,a modeft Girl, and a Neighbour,which gave me
the more Encouragement,  She carried her felf very
well till Michaelmas-Day at Night, when we heard of
her newBrother s the feem’d elevated at the News,and
t1] into Convulfion-Fits, which I believ’d were real
Fits. She faid the had a dear Brother, a good Chri-
{tian, and he would come on the Morrow. When
he came, he brought two Gentlewomen with him,
very modeft, which I never faw before, nor fince.
Mrs. Baynton made a Pot of Coffee, and fent for a
Bottle of Wine, and fhe told her Brother before
me, what good Lodgings fhe had, and faid fhe
withed he would come and lodge near them, for fhe
knew he had but a puny Stomach, and believed he
would like her Victuals, He faid 1t was not conve-
nient for him, becaufe his Bufinefs called him every
Day to the Change. She faid alfo, there was a Bow-
ling-Green near them, where he might divert him-
flf But all would not do. She afked me what L
would have a Meal if her Brother thould come at
any Time: I faid, when I had other Ladies, if
any of their Friends came, I had Twelve-Pence
q Meal of them, On Friday he came 5 1 went to

Mmm 2 Church,
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Church, and left them together at Cribbage, as I

found them at my Retvrn,
L.C. ¥ Holt, What Day of the Week was

this ?

Mrs. Nightingale. The Friday beforetheSacrament.
Mrs. Baynton faid to Mr. Swendfen, before Mrs.
Bufby, Yon have an extraordinary Hand at making
Punch ; fo they agreed to make a Bowl the Morday
following ; but Mrs. Rawlins hardly drank any, fhe
not liking any ftrong Liquors.  After this, fhe told
me, her Brother was very ill of his Journey, being
lately come out of the Country, tho’ I don’c under-
ftand he was in’t. The Monday before Michaelmas-
Day, we were at Dinner with two more than our
Family, when Mrs. Baynton faid, {he had an Inte-
reft in a Norway Ship, and invited us allaboard ;
But he, viz. Mr. Swendfen, did not come to our
Houfe till Four Days after ; but on Friday we con-
cluded to go on Saturday; there were Eight of us
in Company in all, Mrs, Rawlins, Mrs, Bufby, Iand
my Daughter, and Mr. Ba// another Lodger, belong-
ing to the Exchequzr. We went, and had much Dif-
courfe 3 after having drank a Glafs of Wine, the
Cloth was laid, and the Mafter offered a Bowl of
Punch ; fays Mr. Swendfen, Ladics, 1 would pleafe
you all, and leave you all to your Liberties lo drink
what you pleafe.

L. C. ¥. Hdlt. Is this Perfon Mrs, Baynton’s Bro-

ther ?
Mrs. Nirbtingale, ‘Thisis he that went for her

Brother.

L. C. . Holt. Whereabouts is your Houle 2

Mrs, Nightingale. Near Tuttle-fields.

Mr. Soll. Gen. "This Mrs, Baynios came to you
under the Charaéter of a Country Lady ona Law-
Suit 3 do you underftand that the was fo ?

Mrs. Nightingale, My Lord, She faid {he came
from the Bath.

Mr. Soll. Gen. You mifapprehend the Queltion ;
Do you underftand that her Pretence was true or
not ¢

Mrs. Nightingale. 1 enquired of feveral Perfons,who
acquainted me that the Bayitous lived in 77iltfbire
but it was not long before we began to fulpect her,
for there feemed to be an extraordinary Love be-
tween her and Swendfen, more than is ulual be-
tween Brother and Sifter. 1 faid, Madam, I won-
der you don’t marry your Brother,  She faid, fhe
thotight that ’twas not lawful. I faid there was
fuch a Thing done in Weffminfer, of a Man’s mar-
rying Two Sifters.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Pray call to mind what Time it
was that you firft gave Notice to her that the fhould
not cornitinue in your Lodgings.

Mrs. Nightingale, When I firlt miltrufted her, I
gave Noticeof it inmy Family. But we being allWo-
men, and fearful of her, thought not fit to give her
Warning till her Month was up. But before that,
fhe came to me, and told me, and faid Mus, Night-
ingale, 1 have received a Letter from my Sifter
Baynton in the Country, which informs me, that
the Truftees will agree, and {o I delign to return
‘when  my Month is up, for this Town is very
chargeable.  Very well faid I, for I expelt fome
Ladies very fhortly, 1 went down to my Family
and exprefS’d my Joy tothem, and faid, I was very
olad Mrs. Bayiton had prevented me, for if the had
not givén me Warning, T would have given her
Wiarning, for I refolved fhe fhould not ftay.

Mr. Sall. Gen. Mrs. Nightingale, it feems you
had Notice of Mrs, Baynten’s ill Carriage 5 did you
take anly Notice of it to her felf ?
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Mrs. Nightingale. No 5 1 did not, but I gave g
Maid Notice as foon as I fufpeéted arty thine, e:

Mr, Soll. Gen. Do you know whether the Maid
had told any Thing to her or not.

Mirs, Nigotingale. 'The Maid faid to her, Madam
don’t you fee a Strangenefs in the Family? Yes fai;i
fhe, I can fee and bear a great deal ; but :vhen
1 am rouzed, I’ll be like a Lion,

Mr. Soll. Gen. How long was this before My
Rawlins was taken away 2 '

Mrs. Nightingale. 1 can’t prefix the Time, byt ;¢
wai before fhe gave me Warning, :

.C.F. Holt. Was fhe gone from
before this Thing happen’d, : your Houk

Mrs. Nightingale. No, my Lord fhe told me on
IVednefday that her Time was our ; but faid, There
isa Fellow in Town that I fear will cheat me, and J
am taking out a Statute of Bankruptcy againgt
nim, which I think will caufe me to ftay 1n T(Twn 2
Week longer ;5 fhe alfo told me, fhe had taken 2
Place in the Coach to go on Thurfday, bur mutt
lofe her Earacft, for this Bufinefs would detain her

a Week longer.
Mr. Raymoid. Did you ever obferve they were

together in private ?

Mrs. Nightingale, No, my Lord, we never had
any Sufpicion of Mr. Swendfen, but of theWoman
for fhe could puton ail Manner of Difzuifes.

Mrs. Bulby being called, foe is frvorn.

Mr. Sail. Gen. Mrs. Bufly, pray do you krow
Mrs. Rawlins ?

Mrs. Bufby., Yes, I do.

Mr, Soll. Gen, How came you fitft acquainted
with her ?
 Mus. Bufby. My Brother Bufby was one of her
Guardians, and put her under the Care of my Fuf-
band, while he was living, which was four Years
ago this Chriftmas,  She came to us by the Con-
{ent of her Guardian.

Mr, Soll, Gen. At what Place did you lodge ?

Mrs. Bufby. We lived in Stretton-Grounds, but
fince my Hufband died, which is Three Years laft
Fuly, 1 left Houfe-keeping, and then we went and

lodged at Mrs. Nightingale's.
Mr. Soll. Gen. How long have yon continued at

Mis. Nightiugale’s ?

Mrs, Bufly. We have continued there ever fince.

Mr. Sol, Gen. Do you know Mrs. Baynton ?

Mus, Brfly, Yes, I do, ihe lodged at Mrs.
Nightingale's.

Mr. Sofl. Gen. Was there any body who ufed to
come to her there ¢

Mrs, Bufby. None except a Change-\Woman,

Coun. Do you know any Thing of Mr, Swend-
fen'?
Mrs. Bufby. Sir, The firft of his coming to Mrs.
Nightingale’s, was the Day atter Michacimas-Day.
Mrs, Baynton faid, that {he hed a Brother that was
to come to Town, which he did the Day after,
with Two Gentlewomen, which I never faw, exher
before or fince 5 but Mr, Swendfen after this came
feveral Times to her as her Brother, her Sifter’s
Hufband ; and fhe defired that he might dine with
her fometimes 3 for which (he agreed with Mrs.

Nightingale at 12 d. per Meal.
Mr. Soll, Gen. Was this Mrs, Rawlns at any

Time in private with Swendfen ¢
Mrs, Bifby. Never that 1 know of in all my

Life ; we were always in Company together whei
he dined thiere, and the Times that he dined there
we computed to be g or 10 ; he was there fome-

times when we were not at home,
My, Sall.
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Mr. Soll, Gen. How did Mvs, Bayafon behdve her
folf when the was at Mrs. Nightingale's ? _

Mrs. Bufby. We thought véry well of her, till at
latt we difcerned too much Fréedoin between Mr.
Seweidfen and her felf s we {ufpected hr’:x: Virtue, and
thought the would Drink 5 and were 1hf'qrmcd {he
would Swear: She fuid fhe muflt ftay m Town
bout 2 Month or Six Weeks about a Suic of Law,
‘Her Maid told her of the Strangénelsof the Family 4
fhe faid they had bzt be Civil, or clfe fhe would
ftay and plague them. She told Mis. Nightingale at
lingth, the Town was chargeable, and her Bufinefs
done, and that fhe would return into the Country.

Mr. Sofl. Gen. What do you know concerning
Mrs. Rawlins being taken away ¢

Mrs. Bufly. Mus. Bayaton knowing 1t was our
Cuftom to goto Uxendan Chapel every Friday Morn-
ing, fhe came and told us fhe had occafion to go to
Glden-Square 5 and that being i the Way, the in-
vited us to o with her in the Coach, and fhe
would fet us down at or near the Chapel.  When
we came to Daitinouth-fireet, Tomebody bid the
Coachman ftop: I expeéted The fhould fet us down
2s fhe promifed. On that (de where 1 fat, there
were old Buildings, and as [ was looking out, I heard
Mrs, Bayuton cry out to the Coachman, Drive
on 3 and all of a fudden I faw a Man in the Coach,
which was Hariwell the Batliff, Mrs, Razolins and T
were in a very great Frizht, knowing nothing, [
(aid for God’s fake let’s come out, -we are not con-
cerned. Hartwell {aid we were the Perfons that b
came for, I bege’d of him to let us come out:
Hartwoell had his Arms about Mrs, Rawlins's Side,

and fad, s this Lady and you that I am concerned .

about, I afk’d him whatit was. Said he, let youl
and I have two or three Words fogether, and all
will be well enough, 1 faid, you don’c think I.will
{1y any thing to you, unlefs I have my Friends by
me; Mrs, Baynton in the Coach, faid, No, Madam,
bz fure you don’t. T could not tell what he would
do with us 5 at length he carried us all to the Star
and Garter Tavernin Drary-Lane. T prefs'd him to
letus go to Fleet-fireet, for I had Friends there,
Hartwe!l was very angry, and would hear nothing
of it. When we came to Diwry-Lane, Mis. Bayuton
would have had us put on our Mafks 5 I faid Ihad
done nothing amifs, and I would not. "When we
were 1n the Reom at the Tavern, Mrs. Bayuton
haftned ‘out of the Room as faft as fhe could, pre-
tending to go for my Friends. Mrs. Raw/ins and I
were m a great Conlternation, wondring what they
would do with us: I took hold of her Arm, and
told hier T would live and die with her.  The Bai-
{iffs came in, and fid fhe was their Prifoner, -and
took her by Violence from me: They told me fhe
mult go with them, for they faid fhe was arrefted
by a Writ out of one Court, and I" by one ont of
another. When fhe was going, I put my Head out

of the Window, and cry’d Murder, Murder, feve-.

ral times: When [ pulld 1 my Head again, $purr

laid, What have you got by your Bawling? And faid
they were better known there than 1. They brought

a Man to me, ‘who Taid he had Orders to keep me,
and that he had only a Crown for his Paios 3 but he
would not fulfer me to fend for any body. ‘The
Gentlewoman of the Houfe came up, and faid |

had doné a Difkindnefs to hér Houfe by crying out

Murder : She faid to me, Look and fee whether

your Name be fpelt right, for it may bea falfe, Ar-
relt, &, Wakemai that went away ‘with Mrs. Raw-

ffu{, came back again, and faid, the young Woman
was well, and that he left her cating Fowl and

Bacon'; Ifaid, I with the was well. ‘The Gentle-
woman of the Houfe bid the Bailiff thew me the
Writ: He faid he could rot read well 5 but there
was the Name of Sabina Bufly, at the Suit of one
Fones : But when be heard my Complaints a con-
fiderable while, he faid he would go to my Friends,
and would go as cheap as a Porter, and as foon. I
fent him to Mr. Thorston and Mr, Nafh : He pre-
tended to go, but return’d no more till Night,

Mr. Soll. Gen. You fay you cry’d out Murder,
how did Mrs, Rawlins behave her felf then ?

Mrs. Bufby. It was her great Fright and Crying
that made me endeavour her Refcue 5 when we faid
we wow'd die together, then it was when they
forc’d her from me; the Surprize was fo great that
made me cry out after that manner that I did : Up-
on which fome Neighbours came in, but they told
them it was an Arreft, and thercfore they would
not meddle in i,

Mr, Soll. Gen. Mrs, Bufby, they kept you till
Night, you fay; did they take or require Bail for
you before you was difcharged ? |

Mrs, Bufby. Pl tell you, Sir, if you pleafe:
I did not know what I was arrefled for, it might be
Murder or Treafon, for aught I 'knew, There was
a little Boy by, faid, Madam, I know Mr, Unkle,
your Friend in Newmarket, and Pl go for him:
He went, but when he return’d again, he faid he
was not at home; which I thought was a Luye,
There was a poor Man, a Labourer, working in the
Chimney, he gave me a Wink, and faid, Madam,
Pllgo for him ; but I faid to him, Pray don’t leave
me ; | beganto be afraid, for I did not know how
my Life might be concern’d.  Said the little Boy,
T’ll go any where for you, I -fent him for Two
Gentlemen, who came: The Bailiffs {aid they had
an Action of 200/, againft me 5 the Gentlemen told
the Bailiffs they were come to bail me : The Bailiffs
were very impudent, but fhuft’d about a-while,
and left me, and took no further notice.

L. C. ¥. Helt, Did they take any Bail for you 2

Mrs. Bufby., No, they left me with thele Gen-
tlemen.,

Mr., Mountagwe. When you went out in the
Morning, did you defign to go any where clie but
to Chapel. .

Mrs. Bufby. No where elfe,
Mr. Mountagne, Was it your Invitation to Mrs,

Baynton, or her Invitation to you to go in the Coach?

Mrs. Bufby. It was Mrs, Bayutor’s Invitation to
me ; I had-not a very good Opinion of Mrs, Bayi-
ton, -for we fufpeted lier Virtue in the Family, by
reafon of her too familiar Carriage to her Brother 3
but being to go fhortly away, I apprehended no
harm.

Mr. Mountagne. Did Mrs. Rawlins go with you?

Mrs. Bufby. Shedid.
Mr. Mountague. Mrs. Bufhy, do you know the
Prifoner ? Is this the Man that came to Mrs. Night-

ingale’s Houfe ?

Mrs. Bufby. Yes, Sir. ' L
Yudge Powel, How long was it from the Time

that you were parted after Arrclting, that you faw

Mrs, Rawlins again, ;
Mrs. Bufby. The firft time after was on Safur-

.day, when they were before the Recorder.

L. C. . Holt. When did you find her 2
Mrs. Bufly. On Saturday in the Afternoon,
L. C. §. Holt. Was you at the finding ¢
Mrs. Bufby. No,-my Lord. |

L. C. F. Holt. What Time was 1t ?

Mrs. Bufby. About Noon, T beheve.
My, Moyn-
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Mr Mountagne. When you faw her put into the
Coach, did you hear her cry out?

Mrs, Bufby. No, Sirs it was I that cry’d out,

Mr. Mountague. Did Mr. Sweirdfen make any
Entertainments, or no ;

Mrs. Bufby. But one, asI know of.,

Prifoner {peaks to Mrs, Bufby, and faid, Have
you done ?

Mrs. Bufby. 1 think fo.

Prifoner. 1f you have, I'll afk youa Queftion ;
Did you know of any Love between Mrs, Rawlins
and me ?

L. C. . Holt. Did you know any thing of Love
between Mrs. Rawlins and the Prifoner, or no?

Mrs. Bufby. No, my Lord.

Mrs. Baynton’s Maid call’d and fwora.

M. Soll. Gen. Pray, did you know Mrs. Rays-
ton ¢

Maid, Yes,

M. Soll. Gen. Was you her Servant ?

Muaid. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Who recommended you to her?

Maid, Mrs. §t. Fobn,

Mr, Soll. Gen. Do you know one Mr, Swendfei ?

Maid, Yes, my Lord ; there he is; pointing to
bim,

Mr. §dll. Gen, Did you ever {ee him before you
were hired to your Miftrefs.

Maid, No, my Lord ; I never faw him before ?

Mr. §oll. Gen. Did you fee him when you was
with your Miftrefs ?

Maid. Yes, my Lord,

Mr. Sofl. Gen. Do you know whether there was
any Relation between them ?

Moid, Yes, my Lord ; they went for Brother
and Sifter,

Mr. Soll, Gen, How long was you with her ?

Maid. About a Month,

Mr. Soll. Gen. How did the behave her felf ?

Maid. Till the laft of her Time, very well ;
but the Family had a Miftruft of her long before
fhe went away.,

Mr. Soll. Gen. Do you know the Reafon why
they miftrufted her ?

Maid. 1 do not know, my Lord.

Mr. 8oll, Gen. Do you know what was the Caufe
the Family muftrufted her?

Maid, They thought her a loofe fort of a2 Wo-
man, and therefore they miftrufted her.

L. C. 5. Holt. Did they difcern any Familiarity
betwixc them ?

Maid, No more than as Brother and Sifter,

Mr. Soll, Gen. After this Sufpicion, do you know
whether the Family exprefs’d any Refentment ?

Maid, No, my Lord.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Did you live with her when Mis.
Rawlins was taken away ?

Maid, Yes, my Lord; but I went away the
next Day.

Mys. Berkley Sworn,

Mr. Soli. Gen. Mrs. Berkley, pray was you pre-
fent when the Prifoner was taken up ;3 and do you
know whether he and Mrs, Bayuton were Brother
and Sifter ;

Mrs, Berkley. 1 went to Mr. Swendfen himfelf,
and faid, Is this wicked Woman your Sifter ? Says
he, I cannot fay fhe 15 but I have made her my
"T'ool, and fhe has done my Bufinefs, and I would
get rid of her To-morrow, but that being Swiday 1

will not; but on Monday I'll give her a Reward for

what fhe has done, and then Il difcharge her, and
never fee her more,
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Mr. Mountague. Relate what Difcourfe you had
with him to the Gentlemen of the Jury,

Mrs. Berkley. 1 atked Mr. Swendfen, Whether
Mrs. Baynton was his Sifter ? He faid, No, fhe is
not my Sifter ; but I have gained my End, in
making her a Tool to my dear Wife: 1’1l gratify
her for what fhe has done, and put her away on
Monday and never [ee her more.,

Council, 1 think you lodged in the Houfe with
her ?

Mrs, Berkley. Nos but I was a Neighbour, and
was very frequently there.

Council. Did you fee any thing to caufe you to
miftruft that there was any thing more than ordina.
ry betwixt them ?

Mrs. Berkley, No Caufe at all, that1 know of.

My, Blake and bis Wife faworn.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Mr. Blake, pray do you know
Mrs, Bayiuton ¢

Mr. Blake, Yes, Sir,

M. §oll. Gen. How long have you known her ?

Mr, Blake, Abour Twelve Years.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Pray 1s the a Country Lady that
has got a good Jointure ?

Mer. Blake, 1 know nothing but that fhe works
for her Living,

Mr, §oll. Gen, Hath the any Eftate in the Coun-
try ?

yMr. Blake. None, as I know of,

Council. Do you know the Prifoner at the Bar 2

Mr. Blake. Yes, Sir,

Council. Where did he lodge at any Time ?

Mr, Blake. He lodged at my Houle,

Council. How long ?

Mr, Blake, About 6 or ¥ Months,

L. G, J. Holt, Where is your Houfe ?

Mr. Blake. In Red-Lyon-ftreet.

L. C. 7. Holt. What other Lodgers had you at
the fame time ¢

Mr. Blake. Ihad a Parliament-Man lodged with
me at the fame Time,

L. C. J. Holt. Where did Mrs, Baynton lodge 5

Mr. Blake. In the oppofite Room againft the
Gentleman,

L. C. J. Ibit. Fow long tume ?

Mr. Blake, About Seven Months,

Council. How long was Mrs. Bayntor gone from
your Houfe before this Matter happened ?

Mr. Blake., About Five or Six Weeks.

L. C. ¥. Holt. How long before Michaelmas ?

Mr, Blake. I cannot certainly tell 5 but I believe
much abourt that Time.

Conneil. When they were in your Houfe, what
did you fee betwixt them ?

Mr, Blake. Nothing of any harm, as I know of.

L. C., 7. Holt, Mr. Blake, did you never fee any
harm by Mrs. Bayston ?

Mr. Blake. Not as I know of. '

Mr. Soll, Gen, Do you know whether fhe lay-n
at your Houfe ?

Mr. Blake. I know not ; for aught I know fhe
might : I know nothing of Womens lying-in.

Mr. Wakeman call’d and fworn.

Mr, Soll. Gen. Were you one of the Bailiffs that
Arrelted Mrs, Bufty and Mrs. Rawlins ¢

Wakeman, 1 was the Man thar executed the
Marfbal’s-Conrt Writ, and Arrefted them.

L. C. 7. Holt, Who employed you ?

Wakeman, Mr, Hartwell.

L.C. . Holt. Wereyouat Mr, Hartwel’s Houfe?

Wakeman. My Lord, Ill tell you the Truth of

the Matter: On Wednefday before they were Ar-
refted,
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refted, Mr. Hartwell-was at-my Houfe to Tee for
me:; but'beingnat atthome, but in the Country, T
came homie about 1y at Night: My Daughter faid
¢0 e, there was 2" Writ lefe by Mr, Hartwell for
me to be ferved, -and 1t muft be done To-morrotw
Morning. On the Morning he -came to me, and
faid, Mr. W akeman, will you execute 2 Writ? He
carried me to the Mitre-Tavern, and called for a
Pot of Ale and a Bottle of White-Wine, and we
had = Toaft and fome Cheefe. While I was there,
onc Mr. Holt came 1n, a Man that I never faw in
all my Life, and faid, The Bufinefs cannot be
done this Day,

L.C. 7. Holt. What Day of the Week was this ?

[Vakeman. Tburfday ; he appointed me to call
gnon him at Nine next Morning. He faid, If I
came firft we thould get what we had before : He
came in before we had done, and the Man of the
Houfe was drefling himfelf in the Kitchen : We eat
a Toaft, and drank the Wine, and after that, we
had another. Mr, Holt calld Wr. Hartwell ou,
and faid, It cannot be dore 35 by and by he faid it
micht be done: I don’t know what it was, but
they took me to Stretton-Street 3 Mr, Hartwell and
Mr., Spurr was with me: [ was afham’d to {tand
in the Street, fo I went into an Alehoufe, and
drank a fingle Pot of Drink.

Mr. Sofl. Gen, Had you feen Mr. Swendfen be-
fore that Morning ?

[Wakemen. No: I never faw him before in all
my Life. At that, if it pleafe your Honour, Mr.
Hartwell and Mr, Spury went before, and bid me
follow the Coach. I did fo as near as I could, but
could not keep pace with the Coach, being lame ;
but at Dartmouth-Ground Mr, Spurr ftopp’d the
Horfes, and then I came up to the Coach 5 and
Mr, Hartwell, 1 fuppofe, gave the Word of Ar-
reft, and mnto the Coach he went 5 but I did not
gn 1n becaule there was no room, but rid be-
lind 1t, The Coach was order’d to go to the Star
and Garter Tavern in Drury-Lane. When we came
there, we went into a Back-Room ; and the Gen-
tiewoman that had a Band-Box faid to Mrs. Raw-
ks, T will go to fome of your Friends.

L. C. J. Holt. What did they do in Stretion.
Grounds ¢

I7akeman. They were Arrefted there : The Gentle-
woman was carry’d by Mr., Hartwell to his Houfe,
and [ follow’d them ; but meeting with a Gentle-
woman of my Acquaintance, fhe ftopp’d me.
When I came to Hortwell’s Houfe, Where is fhe,
fard I'? They told me fhe was below Stairs, I faid
I had alittle Bufinefs elfewhere, that will detain me
about an Hour: He gave meleave to go. When I
went out, Mr. Holt call’d me over the Way, and
afk’d me, if Mr. Fartwell was at home? 1 faid,
Yes, And is the young Gentlewoman there too? |
likewife faid, Yes. He led me to the Frve-Bells in
Witch fireet, into a Room where there were Three
Boxes, and carry’d me to the middlemoft Box, and
there was a Gentleman,

Corneil, Was it the Prifoner at the Bar?

Iakeman, Yes, I think fo. At that Mr, Holt
[ilPd me a full Glafs, which I drank off'; and I told
him, I wasgoing to do fomeBufinefs in St. Martin's.
Andwhen Fhad donethat, T went to Hartwwel’sHoufe
agun: [ enquir’d for the Gentlewoman. Mrs, Har:-
well {aid, her Hufhand was gone along with the
Gentlewoman to Flolbors to muake an end of the
Matter. [ afled her, Whereabouts? She faid, At the
Vine Tavern. 1wene thicher,andafl®d for Mr. Hars-
we!l, There was he, and Mr, Butler, and x Tallow-

‘Chindler going to eat Stakes : They invited me
to et forne with thern 3 which I did. Mr, Holt
came into the Room tWo or three'times: Then
Mr. Holt rold me, I was difcharged of my Pri-
foner ; fo away I went. . |

L. C. }. Holt. You iere eating Stakes, you fay,
at the Zine Tavern 5 Was'the there then ¢

Wakeman. There is a ‘Court againft the Tavern,
and T faw the ‘Gentlewoman looking out of the Zine
Tavern, where there were new Sath-Windows; as
1 ‘came over the Way thro’ the Court, this Gentle-
woman look’d out of the Window. |

L. C. . Holt. Whit, before you went in ¢

Wakemman. Yes, myLord; but I went in and
faw him alone, but knew not whom he was,

L. C.¥. Holt. Did you fee Mrs, -Rawlins there?

Wakeman, No, not at the Tavern.

M. Soll, Gen, When Haritwell took away this
Gentlewoman, did fhe go away quietly, or did
Mrs, Bufby and the make an Outcry ?

Wakeman. She was a little frighted. |

L. C. ¥. Holt, Where was it you firft faw Mr,
Swendfen ?

Wakeman, Atthe Five-Beli Tavern,

L. C. 7. Holt. Whenwas it you faw him there ?

W akeman., About Twelve a-Clock,

L. C. F. Holt. Where was it he gave you the
Pot of Drink ? |

Wakeman, At the Iive Bells 3 but it was Mr.
Holt that gave it me. |

L. C. ¥.-Holl. How many were there in Com.
pany there ¢

Wakeman. Only Mr, Holt, and Mr, Swendfen.

Conneil, What was the Occafion of your going ?

Wakeman, Mr, Holt call’d me,

Council, When was it you faw him out of the
Window ?

IWakeman, About an Hour and a Quarter after.,

Ceuncil. What Anfwer did you give, when they
afk’d you where the Gentlewoman was ¢

Wakeman, 1 {aid, the was at Mr. Hartwell’s,

Conncil. Youfaid you ferv’da Writon Mrs. Raw-
lins, had you no Procefls againit Mrs, Bufby ¢

Wakeman. No, none at all,

L.C. 5. Holt. On what Account did you keep
Mrs. Bufby ¢

Wakeman. 1 did not keep her ; but one Spurs
was employed to do it,

Council. You cameback to Mrs, Bufly’s; did not
you fay that you had been with a young Gentle-
woman, who was eating Fowls and Bacon ¢

Wakeman, Mr, Hartwell afk’d me to eat fome,

Council. Did not you thew Mrs, Bufby a Writ,
and read 1t to her ¢
Wakeman, 1 cow’d never read a King’s-Bench

Writ. l

L. C. §. Holt., Can you read 2 Martial's-Court
Writ 2

Wakeman, Yes, but not the Latin of it.

Coun. When you went to Hartwell at the Pine-
Tavern, did you afk for Mrs. Rawlins ¢

Wakeman, Yes, yess I afk’d where fhi¢ was ¢
They told me they were making an end of it. My
Lord, I had like tohave foreot ; I afked where was
the Prifoner? And Mr. Holt told me, they had

juft made an end of the Bufinefs.

Mys. Pleafant Rawlins fawora,

Mr. Soll. Gen. Give an Account to his Lordthip,
after what manner you were Arrefted, and carried
from Tavern to Tavern.

Mrs. Rawlins. My Lord, I was Arrefted with
Madam Bufby, and carried to the Szor and Garter
Tavern in Drury-Lane, L C 7,
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L. C, ¥. Holt. How were you carried thither ?

‘Mrs, Rawlins. 1 was in a Coach going to Ox-
endon Chapel, when three Bailiffs were about the
Coach.

Mr. Soll. Gen, Where did they carry you ?

Mrs, Rawlins, They cirried us to the Star and
Garter in Drury-Lane, *

Mr. Soll. Gen. Who did they carry with you ?

Mrs, Rawlins, There was Mrs, Bufby, Mrs, Bayn-
ton, and I, and Fartwell the Bailiff 3 when we came
to the Star and Garter, they forced me up Stairs
intoa Back Room, but we gotinto aforward Room ;
but we had not been there long till they parted Mrs.
Bufby and 15 Mrs. Baynton was gone, for our
Friends, as fhe pretended. I wasin a very great
Fright, but Mrs. Bufby faying we will die together,
they took me by Forcefrom her 3 Hartwell {wore
a great Oath, and thruft me down Stairs and forced
me out of a Back-Door into an Alley. “When he
went to put me nto a Coach, I cry’d out, Murder;
then he threatened to pur me into Newgate. He
carry’d me to his own Houfe, and no body came to
help me a great while ; but Mrs, Bayaton faid, that
as fhe was going by the Door fhe heard my Name,
and came in in a mighty Fright 5 fhe faid to me,
Madam, I pity you, will nobody Bail you ? She
told me, I will fend to my Brother who fhall be
Bail for you.  She fent for him, he came into the
Room, and he faid, what is the Matter with you,
I faid, Enough is the Matter when I am arrefted
for 200/, and owe no Man a Penny. Said he ina
Jocofe way, what makes you affrighted at that, I
havea good mind to arreft you my felt. Then they
took me thence to the Pine Tavern in Holbourn,
where I was an Hour or T'wo before I heard any
‘Thing of Marrying or any fuch Thing.

Conn. What did they do with you all that
Time?

Mrs. Rawlins, ‘They got a Dinner ready, and
after we had dined, fhe begged of me to have her
Brother, and faid, that if Idid not marry him, I
fhould be ruined. Itold her I would do nothing
without the Advice of my Friends, I defired my
Friends to be fent for, but they would riot admit
it. She looked on my Ring on my Finger, and faid,
let me fee your Ring from your Finger, I faid,
No, you fhall not, She faid I will force it off, I
faid I’ll try that : But fhe forced it from me.

Prifoner, Remember you are upon your Qath.

Mrs. Rawlins, 1know I am. When fhe took
my Ring away, I asked her what fhe would do
with 1t 3 fhe faid, we fhould go and get a Wed-
ding-Ring made by it. I told her 1 would not
marry without the Advice of my Friends, Away
fhe went and bought & Ring, and came up again,
and faid to her Brother, fhe had a Ring; well
fad I, give me my Ring and do what you will
with the other; fhe faid, If [ did not marry her
Brother 1 fhould be ruined for cver.

There was a Minifter i the Houfe, whom they
{aid had been there about a Quarter of an Hour,
but I fuppofed longer; they brought him, with the
Clerk, up Stairs 5 the Parfon faymg, I hear there
15 2 Couple to be married ; he afked no Queftions,
but told me, if I did not marry this Gentleman,
[ thould be fent to Newgate and ruined for ever.

Coun. Give an Account of what was after the
buying the Ring,

Mrs. Rawlins, When they brought the Ring,
they faid to me, will you be married or no? I an-
fwered, I will not, there are none of my Friends
here, and I will not marry without the Confent

.

of my Friends 5 They faid, If I did not I fhoylg
be ruined for ever. So with many Threats and Per.
fuafions, they at laft prevail’d with me to marry,
I was forced to marry him out of Fear, not of ao.
ing to Newgate, but of being murdered.

Coun. Where did they carry you ?

Mrs., Rawlins, To Blake’s Houfe in Red-Lyor:.
Street, Holborn,

L, C. }. Holt. What Time of Day was it ?

Mrs. Rawlins, 1 cannot give an ¢xaét Account
but I think it was Candle-light.

Prifoner. It was about Twelve a-Clock, at Noon,

L. C. ¥, Holt. What Time was it that you were
marry’d ¢

Mrs. Rawiins, My Lord, it was about Three
a-Clock.

L. C. ¥. Holt. When you went to Blake's Houfe,
who was with you there ?

Mrs. Rawlins, None but Mr. Swendfen, Mrs.
Baynton, and I,

L. C. J. Holt. Was there any Force or Threats
us’d when you were at Blake’s Houfe ?

Mrs, Rawlins. Yes, there was, my Lord,

L. C. ¥. Hslt. Give an Account of it.

Mrs. Rawlins, They thruft me up Stairs, and
ordered to have a Bed fheeted. Mrs. Bayuton faid
to me, Undrefs and go to Bed. I faid I would not.
She {aid the would pluck my Cloaths off my Back.
I faid fhe fhould not. She faid the would pluck off
my Cloaths and make me go to Bed.

Coun. What did fhe do with you ?

Mrs. Rawlhins, She put me to Bed.

Conn. Did fhe ufe any Violence with you ?

Mrs, Rawlins. Such Violence that made me go
to Bed.

L. C. 7. Holt. How came you to be releafed ?

Mrs, Rawling 1t was Saturday Morning before
I was releafed ; there was fome of my Frends
came to the Place where I was.

L. C. 7. Holt, Then you were with him all
Night ¢

Mrs, Rawlins, Yes, my Lord,

L. C. ¥. Holt. Mr. Swendfen, will you afk her-
any Queftions ?

Prifoner. She muft be my chiefeft Evidence my
Lord, when the Witnefles come ; fhe muft be the
chiefeft of them.

L. C,§. Holt. You will notatk her any Quef-
tions now, but when the Witnefles are call’d.

Prifoner. My Lord, I prefume fhe does not go
out of Court.  Orders given for ber 1o fit down.

Mr, Soil, Gen. We have done with our Evidence
at prefent.

L, C. J. Holt. Mr, Swendfen. What do you an-
fwer to the Evidence?

Prifoner., My Lord, 1 am very much unprepar’d
for a Tryal at prefent, ‘

L.C. 7. Holt. Why fo?

Prifoner. Becaufe I had but little Time for Pre-
paration, and I am not prepared, 1 defire that I
may be allow’d Council.

L, C.-¥. Holt. No, no, it cannot be allow’d you ;
and as for the time of your Trial you were told, 1t
you would thew good Caulfe to have it put off yet,
the Court would have done it.

Prifoner. Then I hope if T fpeak any Thing that
may be prejudicial to my Caufe, that the Court
will not take Advantage from ir.

The firlt Time I was at Mrs, Nightingale's, I was
defired by Mrs. Bujby.and Mrs. Baynton to makea
Bowl of Punch, which I did, and we were very

merry over it, then I invited them to go on Boarda
Ship
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Ship, which they all did, and we in a fhort Time
came very well acquainted. My Lord, I defire my
wife might {tand by her felf, and none of them near

lier,
| L. C. . Holt. There is none near her that will

hurt her.

Prifoner. My Lord, 1beg fhe may ftand by her
fuff, tha T may have a fair Trial 3 1 pray your
1ordthip to grant me this Favour, My Lord, will

sou pleafe to grant it ?
L.C. % Helt. Mult T grant it only for your

Humour ¢

Prifoner. *Tis not a Humour, my Lord, but of a
areat Confequence to me : Will your Lordthip grant
me it ? I beg it, my Lord, for ’tis the moft material
Thing I have to afk ; Ibeg all thofe People may be
removed from her, ’tis the greateft and molt materal
Thing T have to fay.

L. C. F. Holt. 'm {orry for it.

Prifimer. 1t 1 fo, good my Lord grant me

that.
L. C.¥. Holi. There’s no body near her that con-

cerns you at all. |

Prijoner. There are thofe by her that will do
me no Kindnels, Thei fhe was ordered to be remov’d.

Mr. Soll. Gen. My Lord, her {tanding there is
cough to diforder her,

Prijsier. My Lord, fhe 15 very well.

L. C. F. Holt. Remove her a little further,

Czan. My Lord, he does it on purpofe to fright

her.,

Prifner. We went (as I was telling your Lord-
thip) aboard a Ship, and they nvited me to come
the Week following to partake of a Treat 3 accord-
inely T went, and there was one Mr. Pugh, and he
and [ made 2 Bowl of Puwch,  Mr. Pugh at that
Time courted Mrs. Raswlins, and that little Time [
was acquainted with her, 1 difcerned fhe had a
Kindnefs for me, as I had for her ; and I told her
I could not be eafy while the fuffered Mr, Pugh to
kifs her 5 fhe defired me to be eafy, and 1t fhould be

remedied.
L. C.F. Holt, Mrs, Rawlins, do you remember

any fuch Thing ?

Mrs. Rawlins. My Lord, 1 do not remember
any fuch Thing, or that any fuch Words ever came
out of my Mouth,

Prifoner. Did not you fay this, Mrs. Rawlius,
Mrs, Swendfen 1 thould fay, did not you fay, if I
would not {it by you you would noteat 2 Bit or a
Crumb; when I fat by you and profered my Place
to another, can you fay you were not offended ?

Mis. Rawlins. No, 1 was not,

Prifower, Are not you upen your Oath ¢ did not
you give me fome Encouragement ?

Mrs, Rawlins. 1 do not know how I could fhew
it you, I know not of any fuch Thing.

L.C.F. Holt. You ought to {peak the Truth,
becaufe his Life depends upon it, Did you in the
firlt Place ever admit of his Courtfhip, 1n order to

marry you 2
Mrs, Rawlins, No, my Lord, I don’t remember

any fuch Thing.

L. C. . Holt, Did you ever fhew any Kindnefs
'0 him upon any fuch Account ?

Mrs, Rawlins, No, I don’t know I fthew’d him
ny more Kindnefs than all the reft of the Famly
hew'd him,
!L. E‘ 7. Holt, Was you ever in his Company
alONC T

Mrs, Rawlins, No, my Lord.

Prifiner, To give me more Eafc and Satisfaction
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after Dinner we had our Bowl and Walnuts, Mis.
Swendfen peeled the Kernels and gave them to me 3
fhe gave them fafter than I could eat 3 fhe heaped
my Plate with them, every one at the Table took
notice of it, and fhe jogged me with her Knee, that
! fhould take them, and gave fome to Mrs, Baynion,
and bid her take them and give to me.

L.C. ¥, Holt. Mrs. Bufby, Were you there ?

Mrs. Bufty. Yes, my Lord.

L.C.}. Holt. Did you {ee any Thing of this kind 2

Mrs, Bufly. No, my Lord.

Prifoner, Will your Lordfhip be pleafed to afk
her yourfelf ?

L. C. 7. Holt. Mrs. Rawlins, did you cer give
peeled Walnuts to him, or fend them to him in
particular ?

Mrs. Rawlins, No, my Lord, I do not know
that I was more kind to him than the reft of the
Company.

Prifoner. Every Body took notice of it, and
Mr. Pugh in particular,

L. C. 7. Holt., Whatdo you fay, Mr, Swendfen ?

Prifoner. My Lord, Mr. Pugh, if he were here,
would fay the fame as I do, He was atraid I thould
pet away his Lady.

L.C. 7. Holt. Where s he ¢

Court. He 1s 1n the Court.

L. C. ¥, Holt. You may have him for a Witnefs
if you will,

Prifencr, More than this, before he went away,
fhe told him fhe did not care for him 3 this fhe
{poke to make me more eafy ftill,  This I believe
Mr. Pugh can witnefs, in as much as Madam Bufby
complain’d to her about it, at Mr. Scoreman’s the
Picture-Drawer’s, whois one of my Evidences ; 1
defire he may be called,

L. C. ¥, Holt. Well let him be called.

So he was called and came.

L. C. ¥. Hdlt. Hear ye, he calls you to be aWit-
nefs, you are not to be upon your Oath, but are under
the higheft Obligation to tell the Truth,

Mr, Scoreman. While I was drawing a Gentle-
woman’s Picture, Mrs. Baynion's, there was a Eire,
it began to be Cold, they fell into Difcourfe about
Mr, Swendfen and Mrs, Rawlins, Mrs, Bufby was
there at the fameT'ime, they fel} into Difcourfe about
Mr. Stvendfen and the young Lady.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Was fhe chere 2

Mr. Scoreman, Yes:

L. C. 7. Holt, Where was 1t?

Mr, Scoreman. At my Lodgings ; there were
Mrs. Bufby, the young Lady, and Mrs. Baynton.

L. C. ¥. Helt. Whole Picture were you drawing ?

Mr, Scoreman, Mrs. Baymton's.  They fell mto
Difcourfe relating to a Matter of Love, between
Mr. Swendfen and the young Lady.  She faid the
young Lady had a Love for Mr. Swendfen more
than the other.

L. C. §. Holt. You heard her fay fo ?

Mr. Scoreman. No, but I can fay Mrs. Baynton

fad lo.
L.C. 7. Holr. But tell us whar you heard.

Mr. Scoreman. She fhould have faid fo, T did
not hear her my felf, but afterwards upon a Dif-
courfe fhe afterwards faid, what fhe had faid the
would {tand to.

L. C. . Holt. What did fhe fay 2
Mr. Scoreman. 1 do not know that fhe faid fo

or not,

Prifiner. My Lord, may I fpeak it as well as
can, he cannot fpeak Euglifh right, I'll fpeakitto

him, my Lord.
Nnn "L.C. 7.
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L. C. . Holt. No, no. Did you hear Mrs.
Bufby fiy arty Thing ? What did fhe fay ?

Nr. Scoremsan, In way of Difcobrfe fhe faid fo.

L. C. . Helt, What, in way of Difcourfe, did
fhe fay nothing ?

" M. Scoreman. 1 heard the Lady fay only that
Word, thatall fhe faid fhe would ftand to.

L.C. ¥ I, What did you hear them talk
about ?

Mr. Scoreman. They were playing at Cards, and
the took up the Tricks of Mr. Swendfen, which dif-
covered Jove. ‘

L. C. . Holt. The Queftions, Whether you did
licar them fpeak any thing of Love, ormote

Prifoner. My Lord, he would (peak better with
an Interpreter.

L.C.¥. Holr. Let an Interpreter be called for.

L. C. . Holt. What Countryman arc you ?

Prifower. My Lord, he 1s a Dane.

The Tnterpreter, a Fury-man, was fwort, and be-
giniing to talk wwith Mr. Scoreman ; and their be
faidy be is none of my Conntry, be is Dutchman, [/
deirt anderftand bim.

L. C. . Holt. He fpeaks Englifb well enough.

Prifouer, Very well'; but he knows not where
he begins : He would fay what Mrs., Bufbyand Mirs.
Baynton weve {peaking, but knows not how to utter
hiunfelf,

L. C.¥. Holt, Fle cannot fay any thing for you.

Mr. Scoreman. 1 heard but a few Words, and
cannot fay much of it.

L. C. . Helt. You muft have a better Witnels,
or you are in a dangerous Condition.

Prifoner. My Lord, Mr. Pugh complined to
Madam Beufby, that fhe flighted him very much.

L. C.%. Holt. What, tor Love of you.

Prijimer. Yes, my Lord, Tcould tell you of di-
vers Things that pafs between Lovers, that would be
impertinent for me to relate to wife Men.

L. C. . Folt. Let us hear fome of them ?

Prifsncr. When we were by our felves, fhe kiffed

me; and fqueezed me by the Hand, when we
walked privately in the Garden,
L. C. . Helt. Did fhe kifs you ?
Prifoner. Yes, my Lord, and fqueez’d me often.
L. C. 5. Holt. Did you not think her very

coming ?
Prifoier. Yes, 1did 3 and when we talk’d of

Marrzge, fhe feem’d to be very well pleafed.

L. C. *f. Helt. Mrs. Rawlins, you hear what he
fiys : Did you fqueeze him by the Hand, and kifs
him? Is it trues |

Mrs. Raswlins. No, my Lord, I did no fuch
Trick, riot I 5 and as for walking in the Garden, 1
did not walk in the Garden alone wich him.

Prifier. 1 could mention a great many of thefe
jittleThings 5 but if the denies them I cannot help 1,
My Lord, the lalt time I was at the Houle we
had a Barrel of Oyfters 3 T ftoord with my Hands
behind me, and as fhe pafled by at any time, fhe
gave me fqueczes by the Hand,

L. C. . Holt. What fay you to this, Mrs, Raw/ins?

Mrs. Rawlins. My Lord, 1did not dofo upon my

Oath.
L. C. F. Iolt. She fays (he did not do ir, upon

her Qath,

Prifoner. Now for the Matter of Fact 5 as for the
Arreft, I never knew any thing of it, diretly or in-
rely, till I faw her at the Bailifi’s Floufe.

L. C."7. Helt. If the did know any Thing of, or
was colifenting to the Arreft, why did you force her
t0 the Tavern, and marry her witha Parfon you had
provided for that Purpofe?
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Prifoner. She married me with as much Freedor
as cculd be in a Woman,

L.C. 7. Hott, What fay you to that Mrs?

Prifoner. Wlll your Lﬂf’dﬂlip pleafe to afl; hey
whether I offered any Violence to her either by
Word or Deed. /

L.C. . Holt, Mrs, Rawiins, give an Account how
you were carried from the Bailiff’s Houfe,

Mrs. Rawlins. MyLord, when I was at Harfwelf's
the Bailiff>s Houfe, Mrs. Bayuton pretended to come
accideneally by, and that fhe heard my Voice, and
came in and faid, Hew do you do, Mrs. Rawlins ?
You know how I do, faid I. She pretended to help
me, and propofed to go to her Brother to bail me ;
and he came, and I was carried {rom thence in g
Coach to the Vine Tavern,—She was afked whether
be came ino the Coach 1o ber ?

Mrs, Rawlins, Yes, he did,

L. C. 7. Holt. Did you cry out when they put you
into the Coach ¢

Mrs. Rawlins, No, my Lord, 1 did not cry out
then, I made no Noife then.

L. C.%. Holt. What did be do then?

Mis, Razelins, They carry’d me to the Ziue Tx-
vern a Prifoner,

Mr. Soil. Gen.  She went willingly enough from
Flartzoells Houfe to the Vine Tavern, becaule fhe
thought that there fhe fhould be bailed.

L. C. . Helt. Mrs, What was the Pretence of
your being carried from Hartevel’s Houle ?

Mrs, Razwlins, My Lord, they would not tell me
before they carry’d me to the Place.

L.C. % Holt. Mr. Swendfen, Will you afk any
other Queftions ?

Prifsier. Not yet, my Lord. I defire the Parfon
may be called that marry’d us. W hich was done.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Come Doctor you are not upon
your Oath 3 How come you to be concern’d 1n this
Match ¢

Parfon. My Lord, it was at the Zine Tavern
where I faw them in Holbouin.

L. C. . Holt. Wasit the Mitre, orthe Vine ¢

Parfon. The Vine, I believe, my Lord,

L. C. 7. Holt. How came you there ?

Parfon. There was a Gentleman fetch’d me and
the Clerk from the Feet.

L. C. ¥. Helt. Whattoao?

Parfenr. He faid there was a Gentleman there to
fpeak with us. When we came there, the Clerk and
I went up one Pair of Stairs and drank a Pint of
Wine. Then we were led into another Rocom 3 1
aflced him what I was to do. He told me, forto
marry him to that Young Gentlewoman.

L.C. ¥. Helt. Was there a Licence ?

Parfoin. Yes; When I faw the Licence I read i,
and faw it a true Licence 5 Then I afked the Gen-
tlewoman her Name, to krow whether it was the
fame that was in the Licence 3 and found it was the
{ame.

L. C. 5. Helt. Was it written in the Licence, that
the Marriage was to be performed at the Ve
Tavern®

Parfor. No my Lord. But a Blank was lefr.

L. C. . Halt. Did you take the Queen’s Duty ?

Parfon. No, my Lord, but returned their Names
to the Supervifor: My Lord, when 1 afked her
Name, I alfo afked her whether fhe was willing to
be married. She faid the was willing. And another
Gentlewoman was with her, that faid fhe was her
Sifter : I faid to her ; Madam, if you confent, and
your Sifter is willing, here is a Licence, for I be-
lieve there 1s no Danger to marry you.

L.C.7.
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L. C. 7. Helr. Did you afic her any other way

Pint of Wine for the Coachman, but the Drawer

than in your Form, Pl you have this Man o your grumbi’d at 13, and faid he did not know who'd

.:U;‘{f{{f([ [ff:‘:mﬁ”d .?

pay for’e.  Thea Mr. Harteoel] the Bailiff told me

Parfor. 1 afl’d her, whether the was willing to it was an Arreft, and that ithe Parfon was to be Baill

marry, fhe fud, Yes, the was willing,

L. C. 7. s, But did you afk her before you
vou did the Ofhce?

" Parfm. Yes, my Lord, [I'did, and the confent-
¢l 1o it

Conifel. Pray who was the Perfon that came to
the Fleet to you, to carry you to the Tavern; was
it the Gentleman at the Bar ?

Parferr. No, "twas not L,

Mr, Monitague, How Jong was it before you
went to im, after vou went into the Tavern?

Paisit. My Clerk and I went in, and {at the
dnnki}lg a Pint of Wine, about a quarter of an
Hour 5 then we went to the Gentleman,

L. C.¥. Helt, Do you think that they {hould
erant Licences to marry in a Tavern, and out of
Canonical Flours ?

Perfon. Trever did 1tin all my Life before, and
never will do it again.

Me, Saf. Gen. What was the Reafon why you
ware conducted 1mto another Room, and not where
they wers ?

Laion. 1 know rot the Reafon.

LI, 821, Ges, How long were you in the Room
whete they were?

LParfur. T cannot well tell.

L.C. . IE:, Did you Mary them as foon as
vou camic in ?

Parfan. Almolt as foon.

Mr, Meaptaree, Did you ever marry any ata
Tavern beiore ?

PLarfoir, Noy, my Lord.

Mr. Soll, Genn, Wil your Lotdfhip be pleafed to
hear the Licence read ?

L.C.¥. Helt, Trmay be read. You may fee the
Date and the Names. T'he Licence 1s dated OF7, 14.
1702, The Names Flaagen Swendfer in the Parifh
of St. Paui’s Shadw:! 3 and Pleafant Rawling in the
Parith of St, Mary IPbitechapel.

Council, Is there any Blank left?

Paifin. Yes, there 1s a Blank lett, that the Mar-
riage may be in the Parith Church of St. Adary
I} tntechapel, el a Blank.

Mr, Mountgzue, Were you entertained there ¢

Paifoiz. Belore the Marriage the Clerkand T drank
2 Pint of Wine 1 the firlt Reom.

Mr, Mouitague, Had you any Victuals then ?

Parfoir, Wot before they marrted 5 but after.,

Mr., §¢k. Gei. Pray, Sir, did you vefpeak a Din-
ner before the Marriage ?

Parfor.. No, Sir, the Gentleman befpoke a Fowl,

My. Dai. Cotchett was called.

Prifoier. My Lord, I defire he may be afked
whether he heard any Noife, or whether any Vio-
lence was ofiered to the Young Woman e

L. C. 5. Helr. Did you hear any Noife or per-
ctive any Violence ofier’d to the Young Woman ?

Mz, Cetchbett. No, my Lord.

Prifiner.  Afk Mis, Cetchett whether any Noife
or Violence was offered to the Young Lady ?

L. C. . Helt. Pll afk her that Queftion: Was
there any Noife, or Violence ufed to the Young
L'.ld)f "’

Nys, Cotchett, No, my Lord, therewasno Noife;
they came In and afked for a Room, and | fhewed
them a lower Room, but they would not have that,
but went up. Soon after Mr, Holt the Vintner came
down and went out, and Mr. Hartewell calPd for a

for the Lady, and at that I very much wondered ;
and afterwards they told me there wasa Wedding
above, which we admired at, that there fhould be 4
Wedding and Bailiffis: And after all was over, the
Gentleman and the Lady went out at the Back-
Door, and took Coach.

Prifoner. Did you fec Mrs. Swendfen Difcontent-
ed when fhe went out?

Mrys. Cotchetf. No, my Lord, the feemed not Dif-
contented : What I know P} {peak, an no more.

Saraly Walker called.

L.C.¥. Hot. Doyou live at the Fine-Tavern ¢

IWalker. Yes, my Lord.

L. C.¥. Holt. What Place?

Walksr. Cook, my Lord,

L. C. ¥. Holt. Was you in the Houfe when that
Young Gentlewoman was carried Prifoner there ?
Where were you then?

IWalker, In the Bar, my Lord.

L. C. §. it Did you keep the Bar ?

IValker, No, my Lord ; bur 1 was wathing the
Bar at that tme.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Dud you hear any Noife ?

Walrer. No, my Lord.

L. C.¥. Holt. Did you hear of a Wedding?

[Valker. Yes, my Lord.

Prifoncr. My Lord, Will you be pleas’d to afk
her, if fhe was not had before the Recorder, and
promis’d a Reward if fhe would fay any thing for
tiseir Service.

L. C. . Hlt, What do you fay to this?

[Valker, My Lord, only this, That if I knew any
thing, and difcover’d it, I thould be fausfied for
my Trouble.

L. C. . Holt, Were you fent up Stairs to the
Gentlefolks to receive Directions {or the Supper?

Ialler. Yes.

Mt. So!l. Gen. When vou cameip into the Room,
what Condition was the Young Gentlewoman in ?

IWalker. She fat at one End of the Room, and
feemed to be very Melancholy. |

Mr. Soll. Geri, How did fhe lcok when fhe went
away ¢

[#alker. Not Melancholy then, ¥When Orders were
aiven about the Supper, I afked her what Sauce fhe
would have 3 fhe faid the would cat nothing at all.

M, Blake®s Daughter beisig called.

Prifener. Afk what fhe knew of my Wife?

Blake, My Lord, fhe carnied 1t very well 5 the
Lady was pleafed to fay that I fhovld wait upon
her. [ offered to pull off her Shoes and Stockings
when fhe went to Bed, the held out her Legs, and I
pull’d off her Shees and Stockings. |

Mr. Sell. Gen. Were you prefent at the begin-
ning, before fhe began undreffing ¢

Blake, Yes. _

Mr. Soff. Gen. When the was come 11, wcrc you
there all the Time?

Blake, No, 1 run toand fro.

Mr, Soll, Gen. Do you know Mrs. Baynton ¢

Blake. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Pray, did the ever hie-in at your
Houfe ?

Blake. Yes, Sir.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Hath fhe a Hufband ?

Blake. T cannot tell.

L. C. 7. Holt. Did you make the Bed 1n Mr.

Swendferw’s Chamber ?
Mr.,
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Blake. Yes, my Lord, I made it where he
lay, I faw nothing.
L. C.¥. Holt, How long was it after from the

Time they came, to the Time they went to Bed ¢
Blake. I know not, they came into the Houfe

juft about Dinner ¢

L. C. . Holt, What tune was 1t ¢
Blake. About three or four a-Clock in the Af-

ternoon, _
L. C. 7. Holt. How long was it after they came,

before they went to Bed ?

Blake. About two Hours, or thereabout,

L. C. . Holt. Do you think that 5 or 6 a-Clock
was a fit time to go to Bed?

Blake. 1 knew not what was betwixt them.

Mr, Soll. Gen. Is it ufual to go to Bed at that

time at your Houfe ¢ .
Blake, No; I did not know what was betwixt

then.

Mr. Monntague. What time did they rife again?

Blake. About 4-Clock,

Mr. Mountague, Did they lic at your Houfe that
Night ?

Blake. No ; they did not.

L. C.¥. Holt. When did they go away ¢

Blake. They went away as foon as Supper was
done.

Prifoner., My Lord, I defire the may be afked
whether my Wife was Sorrowful or Difcontented,

or unwilling to go to Bed. _
L. C. ¥. Holt. \What time was 1t they went to

Bed ¢
Blake. About Four a-Clock,
L. C. . Holt. Did you know what the Dehign

was ?
Blake. No, my Lord, I did not know any other-
wile than as Mr. Swendfen told me the Young Lady

was his Wife,
L.C. . Holr. What time did they rife again ?
Blake. About two Hours, they role up and got

to Supper.
Yudge Powis, What time did they go from your

Houfe ?
Blake. Between Eight and Nine a-Clock.

L. C. ¥. Hoit. Where did they go? Do you
know where they went ?
Blake. Indeed, my L.ord, I cannot tell.
Mr. Blake Sworn.
Mr. Soll. Gen. Mr. Blake, How long have you

known Mrs. Bayiton.
Mr. Blake. About 12 Years.
Mr. Soll, Gen. Did you ever know that Mrs.

Baynton had @ Hufband ?
Mr. Blake. 1 cannot tell, it was reported that fhe

had one,

Mr. Soll. Gen. Did you ever {ee Mr. Baynton
Did e own her to be his Wife ? |

Mr. Blake. My Lord, They did not lve with
me while he was living.

M. Soll. Gen. How long has he been dead ¢

Mr. Blake. 1don’t certainly remember 5 about
three or four Years.

Mr. Soll. Gen. How long is it fince Mrs. Bayntor
lay-in at your Houfe ?

Mr. Blake. About four Months ago.

Mr, Sofl. Gen. When fhe was fuch a Woman as
this, and brought a Gentlewoman to your Houle,
and ordered a Bed to be made, how could you ad-
mit her into your Houte again 2

Mr, Blake, 1 did not know that it was any clan-
deftine thing,

L. C. 7. Holt, Have you any more Witnefies,
Mr, Swendfen ?
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Prifoner. et the Conftable be call’d for.

L.C. . Holt. What Queftions fhall I afk him
) Prifoner. Afk him what it was my Wife faid to

im ?

Conftable. My Lord, the Man was in one Room
and the Woman in another ; when 1 opened the
Door the Gentleman afked her how fhe did.

L. C. J. Holt, What Gentleman was it ?

Conflable, It was the Gentleman that gave me
the Warrant, He faid to'her, Are you married ?
Yes; There is my Hufband, She feemed very
much fatisfied : He faid to her, Madam, I wifh
you much Joy, and if you pleafe to go to the Re.
corder’s, there 15 your Guardian to approve of
what you have done : But when fhe wae drefs’d,
fhe would go to the next Juftice of the Peace:
They could not agree abour going, but they drank
each of them a Glafs of Wine and went away,
The Gentleman that brought me the Warrant was
alfo with me.

L.C. ¥. Holt. Are they here?

Conftable. The Warrant was to take up the Bai-
hiffs and all together,

L. C. 7., Holt, Where do you live ?

Conflable. In Lincolyys- Inn- Ficlds,

L, C. 7. Holt. In what Houlfe did you fee them ?

Conflable. > Twas in Red-Lyoi-fireet, ever-againit
the Red-Lyon-Tavern,

L. C.¥. Holt. About what time of the Night
was it ?

Conflable. Abour Seven a-Clock,

L. C. . Helt. What Night was 1t ¢

Conftable, Indeed, my Lord, I cannot te]l.

Mr. Mountague. Whofe Houfe was it ? Was it
Blake's Houfe ?

Conflable, Yes, it was fo.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Where is your Warrant ?

Conflable. They took it away from me,

L. C. . Holt. But you ought not to have parted
from your Warrant,

Conflable. The Men were not there that the War-

rant run for.
L. C. 7. Holt. Was not the Warrant zgain{t Mr,

Swendfen ¢

Conflable, The Warrant was for {uch Men us
took the Young Gentlewoman away. I cannot tell
whether his Name was there or no.

L.C. F. Holt, Mrs, Rawlins what were thofe
Men who came along with the Conftable ; were
they your Friends?

Mrs. Rawlins, Yes, my Lord, they were my
Friends.

L. C. F. Holt, What is this Geary ¢

Mrs. Rawlins. He is an Acquaintance of Ma-
dam Bufly’s ?

L. C. . Hilt. Did you fay you confented to
the Marriage before them

Mrs. Rawlins, If 1did, T did not know what
I faid.

Prifoner. My Lord, 1 defire fhe may be afked
what fhe faid to the Conftable,

Mrs. Rawlins, My Lord, I do not know whe-
ther I faid fuch a thing 5 if I did, I wasnot in my
Senfes, 1 did not know what ] faid.

Prifener. My Lord, I hope you will give me
leave to fpeak. She faid to the Conftable, I am
very well content with the Marriage, and this 1s
the Ring that married us.

l L. C. ¥. Holt. What fay you to that, Mrs, Ratw-
s ¢ '
Mrs. Razwlins. T don’t know but I might; but |

did not know what I faid.
L.C.7.
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L.C. 7. Helt. Had you been in Bed then 2

Mrs. Rawlins, Yes, we were in Bed abouf an
FHour.

Mr. Sofl. Gen. Was there any Threats vled by
Mys, Bayutoin,

Mrs, Rawlins, Yes, my Lord 5 the faid that 1
muft own him for my Hufband, or clie we were
A1 ruined.

Fuftice Baber callzd.

Piiouer. My Lord, he is one of the chiefelt
\Wiefles that 1 have, [delire it may be afked him,
what my Wife declared to him of her own aceord.

¥, Buber, My Lord, T think it was Friday Nighe,
the 6th of this Month, the Prifoner here at the
Bar, and T fuppofe that may be the Gentlewoman
wa [peiuting 1o Der] and another Gentlewoman
and 2 Wonan cawie to me to my Houle in 20rk-
Builitazs, and defired me, but the Prifoner in par-
qeubie, that T would adiminifter a voluntary Qath
o tae young Lady, which fhe was willing to take,
eat the was married to this Gentleman., 1 told
him that 1 had nothing to do to confirm Marriages,
and told them T was loth to meddie with it.

I.C. 7. i, How came they toyou ¢ IHad
they any Oificers 2

7. Babzr. No, my Lord, they came in a Coach
without any Offeer, |

L. C.'f. Holt. \Was ther¢ any Qath taken ?

7. Baver. o, my Lord,

Conncil, What was thie Reafon that you did not
ternler the Quath,

7. Baber, Becaufe [ thought I had nothing to do

with 1t.

suanci!, N©What lor e 1¢ youn g~
Council. What fort of Frame was the vou oW

man in ?
7. Baber. In very great Diforder 5 not like a

Gentlewoman, but in a very confufed Condition :
She fpoke whar the faid by her own Confent; buc
with much Dilorder.

Prifuzer., My Lord, 1 defire it may be afked
Tuftice Baber, whether I defired him to tender the
Quth 10 my Wik,

L.C.Y. Holt. Did Mr. Swendfein defire you to
teader the Qath 2

7. Baber, Fle did put me upoen it at firft,

Piifoner, 1 ne'er did fo 1 all my Life.

My, Bullley calied,
] Prifsizer. My Lord, I defire this Man may be
1eard,

VIr. Bulkicy. This Gentleman, on the 7th of No-
vemberr, n the Forenoon, ftopped at the Porch of
my Door, and gave me Orders to wait upon him,
upon the Bulinefs of my Calling,.

L.C. ¥. Holt. What 1s your Calling ¢

Mr. Bulkizy. A Barber, He told me that he was
married, T afked him, Whatare you married? Yes,
lud hey, Tam; and here’s my Wife ; and the Gen-
tlewoman (he faid fo too. At that, I withed them
much Joy and Happinels, The young Woman faid,
one didd not queftion it, fince what fhe had done,
was with her own voluntary Confent,

AMyr. Hudlon called,

Prigrer, What did you hear my Wife {ay ?

Mr. 1ludfen. When Mr. Swendfenr, with his Wife,
came to our Houfe, (my Lord) he bid her ke
WIr, Blake by the Fland and afk him how he does.
She faid, Yes, my Dear. She went into the Houfe
nd took my Malter by the Hand, afk’d him how
he did, My, Scoendfzn faid, This is my dear Wife ;
ncd fhe faid, This is my dear Hufband, and took
him about che. Neck and kiffed him,

L.C.F. Helt, What Trade are you ?

Mr. Hudfon, AnUpholfterer 5 M, Blake is my
Matfter,

L. C. 7. Holt. You fay the young Woman took
Mr, Blake by the Hand, and faid, How doyou do #
Did the ever fee Mr, Blake before ?

Mr, Hudfor, Not that 1 know of, But My
Swendfen faid, This is my dear Wife,

Mz, Soll. Gen, When wras this ?

Mr. Hudfon. On Saturday Morning,

M. Sell. Gen. If they lay there over-niglit, what
Neceffity was there for Swendfen to tell Mr., Blaké
that was his dear Witfe,

Mr. Hudfon. He did not fay fo to him; but to
his Wife 5 and fhe kiffed him.

Mr, Monntague. What need he to tell Mr, Blake
that was his Wife, when he knew it before ?

Mr, Hudfon. Why may not I, if 1 had a Wife;
come to her and fay, My dear Wife ?

Mr, Soll. Gen. Mr, Blake, Pray was Mrs, Raw-
fins at your Houle before then ?

Mr, Blake, Never, as I know of,

Mpr. Green called.

Prifoner. T defire that this Man be afked wha
he heard my Wife fuy before the Recorder 2

L. C. ¥. Holt, What did you hear the young
Woman fay before the Recorder ?

Mr, Green, She owned that fhe was matried to
the Gentleman, by her own Confent, without any
Force or Compulfion,

L.C. 7. Holt. Dhd fhe matry him willingly 2

Mz, Green, Yes, my Lord, fhe faid {o.

Prifoner. My Lord, 1 defire he may tell how
fhe behaved herfelf there,

L. C. 5. Holt. What faid fhe ¢

Mr. Green. She faid fhe was married to that Gen-
tleman without Force or Compulfion.

Conncil. Did fhe fay nothing elfe ¢

Mr. Green. This is all that I remember.

Mr, Sdll. Genr. Did the Gentlewoman continue in
that Tone all the Time fhe was at the Recorder’s ?

Mr, Green. No, I believe fhe did not.

L, C. . Holt, Was the Recorder by then ?

Mr, Green. Yes, the Recorder was by, Then
he afked her whether fhe was married by her own
Confent.

L. C.¥. Holt. What did the Recorder fay more?

Mr. Green. He faid, he was afraid the was drawn
in by this Man,who he feared was a Spark and Bully
of the Town.

Council. Pray, when fhe faid the was married by
her own Confent, had Mr. Swendfen her Hand m
his ?

Mr, Green. Yes.

L.C. 7. Hit. Then Iafk you whether Swendfer
was afrerwards withdrawn ¢

Mr. Green, He was fo.

L.C. 7. Holt. And did you hear what fhe faid
after that ?

Mr. Green. No, [did not, I was thruft out.

L. C. ¥. Holt, Where do you live ?

Mr. Green. I live in Carter-Lane.
the General Polt-Ofhce. _

L.C. . Holt, How came you to be acquainted
with this Matter.

Mr. Green. My Lord, I came into Red-Lion-
Street accidenzally, two Doors oft Mr, Swendfen’s -
I went to Mr, Swwendfen’s Lodgings, and afked how
he did. T was told he was very well, that he had mar-
ried a Fortune, and was in Bed with his Lady.

L. C. ¥. Holt. What was the Man’s Name ¢

Mr. Green. His Name was Blake, my Lord 5 it

was a pure accidental Thing to me.
LC.7.

I belong to
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L.C. ¥ Holt. Flow long have you known My,

Swendfen 2

Mr. Green. I have known him feveral Years.

L. C. }. Fblt, Have you dealt with him ?

Mr. Green, Yes, ] have ; and I believe here are
many prefent, can give a better Account of him
than I can,

Prifiner. My Lord, I defire he may ve afked,
what my Wife faid to the Recorder.

Mr, Green, My Lord, upon Examination fhe
feemed;to be much furprized upon that Occafion,
bur what fhe did, fhe faid was voluntarily 5 and
that as he was her Hufband, fo fhe would own
him 5 and when fhe was afked whether fhe was in
Drink ; fhe faid fhe was never given to drinking.

Prifoner. And as I have been seprefented by
fome as a Bully of the Town, I defire I may have
my Friends heard, as to my Life and Converu-
fion,

One of bis Friends called.

L. C. ¥. Hblt. Where do you live ¢

Auftw. At Rateliff 5 my Education has been at
Sea. I have been acquainted with Mr, Swendfen
two Years, and have found him to be a very honeft
and ingenious Man.

L. C. 7. Il Had you any Dealings with him?

Anfea, Yes, my Lord, 1have dealt with him for
3000 /. and better ?

L. C. ¥ Holt. In what manner did you deal
with him ?

Aufw. 1 conligned my Effelts to him.

L. C. 7. Holt, From whence ?

Anfio. From Englund to Nerway.

L. C. 7. [lslt. How could they be confligned to
him when he was here 2

nfiy, e was not here then, but at Noriway,
In May 1701, he camc over, and had a Ship of mrne,
called the Swan, and fold her for my Account.

Coun. Did you apprehend that he traded for
himfelf, orasa Ituctor?

Anfw. He traded for himfelf 5 and I can fhew
you the Bills of Lading that will fhew they were
for his Account : And I believe all that knew him,
will give him the Charaéter of an honeft Man.

My, Yvans called,

L. C ¥ Holt. What do you know of Mr,
Siendfen

Mr. Evais. 1 was in Noerway, and found then
that he lived in very good Repute and Credit there
among all People, the beft of Trading People 5 and
[ found he had a familiar Converfe with them : 1
was with him at the Generance and Admirance,
which are the chief Offices in the Place : I was
by his Letter of Recommendation credited by the
molt eminent Merchants of Norzway. At that Time
he had feveral Ships configned to him for Lading,
at a Time when Goods were difficulz to be gotten,
and he did load them.

Another Witiefs called.

L. C. 7. Holt., What do you know of M.
Swendfen ¢

Anfer. My Lord, I wasborn in Norway, where
this Gentleman lived for fome Years, and was
efteemed worth 10000 Dollars, I have had no
ereat Dealings with him, but when he wanted Mo-
ney, when Money was fhort with him, Ilent him
fome, which he paid again very honeftly.

Prifoner. Call Fobn Shorey.

Shorey. The Knowledgze I have had of him

was cauled by his buying feveral Parcels of Goods

of me, and order’d them to be fhipp’d, and patd
me honeltly for them.
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Another Witnefs colled,

L. C. 7. Helt. What fay you ?

Anfio. 1 have known this Gentleman aboy
two Years : The firlt of my Knowledge was, |
had a Bill of Exchange of 50 /. drawn upon l;im
which he paid very honeftly. I never heard nn;
otherwile, but that he was a very honeft, jult Man,

Mr. Soll. Gen. 1 would nbfcrvc' to your Lordihip,
that the principal art of our Evidence the Prifones
hath given no Anfwer tos thatis, the Force: If i
taking and detaining Mrs, Raselius was by Force, 15
feveral of our Witnefles have teltified : Andif (e
marricd while the was under that Force, no {ih-
fequent Act or Confent of hers can lefien the O
fence, 1t the Jury could give Credic to the Pri
foner’s Evidence, and belicve her Confent was real.
The Gendewoman did herfelf confefs, thar alter
fhe had bzen burried from Tavern to Tavern, fhe
did declare he was her Hufband, and tha fhe
confented to the Marrage 3 but whar afterwards
happen’d, clamly fhews that it was through Fear
and nothing elfe : IHad fhe realiy confented to the
Marriage, why was fhe carred to the Tuftice of
Peace to take an Oarh, that fhe was marricd by her
own voluntary Confent 2 Whillt the Prifoner "held
her by the Hand before the Recorder, fhe confefled
that the married with her free Confent:  As foon
as the Prifoner was withdrawn, fhe burtt outinto 2
Flood of Tears, and confefled that fhe was married
by Conftraint. My Lord, there 1s but one thirg
more [ would anfwer, and that 1s the Licence which
was given in Evidence to give Colour to this
Marriage 5 but this plainly fhews, that this whole
Management was the Prifoner’s contriving.  The
Licence bears Date three Weeks beflore the Time
of the Marriage, which fhews how long they had
waited for an Opportunity to accomplifli this De-
fign. When the Prifoner took out this Licence he
{wore her Age tobe 25, and his to be 33.

My Lord, now we will cxamine fome Witnefles
to thefe Facts, and fo w’ll have done.  She was
carried to Jullice Baber to take a voluntary Qath,
If your Lordfhip pleafes he may again be called
We will examine him upon Quth.

Fuftice Baber cafled.

Mr. Soll. Genn, Pray, Sir, give an Account of the
whole Matter.

%. Baber. They came to me about § or g a-Clock
on Friday Night the 6th of this Month ; and the
Prifoner here told me the Purpoit of his coming,
that it was a licht and fhort Bufinels ; and pomnt-
ing to the Gentlewoman, fiid, that fhe came
tale a voluntary Oath, that fhe was married to him
with her own Confent; fhe fiid fhe was married,
and that wich her Confent, I told her, I had no-
thing to do with confirming Marriages.  He told
me, amongft oiher Things, that he had a Certifi-
cote, You know that beft, taid [ 5 a Marriage 15 a
Maurriage, and I have nothisg to do wiin 1.

Mr. Sell. Gen. But wien fhe told you that fhe
was married, what Condition was fhein 7

Y. Baber. She was in a very great Diforder.

Another 17 tnefs.

Mt Sell. Gen. Was yeu before the Recorder

Witnefs, Yes, on Saturday the 7ih of this No-
vember, While Mr. Swendjin held her by the Hland
the owned the Marriage 5 but when he was with-
drawn fhe threw herfelf upon me, and defired me
to ftand by her, or fhe was undone.

Mr, Sofl. Gen, What Account did the give when
Mr. Swendfen was withdrawn?

Aufie, She fpoke much to the fame Purpofcﬂﬂs
1
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(he has done here 5 and that what {he had done
was all by Force, and out of Fear.
Mr. Taylor call’d and fworn,

Mr. Soll. Gen. Do you know any Oath the Party
took, 10 the taking of this Licence ?

Mr. Taylor. Yes, my Lord.

Mr. Sall. Gen. How old did he fay the Gentle-
woman was ?

Mr. Taylor. He faid that [he was 25, and that
= was 35 Years old.

Mr. Soll. Genr. Are you fure he took the Oath ¢

Mr. Taylr, Yes, my Lord, there is the Surro-
qute’s Hand, and the Prifoner’s own Hand to it.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Were you prefent ? |

Mr. Ta;lor. No, I was not, but my Clerk was.

Mr, Serj. Dariel. My Lord, there’s his Hand
10 it, and we can prove his Hand,

Mr, Solf. Genr, My Lord 1t 1s an A& of the
Court,

Cen. My Lord, I hope that may be of the
fume Force as a Depofition in Chancery.

L.C. F. Holt. 1t cannot be read as Evidence,
My, Toylor, did he ever take a Licence at any other
Time ¢

Mr. Taylor, Wo, my Lord.

L.C.f. Holt. Was the Licence dated that Day
he took 1t ?

Mr, Zaylor. It is always dated the fame Day it
is talzen.

Mr. Monitague. My Lord, T defire Mrs. Bufdy
miy be afked, whether fhe talked at the Picture-
Drawer’s about any Thing of Love, or no? Mrs.
Bafhs, the Queftion 1s, Whether or no you talked
any Thing about Love at the Picture-Drawer’s ?

Mrs, Bufly. My Lord, Mrs. Bayuton delired me
to go wih her to the Picture-Drawer’s to fee her
Picture drawn 3 we were talking by the Fire-fide
that Mrs, Rawlins had fpoke by way of Difcourage-
meat to Mr, Pughy Mrs, Beynton {aid that fhe
thought her Brother would make her a very good
Hufband, and was able to make her a confiderable
Jomnture here in England. My Lord, Mr. Puph
cane, by the Confent of Friends, on honourable
Terms.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Gentlemen of the Jury, This Pri-
foncr 1s indi€ted for Felony, in taking away by
Force Mrs, Pleafant Ratw!tis, and marrying of her
this is Felony by the Statute of the Third of Henry
VII. which enaéts, ¢ That if any Perfon fhall
“ take any Woman that hath any Subftance m
“ Goods or Lard, againft her Confent, and marry
““ or defile her, heand his Procurers and Receivers,
“ fhall be adjudged to be Felons.

Now it hath been proved to you, that this young
Woman had a Perfonal Eftate left her by her Fa-
ther, to the Value of 2000/, and had another
Eftae in Land, to the Valuc of 20/, per Ammm,
It any one thall take her away by Force, and marry
her, he 1s.ouiliy of Felony by that Statute.  You
have heard that fhe was placed by her Guardi-
an, under the Tuition of Mrs. Bufby, who took a
Loiging about 3 Years laft paft, at one Mrs. Night-
mgales, i Stretten-Growids, Weftminfter 3 and
boarded with her,who took Boarders into her[doufe;
and if any I‘riend of her Boarders came to Dinner
there, fhe receiv’d 124d. per Head: About 3Weeks
or a Month before Michaelmas laft paft, there came
one Mrs, 8¢, Fobir, and recommended to her a Lodger
of her Acquaintance, and defirerd that fhe might board
with her as others did, and faid the was 2 Widow
that'came out of the Country about a Suit of Law,
W reprefented her to be a {ober Perfon.  Mus.
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Nightingale vefufed her at that Time, and heard no
more of her till about 3 Weeks after; then fhe,
Mrs, 8t Fobn, rewrns and prevails with M,
Nightirgale, to take her Acquaintance jnto her
Foufe. Mrs. Bayaten that 1s mentioned in the In-
dictment, was the Perfon defigned by Mis, 81, obir ;
and fhe came to Mrs. Nightingale, and defired to
be with her as other Boarders were 5 fhe pretended
to be of very good Quality, fo fhe was taken into
the Houfe 3 her Carriage and Demeanor there were
very civil, and fhe pretended fhe had a Brother,
that would come to fee her : The Prifoner at the Bar
was the Perfon that came, and fhe call’d him Bro-
ther, and owned him for fuch ; he dined there
{everal Times with the reft of the Boarders 3 he faid,
He had an Intere{t in Shipping, and invited all the
Yamily to goon Board a Ship. They accepted of his
Invitation, and were very well entertained, but {u-
{pected nothing 5 but at length it was obferved there
was too great a Iamiliarity between Mrs. Bagnfon
and the Prifoner, more than was common betwixt
{o near Relations 5 they aflerwards perceived that
Mzs, Baynton cwas wuclinable to drink, which caufed

fome Fealoufy of ber in the Family,” and fhe per-

celving the Strangenefs of the Family, gave Mrs.
Nightingale notice that fhe fhould g0 in a fhort
Time, for that fhe had finithed her Bufinefs at
Law, and that the Town was chargeable, and fhe
intended to Le gone at fuch a Time,  When that
Time was cxpired, fhe pretended to Mrs. Nightin-

gale that there was another Thing had happen’d

that would derain her a Week longer :  She con-
{ented that fhe thould ftay. Now you may obferye by
the' Evidence, that 1t was ufual for Mrs. Bufby and
Mrs, Rawlins to go to Oxenden Chapel on Friday 4
which Mrs. Baynton very well knew, and pretends
that fhe was to go in a Coach that way into Golden-
Square, and invites them to go in her Coach, and
promifed to fet them down by the Chapel: They
accepting the Invitation, and being come near the
Place, the Coach was ftopped by feveral Men.
Hariwell the Bailiff opened the Door, got into the
Coach, faid it was an Arreft. At which Mis, Baufly
was very much concerned, and thought this Arreft
was for Mrs. Baynton, and that fhe and Mrs, Rawlins
might go out, for they were not concerned in the
Matter, At lalt they perceived it was of themfelves ;
and then Mrs. Baystonr pretended to be concerned
for them : And when the People in the Street afked
what was the Caufe of the Diforder ; the Bailifis
faid, that they were Cheats and Trading-Women
that owed People Money, and now they are Arrefted
for it. Under this pretended Arreft, they were car-
ried to the Star and Garter Tavern in Diry-Laii,
and p it into a Back-Room. They were in a great
Confternation at their being Arrefled, being not
confcious to themfelves that they owed Money to
any Perfon, One came to Mrs. Bufby, and faid, See
that your Name be right, that you are rightly Ar-
refted. Another of the BaililJs, by Force, _carry’d
away Mrs Rawlins, faying, fhe was his Prifoner 3
and it was pretended, that one Bailfl’ had a Pro-
cefs to carry the onc to Newgalte, and another had
another Procefs to take the other to the Marfhalfea.
Mis. Rawlins was carried to Hartwell's Houfe, When
fhe was there, Mrs, Baynion pretended that coming
by accidentally, fhe heard her Voice, and came in,
and feem’d to pity her, and faid, Madam, will none
of your Friends help you? She propofes her Bro-
ther to be Bail, and Holt he was to be the other,
Under that Pretence of being bailed, they carty her

to-the Vine Tavern in Holbourn, wheve Hartwell pre-
tended
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 tended to be very willing to take his Bail, and faid
he knew Holt, but queltioned the Prifoner. It will
appear to you from this Evidence, and that which
follows, of this Force and Contrivance, that their
Defign was to bring about the Marriage 3 for when
the Bail was pretended to be refufed, Mrs. Bayirton
propoles a Marriage between the Prifoner and Mrs.
Rawlins, as the beft way to make an end of this
troublefome Bufinefs : She would have the Ring
from her Finger, to get aWedding-Ring made by it.
Says Mrs. Rawlius, I have no mind to be married :
Says Mrs. Baynton, it's beft for you to be married 3
and threatned Mirs. Rawlins, that 1if fhe did not
marry, fhe fhould be committed to Newgate. There
was a Parfon and Clerk ready, who were called to
do the Office. The young Woman being under this
Terror, the Office of Matrimony was performed 3
and fhe was forthwith conveyed to one Blake’s, and
by Conftraint there was put to Bed in the Day-time.
You muft go to Bed, fays Mrs, Baynton : T will not
o0, fiys the young Woman : And fome Violence
was ufed to force her Cloaths off, and fhe was put
to Bed, where fhe lay about an Hour or Two, and
thereby the Marriage was fuppofed to be confum-
mated.

‘The Prifoner, on the next Day, being difcourfed
with abour this Matter, and afked, whether he was
Mrs. Baymtais Brother ? No indeed, fays he; I
made ufe of her as my Tool 5 fhe hath done my Job
for me; Il make her Satisfaction for it, not To-
morrow, being Sunday, but on Mouday 1 will do it,
and never fee her Face more. Afier all this Evidence,
the Prifoner doth infift upon his Innocence, becaufe
he was not prefent ac the Arreft 5 and hath produced
feveral Witnefies to prove, that this young Woman
was very well fatisfy’d with the Marriage 5 and that
Reverend Divine the Parfon afked her, whether fhe
was +illing to be married to the Gentleman?  And
the faid fhe was willing.  And then Mr. Blake’s
Maid and Daughter faid, that the defired them to
pluck off her Shoes and Stockings, unirefs her, and
put her to Bed.  And that very Night the Prifoner
and Mrs. Rawlins went to Mr. Baber’s, a Juftice of
the Peace, at York-Buildings, to take a voluntary
Oath before him, that fhe married this Prifoner by
her own free Conlent,  Mr, Baber would not Admi-
nifter the Oath.  And that afterward they Bedded
together that Night, and the next Day they went
abroad together ina Coach ; and meeting his Barber,
the Prifoner bids him come to him to fhave him,
and fays to him, Here is my Wife 5 the faid like-
wile, that he was her Hufband: He withed her much
Joy 3 fhe reply’d, that fhe did not queltion it, fee-
ing that what the had done was by her free and full
Confent 3 and declared, fhe was well fatisfied with
what was done.  The next Proof is of their Return
to Blake’s Houfe, where they firlt lodged 5 the Pri-
{foner Swendfen orders his Wife to take Mr, Blake
by the Hand, and afk him how he did ¢ Which fhe
did, and expreffed to him how well fhe was pleafed
with the Marriage, faying, This is my dearHuiband,
and kiffed him.  His Witnefs tells you, on Friday
Night a Conftable comes with the Recorder’s War-
rant, to apprehend the Perfons fuppofed to have
committed chisForce 3 and difcourfing with her, fhe
exprefled her felf very well futisfied with her Mar-
riage, fo that they defilted from ferving theWarraat,
Ihen he relies upon his Reputation, as being a Man
of great Credit, and having had Goods configned to
him, and paid Bills of Exchange 5 and produces
Witnelles to prove, thathe was a Trader in Norway,
where he lived, and in good Credit, remitted Mo-
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ney, drew and paid Bills of Exchange, freighted
Ships, &c. and was in very good Efteem by the
chiefeft in thofe Parts. “Then he called other Wit
nefles, to let you know how the young Woman ¢gp.
ried it ac the Recorder’s; that there fhe faid, thae
the was married by her own frec Confcnt: &7
Gentlemen, this is the Sum of the Evidence that he
hath given. To which it is replied, That as to what
was faid before the Recorder, that is true 5 fo lope
as he had her Hand in his, fhe declared her Confeny
to, and Satisfaction in the Marriage ; but when he
was withdrawn, and fhe was examined by her felf
fhe declared her Marriage was by Violence anri
Force, that fhe did 1t out of FFear, ¢, Then they

tell you again, of a Licence that was taken out b}

him, and produced by him, but bore Date alnioft
ThreeWeeks before this Marriage wasaccomplifh'd:
It was obferv’d alfo upon the Licence, that this Li.
cence was to marry Mrs, Rawlins of the Parifh of
St. Mary White Chapel, when fhe lived not there,

This is the Sum of the Evidence on both Sides,
and thefe Obfervations are to be made from it:

I. You areto know, Thatif fhe be taken away
by Force, and afterwards married, tho’ by her Con-
fent, yetis he guilty of Felony : For it is the takine
away by Force that makes the Crime, if there bez
Marriage, tho’ by her Confent.

I1. In the next place 1t1s to be obferved, That fhe
was taken away by Force, and a Stratagem was ufed
togive an Opportunity thereunto, and the Arreft was

but a Colour.

I11. You may confider upon the Evidence, how
far the Prifoner was concerned in the firft Force: It
is true, he was not at the Arreft, and did not appear
unti] the was brought to Hartwell’s Houle 5 and un-
der that Pretence of Bailing her, fhe was carried to
the Vine Tavern, where there was a Parfon ready,
and the Marriage was had 1n fuch manner as you
have heard. Now, confidering thefe Matters, it is
left to you to determine, whether the Marriage was
not the End of the Arreft ¢ And if fo, how 1t would
be poflible for fuch a Force to be committed to ef-
fect the Prifoner’s Defign, and he not be privy toit ?

IV, If it can be imagined, thathe was not privy
to the colourable Arreft, yet fhe was under a Force
when he came to her at Harfwelf’s Houfe 5 and
from thence fhe was carried by Force unto the Vine
Tavern, where the was married. That is a forcible
taking by him at Hartwell’s Houfe ; and tho’ when
fhe was at the Vine Tavern fhe did exprefs her Con-
fent to be married, yetitappears even then fhe was
under a Force, and had no Power to help her felf.
Fer Marriage was by Force, when fhe was carried
to Blake’s, and put to Eed 5 all this was Force:
Nay, when fhe was carry’d to the Juftice of Peace,
even then fhe was under a Force 5 and all that fhe
faid was not freely, but out of Fear: Sucha Force
would avoid any Bond, for fhe was under Imprifon-
ment. But however, if the firlt taking was by
Force, and fhe had confented to the Marriage, the
Offence is the fame, 1t 15 Felony.,

And as to his Reputation, it is poffible he might
have been an honeft Man : A Man 1s not born 2
Knave, there muft beT'ime to make him fo, nor is he
prefently difcovered after he becomes one. A Man
may be reputed an able Man this Year, and yet b
a Bepoar the next : It is a Misfortune that happens

to many en, and his former Reputation will fig-
nity



r702. B. R 176.The Trials of Sarah Baynton, &.

nify nothing to him upon this Occafion.  If you be
(iisfied upon the Evidence, chat he 15 guilty of this
Crime, you are to find him fo 5 if not, you ought to
acquit him. .

Mr.Swendfen. 1 defire, myLord, that my Wite may
bs afked, Whether fhe did not, upon her Knees,
{wear, {he went away from me as a good a Maid as
fhe came to me ?

L.C. §. Holt. That is a Queftion nced not be
2fl’d, fince tie Marriage is {o plainly proved, which
i< (ufficient to bring you wictnin the Statute.

.F-
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The Fury defire the AiF may be read.

L. C.%. Hdlt. Letit be read, It was fo.

The Jury afk Mrs. Raswlins, how old fhe is?

Mrs. Rawlins. Eighteen at Candlemas.

L. €. ¥. Holt. Would you afk any Queftions up-
on this At 2

Jury. No, my Lord.

Then the Fury went out, and after three Hours
Say, brought bim in Guilty.

He was fentenced afterwards along with Sarah
Baynton,

-

CLXXVI. The Trials of SaARAH BAYNTON, JOHN HARTWELL,
and JoHN SPURR, at the Queen’s-Bench, for forceably taking

away Mrs. Pleafant Rawlins, and procuring her to be mar-
ried to Haagen Swendlen, Nov. 25. 1702. Mich., 1 Ann.

NS4 Motion was made by the Queen’s
NI ST

A | Council, for putting off this Tral to
P D‘EJ Friday, November the 2%th, but his

L™

“

[

e o

Lordthip would not grant it, but or-
dered it to begin prefently,

The Prifeners were call’d to the Bar, and a Procla.
mation made for all concern’d to attend,

The Jury were {fworn, whofe Names are, viz.

Giles Ridle, Gent.

Robert Legg, Gent.

Thomas Elton, Gent.

Charles Longland, Genl,
Simon Smith, Gent,

f Heniy Lobb, Gent,

Robert Lympany, Gent,
Jobn Outing, Gent, |
Lrancis Parr, Gent,
Richard Bealing, Gent.
Charles Murry, Gent,
Jobin Cannon, Gent.

Arab Baynton, Fobn Hartwell,
and Fobn Spurr, hold up your
Hands, [#bich they did.| Gentlemen of the Jury,
look upon the Prifoners, and hear their Charge.
Thein the Indictment was read as in the firft Trial : Upon
which they were Arraigned, and plead not Guilty.
“Sit Simon = Mr, Soll, Gen., May it pleafe your
Harcurt. 1 ordthip, and you Gentlemen of the
Jury : The Prifoners at the Bar, together with one
Swendfen, {tand indicted before you fora very great
Offence ; Scwendfen (for whofe Sake this Felony was
committed, for which the Prifoners are now to an-
fwer) has already had his Trial : The Three Pri-
foners at the Bar were his Accomplices.  The Law,
to thew how odious fuch Offences are, and to deter
all Perfons whatfocver from committing them, has
made no Diftintion between the Principal and Ac-
ceffories : The Abettors, Procurers, or Contrivers,
are declared and enacted to be, and to be judged as
principal Felons, The Gentlewoman mentioned in
the Indi¢tment, Mrs. Pleafant Rawlins, was the
Daughter of Mr. #illiem Rawlins, who left her a
good Fortune: Her Grandfather hkewtife left her
an I{tate of Inheritance. FHer Father being dead,
her Guardian, Mr. Bufby, placed her under the Care
of his Sifter, who boarded with her at one Mrs.
Nightingals’s, Mrs. Baynton (one of the Prifoners at
the Bar) and Mr., Swenden lodged at Mr. Biake’s,
Vor. V.

Clerk of the Ar,

where they projected what was afterwards put in
practice. Lodgings were to be taken for Mrs. Bayn-
ton at Mrs. Nightingale’s. In order thereunto, ’twas
pretended, That fhe was a Country Gentlewoman
who came to Town about a Law-Suir, and being
very tender of her Reputation,would board in a fober
Family. DBy thefe Infinuations, Lodgings were
taken for her at Mrs. Nightingale’s, -where ina lit-
tle Time fhe got acquainted with the Family 5 and
in Converfation, as often as ’twas poffible, would
take fome Opportunity to difcourfe of her own Af-
fairs, particularly of her Relations, of her dear Bro-
ther Swendfen, whowas never mention’d without ma-
ny Commendations, Mr. Swendfen, tho’ no ways
related to her, often vifited her under that Charac-
ter: But Mrs, Bayator having lived a very {can-
dalous lewd Life in Town, could not long continue
under the Difguife fhe came in to Mrs, Nightingale's.
Intimation was given to the Family of her true
Charaéter, and Notice thereof was foon given to her
by her Maid. Whereupon fhe refolved to quit her
Lodging ; and being paft all Hopes of betraying
Mrs, Rawlins, and wheedling her into her Ruin
with her Confent, fhe enters upon another Project,
which was to bring about the Marriage by Force
and Violence.

In this Contrivance, you will find every one of
the Prifoners at the Bar had their feveral Parts (o
alt 3 Hartwell was to get a Writ, Mis, Bayiuton, who
could not be concerned in the Execution of theWrir,
was to contrive when and in what manner it mighe
be exccuted : Hartwell fues forth the Writ, and
Mis. Baynton appoints the Time, She knowing 1t
to be the ufual Cultom for Mrs. Bufly and Mrs.
Rawlinsto go to Church on Fridey Mornings, fhe
prepares a Coach, and profers her Service to fet
them down at the Chapel, and prevail’d with them
to come into the Coach, As they werc going to-
ward the Chapel, Hartwell the Bathfl ftops the
Coach, and gets into it 5 and Spurr conducts the
Ceach to a Houfe that they had prepared for their
Purpofe. When Hartwell got into the Coach, Mrs.
Rawlins and Mrs, Bufby, not imagining themfelves
to be concerned, defired him to et them go out ;
No, fays Hartwell to Mrs. Bufby, it is youthat l am
concerned with 3 let you and I have a few Words to-

Ooo erether,
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gether, and all Things will be fet to rights.  But
Mrs, Bufby refufing to have any Difcourfe with him,
away they were all carry’d (Mrs, Bufby, Mrs. Racw-
finsy, and Mrs, Bayuion) to the Star and Garter
Tavern in Drury-Lane. While Mrs. Bufby and Mirs.,

Rawlins were kept together, they had no Hopes of

making Mrs. Rawlins marry ; and therefore Hartwell
by Force takes away Mrs. Ratwlins, and carcies her
to his own Houle : Spurr; who had no Procefs what-
foever agamnft Mrs. Bufby, yet keeps her Prifoner at
the Star and Garier.  Mrs, Baynton feeing her
Friends ufed in this manner, pretended a very great
Concern, and out of Kindnefs went to find their
Friends to bail them. Mrs, Rawlins had not been
long at Hartwell’s before Mrs, Baynion came into
the Floufe to her, in a great Surprize to find her
there, telling her fhe fancied, as the pafled by Hart-
well’s Houle, the heard Mrs, Rawiing’s Name men-
tioned : Immediately fhe gave her a very melan-
choly Account, how fhe had been irt Search for her
Friends 3 but none could be found, and to Goal fhe
mult go, except Bail could be got, At laft fhe
thought of her Brother, fhe was jure he would be
her Bail 5 and having placed him hard by, fhe brings
him to Hartwell’s, When he comes there, all Three
of them (Hartswell, Mrs, Baynton, and Mr. Szwend-
Jen) under Pretence of fetting Mrs, Rawlins at Li-
berty, take her to another Tavern, where fhe was
plainly told, fhe mult marry Mr. Swendfen, or go
to Newgale, and undergo the Mileries of a Goal:
If the married, then all {hould be well. The Cir-
cumftances of the Taking, Detaning, and Marry-
ing this Gentlewoman at that Tavern, and of the
feveral Faéls I have mentioned, our Witnefles will
prove to you.
Mr. Buiby fwoern.

Mr, Serj. Darsel, T pray give his Lordthip an
Account of this young Gentlewoman, Mrs, Pleafant
Razwlins,

Mr, Bufly. My Lord, her Father, Mr, William
Rawlins, was a Man of very good Ettate : e or-
dered his Eftate to be fold to pay his Debts and Le-
gacics, and the Overplus was given to his Daughter
this young Gentlewoman, which was about 2000 /.
Her Grandfather likewife by Will left her an Eftate
of 201, per Aunum.

Mrs. Nightingale fiors,

Mr, Sery. Dariel. Mrs, Nightingale, pray give
an Account to his Lordfhip, how long this Gentle-
woman lived in your Houle,

Mrs, Nightingale, My Lord, the hath lived with
me about three Years ;3 and fince Mrs, Bufly and
Mrs. Rawihis came to live with me, my Hufhand
died ¢ I amlikewife a Widow too ; we all lived to-
gether.  Mis. Sz, Fobn, about nine Weeks before
this Fact, came to me, and afked me whether I took
Boarders ¢ I faid, No, I would take none without
it were thofe Ladies that boarded with me before.
She told me, this was a Country-Gentlewoman that
was coming to Town about a Suit of Law 3 fhe was
a very good Woman, and would be near a Church,
She told me, that fhe wasa-kin to the Lady Aune
Bayitorr, and a great deal more that I cannot re-
member : But I told her, I did not defign to take
Boarders.  She caune about three Weeks after, and
afked me, whether I was in the fame Mind? She
told me the Gentlewoman was come to Town : She
told me fhe was an extraordinary good Woman,
and that her Fufband was acquainted with the Fa-
mily, and gave her an extraordinary Charaéter.
She faid fhe would not have parted with her herfelf,
but that fhe did not take in Boarders, and therefore

thought it not worth her while to take her in.

L. C. 7. Hoit. Did the fay, the was her Hu(
band’s Acquaintance ?

Mrs, Nightingale, She told me, That her Hul.
band was very well acquainted with the Famil y. She
told me, Mrs, Bayuton came to Town on Saturday
Night, and was very weary with her Journey, She
faid to me, Madam, if you pleafe the thall come
to you, and recommend her felf. At length fhe
came, and repeated the fame Things, That the waga
Country-Gentlewoman, and came up about a Suit of
Law, &, She faid, Madam, I underftand YOUu are
very nice in taking of Boarders, which malkes me
the willinger to come to board with you. [ took
her to be a very fober Woman ; and fecing 1t wag
but for a little while, I agreed with her.  She faid]
fhe would come on Wedne/day : The Realon the told
me, that fhe came to Town no fooner, was, becaufi
her Maid was fick of a Fever, Mrs, §2. Tobi re-
commended to her a Neighbour’s Child, which was
a pretty civil Girl; fhe hired her, which made me
ftill like her the better. On Wednefday, Mrs. Bayn-
ton and her Servant came : We were all Widows,
and became very familiar in a fhort Time 3 for the
is a Perfon of a great deal of Senfe, if pleafed God
to give her Grace.  She invited us on Adichaslng;-
Day, to go on Board of a Nortway Ship ; fhe had a
Friend there, Oneof my Friends afked, whether
fhe had any Intereft in jt? She faid, Yes, flie had.
She likewife faid fhe had a dear Brother come 1o
Town, an extraordinary Cheiltian, that had married
her Sifter : They f{trived, fhe faid, who fhould out-
do one another 1n Affeftions ; and when her Silter

~was upon her Death-bed, fhe recommended Mis,

Bayaton to be both his Wife and Sifter. Mrs, Bayi-
ton {11d, My dear Brother will come To-morrow to
fee me. Accordingly he came, with two Gentle-
women with him, that we never faw before nor
fince: Then fhe fent for a Bottle of Claret, and
defired us to drink, which we did, with them. Then
fhe took Occafion to praife the Family the wasin :
She invited her Brother ro live in the fame Streer
near. to her, feeing he had but a pingling Stomach ;
and faid, fhe believed he would like their ViQuals,
Fe declined that, faying, it was out of the way for
his Bufinefs, being obliged to be every Day ac
*Change, Then fhe afked me, what I would have a
Meal, if he thould come at any Time to fee her? |
told her 12 4, for a Dinner; for fo I had of the
young Ladies Friends that came to fee them.

Mr., Seiy. Darnel, Pray, how did the Country-
Gentlewoman behave her felf 2

Mrs, Nightiugale. She feem’d to be very modeft,
but thew’d abundance of Love to her Biother.

Mr. Serj. Darael. In her Behaviour ?

Mrs. Nightingale, Very well, below Seairs s bur
the Maid faid fhe would fwear above.

Council. Flow oft did he dine there ?

Mrs, Nightingale. Niie or ten Times.

Council, You fay he dined nine or ten Times at
your Houfe, did you diicern that there was any thing
of Love betwixt him and Mrs. Rascliis ?

Mrs. Nigbtingale. No body in the Houle difcern-
cd that there was.

Mr. Sery. Darnel. Were they obferved at any
Time to be alone ?

Mrs. Nightingale. No, Sir, they were never
alone that I know of,

M. Serj, Darnel. Had you ary miflruft of M.
Baynton ¢

Mrs. Nightingale. Yes, Sir; (he came twice [ome
clevated with Drink, and we began to fufpect thure

was fomething between her and her Brother that
Wil



1702 B.R. for forceably ‘z‘cz;%z';fg away Mrs. Rawlins,

was not ufual, My Lord, her Servant took notice,
thae we carried it with Sirangenels towards her
Miftrefs 3 infomuch that fhe faid to her Miftrefs,
Do you not difcern the Family to be firange ¢ Ay,
Betty (faid fhe) bur 1 do not care 5 if they rouze
me, they’ll find me fike a Lion : Or to that Effet,

M, Sall, Gen, Did Mus, Bayuton dilcern that you
Lkoew chat fhe faid {o?

Mrs, Nightingale, No, Sir.

Mr, Soil. Gen. Did you exprefs any Diflike of
her ¢

Mrs, Nightingale. No, Sir, not to her ; tho’ I dif-
covered my Diflike of her to feveral of the Family,
telling them, I defigned to give herWarning when her
Month was up.  But before that, fhe came to me
and paid me, as her Cuftom was, fora Week, She
told me fhe had received a Letter from her Friends,
That the Truftees had made up the Bufinefs 5 and
the City being chargeable, fhe defigned to return
into the Country. 1 went to my Mother in another
Room, and exprefitd to her, with a great deal of
oy, the Warning fhe had given me,  When her
Time was expired, fhe came to me again, and faid,
There was a Fellow would cheat her in Town, and
that fhe mufl take out a Statute of Bankrupt again{t
himy, which would detain her a Week longer 3 and
upon her D-fire, becaufe I would part friendly, 1
confented to her ftaying a Week longer.

L. C. §. Hoft. Speaking to the Prifoncr Baynton,
fatd, She might afk Queftions.

Mrs. Bayuton. Yes, my Lord, Mrs. Nightizgale,
when I went into your Houfe there was no {uch
Character of me, as youfpeak of 5 but you invited
me 3 and [ faid, That if I fhould be troublefome, I
would not come.

L. C. ¥. Hslt. She liked you well by the Cha-
racter that was given you by Mrs., §t, Fobi, but af-
terwards fhe had no {uch good Thoughts of you.

Mrs, Bayiton. 1t they did not like me, my
Lord, they might have given me Warning ; but in-
ftead of that, when I gave her Warning, fhe fecmed
to be torry.

L. C. ¥. Holt. She was glad of the Opportunity
of your giving her Warning,

Mrs. Bayiton, You were pleas’™d, Mrs, Nightin-
galz, to fpeak of going aboard of Ship, it was af-
e Mr, Swendfen had been there a fecond Time ¢
VWhen he came to your Houfe, you faid you loved
Punch entirely 5 and T faid, If you pleafe, Madam,
Mr, Swendfzn hall make a Bowl ; and this was be-
fore our going on Board.

L.C.%¥. Holt. Was Mr, Swendfen aboard the
Ship ?

Mys. Niehtingale. Yes, hewas 3 but I knew not
of his being there,

Mys. Bulby fuworn.

Mr. Serf. Darnel. Come Mus. Bufly, glve an Ac-
count to my Lord and the Gentlemen of the Jury
what you know of this Matter.

Mis. Bufby. My Lord, I know Mrs. Nightingale
told me that Mis, $t. Fobi came to take Lodgings
fcr Mrs, Bayiton, according as Mrs, Nightingale ex-
preffed! her felf ; and I was a little curious in en-
quiring what the was, and begged her Pardon for
alking {o.many Queftions about her,

Mr, Serj. Darnel. After fhe had been there, how
did the carry her felf ?

Mrs, Bufby. At Michaelmas-Day, at Night, the
came up. very brifk, and faid fhe had heard from
her dear Brother, and fell a praifing him, and faid
how happy fhe was in him; and that her Sifter,
upon her Death-bed, faid that fhe fhould be both
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Wife and Sifter to him 3 She faid likewife, that fhe
had been 2 Widow- 4 Years, and that fhe would ne-
ver marry for the Love fhe had to her Brother.,

Mr. Serj. Darnel. Pray give an Account, Mrs,
Bufby, whether there was any Talk in the Family
of this Woman’s leaving the Family ?

Mrs. Bufby. Sir, as to her leaving the Houfe, we
were informed that fhe was not what we took her
to bes and Mrs. Nightingale and I were very un-
eafy 5 at which Mrs. Nightingale defign’d to warn
her away,

Conncil. Mrs, Bufby, Pray give an Account of
your going in the Coach with her,

Mius. Bufby. On Friday Morning, the 6th of this
Month, Mrs. Baynton faid fhe was going to have
her Lac’d-Head wathed 5 fhe fent her Maid for o
Coach, and faid fhe would fet us down near the
Chapel,  After the had invited me, and 1 faw the
Coach, I did not know how to cvade 1t well, but
accepted of her Civility. She bid the Coach ftop
at Hedpe- Lane, and faid we fhould be as near to the
Chapel, as fhe went to the Place whither fhe was
going, When we came to the old Buildings, I was
looking out at them, and on the contrary Side L
heard a Buftle, Mrs. Raynson called to the Coach to
go on, and prefently Harteoell was in the Coach,
with his Arm about Mrs. Rawlins’s Wailt, I did
think Mrs. Baynton was arrefted, I cry’d out for
God’s Sake let us alone, we are not concern’d.
Hartwell pulPd up the Glafs, and faid we were the
Perfons concerned.  She (pounting to Hartwell at
the Bar) faid, This is the Man, and he himfelf
owi’d 1t before the Recorder, that he told me *twas
the young Lady and I was concerned 5 fays he, Let
me have a few Words with you, and all will be
well. I faid, To be fure I will not fay any thingto
you except my Friends were near. This Lady, Mrs.
Bayuton, faid, No Madam, be fure donot ; fhe ad-
viled me not to be frightned, for fuch a Cafe once
happen’d to her with her Niece.  1afked Hartzvell
what he would do with us? e faid he would carry
us to a Place where we might fend for our I'riends,
and make up the Bufinefs. Mirs. Bayslon {eemed to
take my part, and faid fhe would go to my Friendss
and fuch Difcourfe as this held il we came to the
Star and Garter Tavern,

Conuncil. Mrs, She pretended to be your Iriend 2

Mrs. Bufby. Ycs, Siry fhe argued with the Bai-
liff and faid, may I not go where I will? And feems-
ed to be very angry with him.  Mr, Hartwell alfo
feemed to be very angry with her, and call’d her
Mes. Pert, faying 5 it fhe were Civil, fhe fhould
have the more Refpeét,

Conncil. Whom did he call Mrs, Pert ¢

Mrs, Bufby. He called Mrs. Baynton fo.  Then
they carried us to Drury-Lane, and fhe advifed us
to put on our Mafks upon our Faces: [ thought to
do it, but afterwards recalling my felf, and thinking,
I had done nothing amifs, I would not. They con-~
duéted us to the Tavern and put us into a back
Room, and Ms. Baynton haftencd out of the Roomy
a5 if the would go for fome of my I'riends, as fhe
faid the would: I dire€ted her to Mr. Thornton
and another ; which fhe faid fhe went to, The Room
where we were was very dark, fo we prefled intoa
{orward one : 'We were in a very great Fright, mfo-
much, that I faid to Mrs. Rawlins, We'll live and
die together, and then fhe took me hold by my
Arm. Hartwell feeing that, tock her frem me by
Force, and faid fhe muft go with him. 1 under-
ftood fhe was arrefted in one Court, and Lin ano-

ther ; She muft go to the Marfhalfea, and 1 1to
Qoo 2 Newgalg
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Newgate.  Then they hurried her down Stairs out
at a back Door into a Coach: I cry’d out Murder
out of the Window, and faid, For God’s Sake take
care of the young Woman, for I know not where
they are carrying her, After this, Mr., Spurr faid to
me, What have you got by Bawling ? We are bet-
ter known here than you. My Fnght was very
oveat, and I was very much furprized : There was
a Man left with me, 1 made my Complaint for
Friends to be fent for,  SaysIto him: Is it Trea-
fon or Felony? He told me he did not know, he
was only hired for a Crown to keep me: I defired
that the Gentlewoman of the Houfe might come up
to me ; it was about 12 a-Clock, and at laft the
did, And Mr, Wakeman came up, and faid, Ma-
dam, Why do you not Eat and Drink ? He fud
the young Gentlewoman was well, and did both.
Said the Woman of the Houfe to me, Do not you
owe Money ? I faid, No, Nor the young Lady
neither ? I anfwered, None that we fhould he Ar-
relted for. 'When this Mr., Wakeman was here, faid

the Gentlewoman of the Houfe to me, Why do you
not enguire into the Caufe of Action? Wakeman

told me, that there was a Writ againtt Sabina Bufby,
at the Suit of Willian: Fones, and that William foues
arrefted me.  Says the Woman of the Houlfe, it
may be your Name is not right, and fo you may
be fallly Arrefted, T afked whether I might not
{end for Bail, it being an Action of Debt, It being
an A&ion of Debr, fays hey, youmay ; and I will
oo for you as cheap, and as foon as a Porter.  But
I faw him no more tll Night,

Council, How long did they keep you ?

Mrs. Bufby. It was betwixt 10 and 11 when
they carricd me there firft, and it was not till near
Nizhe that I faw him again.

Mr, §zrj. Darael. Did he make you give Bail for
your Difcharge in the Afternoon ?

Mrs, Bufby. There was 2 Lad in the Room {aid,
Madam, I will go to fome of your Friends for you.
I direéted him to fome of them, and when he came
again, he faid, they were not at home. There was
a poor Man, a Labourer, at work in the Chimney,
he eave me a private Wink, and fard he would go
for me, tor he knew Mr, Unkles 3 he went, and
Mr. Unkles came. 1 likewife fent for Mr, Thoruton
and another ;3 they all came, and met together, Mr.
Thernton demanded on what Account they kept me

there? They faid they had a Writ againft me of

200 /. Then they faid they would bail me,  They
afked them, Where the young Lady was ¢ They
told him fhe was with her Friends. Then, myLord,
after this, the Bailills fhifted off, and I knew no-
thing more of it, but went away to get a Warrant
to take care of the young Liady.

Conncil, Had you any manner of Dealings with

Mr. Fones?

Mrs. Bufby, No manner of Dealings with him
in all my Life.

Mr. Mountague., When you came into the Fore-
Room, was Hartwwell then with you in the Room ?

Mrs. Bufby. Sheand I was ina great Fright 5 fe-
veral was there, and flurtiwell was one of them,

L. C.%f. Holt. Was Mrs. Baynton there ¢

Mrs. Bufby. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. '}. Holt. How long did fhe ftay ?

Mus. Bufby. She went out prefently 5 fhe told me
fhe would go to fome of my Friends 5 and away
fhe went.

L. C. 7. tolt, Did fhe come again ¢

Mrs. Bufby. No, my Lord.

L. C. 7. It Did you fee Furtiwell there ¢

Mrs. Bufby. My Lord, he was there, and forced
the young Lady from me; and Spurr, when | but
my Head out of the Window, and cried after her
faid to me, What have you got by your Baw]ings
We are better known here than you. '

Mr, Juftice Gonld. Pray, when was the firflt Time
you took Notice of Spurs ¢

Mrs. Bufby. Sir, the firft Time I took particular
Notice of him, was, when I put my Head out of the
Window ; but it feems he rid behind the Coach .
he was left with me when Mrs, Rawlins was taken
away, and was in the Room when my Friends came;
and Mr. WWakeman was there too.

Mr. Fuflice Powel. Iafk you, did your Friends
ofter Bail ? !

Mrs. Bufby. Yes, Sir, they did,

" Mr. Fujtice Powell.  Did any of them require
al ?

Mrs. Bufby, My Iriend, Mr. Thornton, afked on
what Account they kept me ? And they faid they
had an Action of zoo /. againft me,

Mr, Hartzwell. Was I there then 2
come back after you were there ?

Mrus. Bufby. 1 believe you were, butI cannot be
pofitive 5 but you were in the Coach, and you were
the Man that carried away Mrs. Rawling from me.

Mr. Wakeman called.

Mr. Soll. Gen. Give an Account to my Lord and
the Council, of what you are concerned in this
Matter.

Mr., Wakeman. If 1t fhall pleafe your Honour, my
Lord, Mr. Hartwell came on Wedneflay (before
thts Thing hapren’d) to my Houfe, and left Word
there, that there was a Writ to be executed, if I
would execute it: I was not then at Home, but
when I came Home, which was late at Night, my
Daughter told me of 1t. T went to him on Thus/-
day Morning,  He faid to me, Mr. Wakeman, I
have a Writ to be executed, will you doit? I faid
I would. Then he carried me to #eflminfler to the
Mitre-Tavern, and made no ftop nor ftay ; then he
called for a Quart of Ale, and a Quart of White-
Wine, and a Toaft and Cheefe ;5 and when he had
eat one Toalt, we had another. The Man of the
Tavern came in, whofe Name was Holt., Mr, Hart-
well faid to me, We muft not do the Buiinels this
Morning ; i1t cannot be done, faid he : But he ap-
pointed me to come on Fridey Morning. He or-
dered me, 1if I came urft, to call for Wine, and the
fame as we had before. 1 camefirft, and called for
Wine, Ale, a Touft and Cheefe ; mn the mean Time
Mr. Hartwell came in, and eat fome with me.

L. C. 7. Helt. Who was the Writ againft 2

Mr. Wakeman, It was againft Madam Razwlins.
Mr. Hlt went out, and called Mr., Hartwell, and
{aid, the Bufinefs would be done that Morning.
Then we followed him to Stretton-Ground, M.
Holt faid to Spurr and my felf, we had beft ftand
near the Place : He took Mr. Hartwell with him
to the Top of the Street, the People gazed at us,
and I was athamed, and went into an Ale-Houlfe ;
a Man came back, and faid, The Coach is at the
Door ; and Mr. Hartawell came and faid, the Coach
would come by prefently 5 Mr, Hartwell and Spury
went before, and bid me follow the Coach ; and
coming near the Park, in Weftminfler, I was be-
bind 3 Mr. Spurr ftopped the Coach. Mr. Spurr
ftopping the Coach I made up to it 5 but before 1
came to it Mr. Hartwell was in the Coach, and what
he faid to them I do not know.

L.C. }. Hojt. Who fopped the Coach ?
| M, Watke-

Did I ever
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Mr. Wakeman. Mr. Spurr {topped the Coach,
-nd ferved the Writ 5 it was my Writ, Mr. Hart-
o]l ordered the Coach to drive to the Star and
Garter Tavern in Drury-Lane 5 we went all along
with it 3 and when we came there, they led us to
2 little Room, and the Gentlewoman did not Jike
it, but went into 2 forward Room, and this Gentle-
woman (pointing to Mrs, Baynton) with her Band-
box, was with them.

Couneil. Who was it 2

Mr., Hakeman. (potating to Mrs. Baynton at the
Bar, faid *twas fbe) 1 did not know but the was this
Lady’s Friend 5 1 never faw any of them before in
all my Life. Mr. Hartszell went down, and Mrs,
Baynton 5 and I thought fhe went to fetch Madam
Rawlings Friends. Mr. Harlwell came to the y oung
Lady, and faid, You muft go to my Houfe. The
young Gentlewoman faid, O Lord, don’t part us.
But he did fo, and put her into a Coach. [ faw
the Gentlewoman going, but did not go with her my
felf, for I was ftopped by a Gentleman of my Ac-
quaintance 3 but when I came to Mr. Hartwell’s
Houfe, I fad, Mr. Hartwell, Where is the young
Gentlewoman ? He told me fhe was below Stairs.
[ told him that I had fomething of Bufinefs clfe-
where. I afked him, and he gave me Leave to go.
[ went, and when I returned back to Mr. Farizwells
Houfe, I afked for him, but his Wifc told me he
was not within. T aflked where the young Gentle-
woman was ? She anfwered, that the was gone with
her Hufband to the Fine Tavers 10 Holborn. 1 went
and afked for Mr, Hartwell 5 they told me he was
above Stairs, I went up, and found him with Mr,
§;nrry and a Tallow-Chandler, 1 fhould have told
you, that when I went from Mr, Hartswell’s Houfe
about my Errand, Tfaw Mr. Ifs/t ftanding near the
Back-Door of the Five-Bell ‘Tavern in Htch-fireet,
and he afked me where Mr, Hartwell was ? | told
hin hz was at Home. Then Holt afked for the
Woman, I faid the was at Hartwell’s— Afterwards
I fase Mr. Swendfen at the Froe-Bells with Holt, and
he gave me a full Glafs of Claret 5 1 drank it off,
and away I went. When I went to the Vine-Ta-
verny Mr. Hartavell, M, Spurr, and aZallow-Chaid-
Lr were in a Room by themfclves, 1 faw that
sentleman (Jooking out of a Window) that was
with Flolt 3 he looked at me, and I at lum, Mr,
Hortezell afked me if I had dined ? I told him No,
He faid there were fome Stales. 1 dined there 5 then
the Gentlewoman, viz, Baynton, at laft came out of
Door and called Mr, Hariwwcll to her. When Mr,
Hartwecll came from her, he told me the Matter
was made up, and the Prifoner was difcharged,

L. C.%. Holt. Who was the Writ agam(t ?

Mr Wareman, Mrs. Rawlins.

L. C. . Holt. When the Prifoner was difcharged
they gave you the Writ again ?

Mr, Wakeman, Yes.

L.C. 7. Holt. Had youa Writ againft Mrs. Bifly?

Mr. Wakeman. I had none againtt her,

Conneil, Hlow far 15 it from Hartwell's Houfe
W the Star and Garter-Tavern?

Mr, Wakeman, 1tis about a Furlong.

Council, What was your Writ for ?

Mr, Wakeinan. Buat 20 1.

L. C. F. Holt. And you faid you had an A&ion
of 200 1. |

Mr. IVakemain, My Lord, Mr, Hartzwell faid fo, 1
do not know the Wonan, but fhe will be fhewed us.

L. C. F. Holt. Look at the Prifoner at the Bar.
W&ns 1ﬂ;e in the Coach when Mrs, Rawlins was Ar-
FElted ¢
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Mr. Wakeman. Yes, yes. I had no ill Defign in
what I did.

L, C. }. Holt. Did you go behind the Coach ¢

Mr. Wakeman, Yes, my Lord, I did.

The Writ produced and read in Court.

Mr, Fuft. Gould. Were you there at the Star and
Garter when Mrs, Bufly's Friends came to Bail her ?

Mr, Wakeman, When 1 came to the Star and
Garter Tavern, the Gentleman came and atked me.
whether [ knew where Mrs. Bufby was? I told him
1 left her avthe Vine-Tavern, and believed that there
they might find her.

L. C. . Holt. Was Spurr at the Vine-Tavern
any Time ¢

Mr, Wakeman. My Lord, I left Spurr, Hartowell,
and the Tallow.Chandler at the Vine-Tavern.

Mr. Sery. Darnel, Was it Mr, Hartwell or Spury
that afked you to eat Stakes ?

Mr. Wakeman, It was Spurr,

Mrs. Baynion. Mr. Wakeman, Did you ever fee
me before the Arreft ?

Mr. Wakeman, No, I never faw you before then.

Mrs. Berkley Sworn,

Mr. Serj. Darnel, Pray look upon this Prifoner,
Mrs, Baynton, Do you know her?

Mrs, Berkley. Yes, Sir, 1 do know her,

Mr. Serj. Daruel. How came you to know her ?

Mrs. Berkley, By her lodging in Mrs, Nightix-

gale’s Houfe, and no otherwile,

Mr. Serj. Darnel, Did you ever hear her fpeak

of a Brother that fhe had ?
Mrs. Beskley. Yes, Siry fhe faid this Mr, Sswend-

Jeir was her Brother,

Mr. Sery. Darnel, Mrs. Rawlins, Are you Sworn ?

Mrs, Rawlins. Yes, Str.

Mr. Serj. Darnel, Stand forward a little, Do you
oive my Lord an Account of the whole Matter,

Mrs. Bayiton, Mrs, Rawlins, fpeak the Truth, I
defire nothing but Juftice.

L. C. }. Holl. You are upon your Qath remem-
ber, and therefore {peak nothing but the Truth.

Council. Give an Account of your Proceedings
in the whole Matter,

Mr. Serj. Darunel. Do you know any of the Pri-
foners at the Bar ?

Mrs. Rawlins. Yes, [ know them all, Mrs, Bays-
ton, Mr., Hartwell, and Mr., Spurr.

L. C. 7. Holt. Do you know them ?

Mrs. Rawlins. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. ¥. Holt. How came you to be acquainted
with Mrs, Baynion 2

Mrs. Rawlins. My Lord, I came to be acquaint-
ed with her by her taking Lodgings at our Houfe.
She came and took Lodgings at Mrs, Nightingale’s
for a Month or Six Weeks, When her Month was
out, fhe faid her Bufinefs was done, and fhe muft go
into the Country.

M. Sery. Darnel. Give an Account of what hap-
pen’d to you on Friday the 6th of November.

Mrs. Rawlins. We were going to Oxendon Chapel,
Mrs. Bufby and I. Mrs. Baymon told us, fhe
was going that Way, and invited us mto herCoach 3
fhe faid fhe would fet us down near the Chapel 5 we
accepted of her Invitation, and went with her. When
we were at the Broad Way in Darimonth-Ground,
there was Hartevell, and Two more Bailiffs 5 they
ftopp’d the Coach, and Mr. Hartwell got in. Said
Mus. Bufly, to him, For ChrifU’s Sake let us go out
we owe no Man any thing. He {aid the Matter
concerned Mrs. Bufby and me, and he ordered the
Coach to be driven to the Star and Garter Tavern

Mr. Ser;.

in Drury-Laie,
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Mr. Seij. Darnel. Did any Body come into the
Coach?

Mrs, Rawlins, Yes, Sir, Mr. Hartwell.,

Mr. Serj. Darael, Did he do any Thing to the
People in the Coach ?

Miys. Rawlins. No, Sir, but ordered the Coach
to go to the Star and Garfer Tavern, When we
came there we went up Stairs, and did not {tay above
a Dozen Minutes in one of the Rooms, but removed
from thence to a Room forward: Mrs. Baynfon
was gone, and Hartwell fent up Spurr.

Mr. Serj. Darnel. Miftrefs, Pray look, Do you
fee the Man that came up to you ?

Mrs Rawlins, I fuppole it was the Man that is
next to Mrs. Bayutony if I be not miltaken it is
him ; I cannot be pofitive.

Mr, Serj. Darnel. Some of them came up to you
and faid, they muft have the young Lady down
Stairs P

Mrs. Razlins, Yes, Sir 5 and Mrs, Bayaton faid,
WNay. They after that forced me away.

Mr. Serf. Darnel. Who was it that did that ?

Mis. Rawlins. It was Mr, Hartwell that did 1.

My, Hartwell. Who is Mr, Harteell 2

Mrs. Rawlins, Your felf, Mr, Hartwell, took me
about the Middle, and drove me down Stawrs, I
cried out Murder, and defired fome good Body to
oo with mie 5 he faid, if T did not hold my Tongue
he would fend me to Newgate that Minute.

Mr, Serj. Daracl. Where dict he carry you ¢

Mis, Ragolins. He carricd me from the Sfar and
Gaurter Tavern to his own Houle.

Mr. Serj. Dariel. Where 15 his Houle ?

Mrs. Rawlins, In Witch-firect.

Mr. Serf. Darsiel. How long didhekeep you there?

Mrs. Razolins. 1 do not know juftly, but I think

it was about an Hour,
Mr, Serj. Darpel, What did they do with you

there @

Mrs, Razwlins, They put me into a Back Room,
there was no Body with me: but at lalt Mrs, Bayi-
ton came in and pretended fhe was going by and
heard my Name, and therefore came in. I was ve-
ry much frighted. She faid fhe had been at feveral
of my Friends, but could get no Body to come. She
told me fhe would fend for her Brother, and he

fhould be Bail for me,
L. C. % Helt. You fay fhe would fend for her

Brother to be your Bail ?
Mus, Rawlins, Yes, my Lord.
L. C.F. Helt. What followed then ?
Mrs. Rawliis. She went for her Brother to come

to be my Bail, and it was hardly half a Quartcr of

an Hour before the came in again with her Brother.

Council. What 1s her Brother’s Name ?

Mrs. Rawlins, Swendfen, Mr, Hartwell came in-
to the Room where I was, and faid, Is Mrs. Razw-
lins's Triend come yet? Mrs, Bayaton anlwered,
Yes. They had a Coach prepared at the Door, and
in that they carried me to the Tavern in Holbourn 5
there was in the Coach, Mis. Baynton, her Brother,

My, Hairtwell, and 1.

'Mr. Mountague, Where did they carry you?

Mus. Rawlins, To the Vine-Tavern in Holbouri.

M. Mountagne, What did they do with you
¢hen ¢ |

Mrs. Rawlius, They carried me up Stairs, put
me into a Room, I cannot tcll exactly how long I
was there.

Mr. Mountague, What did they do then ?

Mrs, Rawlins. Then Holt was there to be the other

Bail 5 they were very willing to take his Bail, bue

were very {crupulous in taking Mr. Swend/zi’s Ba)
They told me, 1n fhort, that I muft marry Mr‘
Swendfen, and that would put an End to it, or e]l’;
I muft go to Newgate,

L. C. . Holt. Who faid fo?

Mrs. Rawlins, Mrs, Baynton faid, If I did por
marry her Brother, I muflt go to Newgate, | -
plied, chat I would not marry without my Friend,
Advice 3 but I was not fo much afraid of goIng to
Newgale, as 1 was of being murdered, or fenr
away fomewhere mto the Country, where I mijehe
never fec or hear of my Friende, °

Council, Fow did they behave themitlves in tha
Room ?

Mrs. Rawlins, They importun’d me to maity
Mr. Swendfen, and for that End Mis, Bayaten would
have my Ring from my Finger ; I would not let
her have it, but fhe forced itaway from me. 1 afked
her what fhe would do with it? She told me, fhe
would go and get a Wedding Ring made by i,
She went and bought 2 Wedding Ring, and gave
me my own again: Then the Minifter and Clerk
was brought mto the Rcom 3 the Minifterand Clerk
came 1n and marrted Mr, Swendjen and e,

Mr, Sery. Darnel. How long did you flay in the
Room after you were married 2

Mrs. Rawlins. Not a Quarter of an Hour.

L. C. 7. Holt. Where was Hartwell ?

Mrs. Rawlins. They were in the Room over.
cainft s,

L. C. f. Holt. Who brought the Parfon into the
Room ¢

Mrs. Rawlins., Holt brought them in.

L. C. }. Holt. Where did they carry you then ?

Mrs. Rawlins, To Mr. Blake's Houle in Helbsuri,

L. C. J. Holt. Who went with you?

Mrs. Rawliis. No body but Mr. Sweudfen, Mrs,
Bayntorr, and my felf,

L. C. 7. Holt. \What did they do then ?

Mrs. Rawiizs, They ordered the fheeting of a
Bed, and put me to Bed.

Council, Was there any Compulfion in going to
Bed, or did you go voluntarily ?

Mrs. Rawwlins, T did not go freely, but was
forced to Bed 5 Mrs. Bavaton afked me to go to
Bed 5 atter which the atked me the Reafon why I
would not go to Bed? Says I, my Reafon is, be-
caule I don’t care 1o go to Bed fo foon.

Mr. Sery. Darnel. Who uadrefled you 2

Mrs, Rawliis., Mrs, Bayaton and Mr, Blake's
Daughter.

Mr. Sery. Darnel. How long was you in Bed ?

Mrs. Rawlizs, About an Hour or Two.

Mr. Monatague. When you went out, had you
any Expeétation to go any where clfe bat to Church?

Mrs, Rasvlins. No where but to Church, upon
my Word.

Mr. Mountague. Did you go voluntarily to the
Tavern in Drury-Lane, or againlt your Will ¢

Mrs. Razwelins, To be fure it was againlt my Will.

Mr. Hartwell. Did you fee me, Madam, at the
Vine-Tavern the Time that you were confined there

L. C. f. Holt. Dad you fee Hartzwell at the Fiiie-
Tavern before you were married ?

Mrs, Rawlins, Yes, Mr. Hartawell, you may re-
member that you were once in the Room where 1
was: I will give you an Inftance of it; you were
fmoaking a Pipe of Tobacco; Mrs. Bayputon faid
to you, What would you have with her ? You fud
I was the Prifoner.

L.C.§. Holi. Did they take the Bail that was
oficred ?

Mrs. Rawlins,
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Mrs, Rawlins, Mr, Hartwell {a1d, he would con-
¢ ler it with Mrs, Bayrfoir 5 and they all went out,
and left me alone by my felt. Mrs. Baynton, after
they had confulted together, came in and told me
chat they refufed the Bail.

Mrs. Baynton, When you were left by your felf,
Vs, Rawling, if you had not a mind to marry Mr.
Saendfen, why did not you make your Efcape.

L. C. 7. Helt. Did fhe come there by her Con-
fet ?

Mrs. Baynton, No, my Lord, but when fhe was
left to her felf, fhe might have calily got away.

L.C. ¥. Holt. Mrs. Rawlins, You were left alone
in the Room, Was there any Propofil of your Mar-
riage to Mr. Swendfen made before that ?

Mrs. Bayiton. My Lord, if I may have leave
to fpeak, they contracted Friendfhip almoft a
Month belore.

L. C. 7. Holt. Mrs. ftay your T'ime, [To Mrs.
Rawlins] Confider the Queftion,

Mrs. Bayuten, My Lord, the Ring was bought
before fhe was left alone, fhe knows it very well,
and was looking upon it when I came into the
Room again.

L.C.J. Holt. To Mis. Rawlins. Had you the
Ring before thar ?

Murs. Rawlins, Not as I kaowof, my L.ord,

Mrs, Baviton. You had the Ring upon your
Finger, and faid, it was a very handfome one ; but
I had bought 1t a little too wide for you,

Mrs. Rawlins, It is very ridiculous 5 I faid no
fuch Thing,

L. C.'f. Holt. She was left in the Room alone,
when you both went cut 5 but it feems 1t was upon
her Defire to be Batled, and therefore fhe would
not efcape,

Mr. Serj. Daruel, Yes, yes, it was with the In-
et 1o be Bailed that fhe did this.

L. C. . Hslt. Mrs. Bayuton, it is now Time
for you to make your Defence.

Mrs. Bayaton, My Lord, Iwill.  Mrs. Bufly,
when M. Swendfen came to her Houfe firft, called
him her dearly beloved Likenefs 5 Iid not fhe fay
fo Mrs, Rawliis ?

L. C. F. Helt. Did you ever hear Mrs. Bufly
call Mr. Swendfen her dearly beloved Likenefs ?

Miys. Rawlins, My Lord, I defire fhe may an-
fwer for her felf.

Mrs. Baysiton. Pray, my Lord, let her {tand by
her felf a little. that no body may fpeak to her.

L. C. 7. Holt. Did you ever hear her fpeak of
Mr. Sweendfen, that he was her dearly beloved
Likenefs ?

Mrs. Rewlins, Yes, my Lord ; I do not know
but {he might fay fo.

L.C. . Holt, What, when Mr. Swendfen was
by ?

Mrs. Rawlins. No, my Lord.

L. C.¥. Holt. Do you remember that you ever
heard Mrs, Bufby call him {o?

Mis, Rawlins, Once, my Lord, to Mrs. Baynton.

L. C.¥. Folt., What fay you Mrs. Bufly, did
you call him fo ?

Mis. Bufty, My Lord, I thought him very
much like my Hufband in one Part of his Face,
and Mrs, Baynton her felf call’d him my beloved
Likenefs.

Mrs, Baynton, My Lord, How could I call him
her beloved Likenefs, and never faw her Hufband
with my Eyes?

L.C. . Helt. Well, what Queftions will you
ak ?

Mrs. Bayiton., My Lord, 1 will alk Mrs. Raw-
lins feveral Queftions. The Second Swiiday when
I was at their Houle, Mrs. Raswlins, you know you
ftaid at home, and I did fo too 5 Did not you fay
then, that you withed Mr. Swendfen was there,
when they were all at-Church, did not you fay fo?
Remember you are upon your Qath,

L. C. ¥. Holt. Upon your Oath, do you remem.-
ber any fuch Thing ?

Mrys., Rawlins. No, my Lord ; and I wonld net
for all the World fay any thing but the Truth,

L. C. F. Hdt. Did you, or did you not ?

Mrs. Rawins, Indeed, my Lord, 1 do not re-
member that ever I faid any fuch Word.

Mrs. Baynton, Mrs. Rawilius, did you not come
to my Bed-fide often, and kifs and hug me, and
would be talking with Pleafure of Mr. Sweidfen ?

L. C.J. Holt. Do you remember that you fat
at her Bed-fide, and fpake of Mr. Swendfen, and
kiffed and hugged her?

Mrs. Kawlins, My Lord, indeed Mrs. Baynton
did much talk of her Brother.

L. C. ¥. Holt. But did you talk of her Brother ?

Mrs. Rawlins, My Lerd, if 1 did fay any
Thing, Idid not fpeak with a Defign to have himj
it may be I might do fo.

Mrs. Baynton. Mrs, Rawlirs, did not you bid
me to tell him, that there was a good Lady, that
had her Fortune in her own Hands, and at her own
Difpofal, that would make him a very good Wife ?
Did not you tell me this?

Mrs. Rawlins, T did not fay fo; but faid there
was a very good Lady that would make a very
cood Wife whenever fhe married ; but did not fay,
that fhe would make him a good Wife.

Mrs. Bayiton. Mrs, Rawlins, Havenot you been
the moft uncafy Woman in the World, when he did
not come to dine at Mis, Nightingale’s?

L. C. 7. Holt. Speak out,

Mrs. Bayiton, My Lord, Mr. Sweadfen had a
Cold, and fhe told me, fhe could not be eafy ull
he was cured of it.

Mrs. Rawlins, I never faid fuch a Thing, Can
you fay fo, Mrs, Baynlon o _

Mrs. Bagnton, My Lifc is upon it, and I will
not for my Life fay any Thing but the Truth,

L.C. . Holt. Did you exprefs any fuch Thing
to Mrs. Bagnton, of your Uneafinefs till Mr, Swend-

fen had got rid of his Cold ?

Mrs. Rewlins. No, my Lord.

Mrts Bayiton. But, Madam, Did not you feek
to tell me thefe Things by your felf? You told me,
you had a great deal of ill Ufage; and told me,
you lived more like a Servant than any thing elfe:
You faid, that when there was another Lodger
there, becaufe you went to fee her in her Room,
you were chid feverely for it, and charged never to
oo near her. _

Mrs. Raewlins, 1 do not know but that I might
do it.

L. C. ¥. Holt. But why did you doit ¢

Mrs. Rawlins, My Lord, I can give you no
Account * _

L. C. . Holt. Did you bid her tell him, that
you knew 2a Gentlewoman, at her own Difpolal,
that would make him a very good Wife ?

Mrs. Rawlins, My Lord, I do not know but
that 1 faid to Mrs, Bayuton T withed her Brother 2
very good Wife,

1. C. 7. Hlt. But did you fay, that you knew
1 Gentlewoman, at her own Difpofal, and a Fortune,

that would make him a very good Wife ! |
Mrs. Rawlius.
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Mrs. Rawlins. My Lord, I did not fpeak with
a Defign to marry her Brother, but was refolved to
take the Advice of my Friends.

Mrs. Baynton. Did not you fay, that you wifh’d
your felf Mr, Swendfer’s Wife, feveral Times ?

L. C. ¥. Holt. Did you ever tell her, that you

withed your felf Swendfen’s Wife?
Mrs. Rawlins, My Lord, I don’t know whether

1 did or no.
L. C. 5. Holt, How came you to have {ucha

good Opinion of Mr, Swendfen ¢
Mis. Rawlins, Mrs. Baynton told me he was
a very good-temper’d Gentleman, and never out

of Humour.
L. C.¥. Holt, Would you marry a Man for his

good Humour only? |
Mrs. Razolins, 1 never had married, if there had

not been a Force put upon me.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Did you tell Mrs. Baynton, that
you would never marry, but by the Confent of
your I'riends ?

Mrs. Rawlins, Yes, Idid.
Mrs. Baynion. My Lord, I never heard her luy

foin all my Life,

L. C. #. Holt. Did you tell her, notwithftanding
what you faid of Mr. Swendfen, that you would ne-
ver marry without the Confent of your Friends ?

Mrs. Rawlins, My Lord, 1 did often fay, that
I would never marry without their Conlfent,

Mrs. Baynton, Mrs, Rawlins, did not you, when
you were acquainted with Mr, Swendfen, flight
Mr, Pugh ¢

L. C. 7. Il Did you fhew any Diflike of Mr.
Pugh, upon Swendfen’s Account?

Mrs. Raswlins, My Lord, I cannot tell 5 if Idid
fhew any Ill-will to Mr. Pugh, 1t was not with a
Defign to have Mr. Scwendfen.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Hath there been any Courtfhip
carry’d on betwixt Mr, Swendfen and you?

Mrs, Rawlins, My Lord, no more Courtfhip to
me than to all the Family 5 my Lord, I did not
perceive that Mr, Swendfen fhewed me more Fa-
vour than any in the reft of the Family,

L. C. ¥. Holt. Have you any more Queftions,

- Mrs. Baynton ¢
Muis, Baynton, \Vhen Mr. Swenafen was walking

in the Garden, did not you fay, that you would go
and walk with him, but that they would take notice
of it? But pray, faid I, donot, you may make
them angry by i1t. Did not you fay, that you
would go up, and look out of the Window, with
Lxpectation to have been called down by me? Did
not you walk with Mr. Swendfen, and difcourfe
with him about the Things of Love, and he faid,
he would have no body but you, and you likewife
faid, that you would have no Body but him ?

L. C.7. Holt. Were you alone with Mr, Swend-
fen, at that Time in the Garden 2

Mrs. Rawlins. 1 think I was with him in the
Garden at thae Time, but not alone,

Mis. Baynton. My Lord, fhe was alone with
Mr. Swendfen in the Garden feveral Times.

Mrs. Rawlins, 1 can fpeak it upon my OQath,
that I was never in the Garden with Mr, Swendfen,
but that Time.

Mrs, Bayuton, Did not you fay that you would
have no body but Mr. Swendfen ?

Mrs. Rawlins, No, I never faid any fuch
Thing,.

Mrs. Baynton. What made vou go up Stairs,
and cry for an.Hour together 5 and faid to my
Servant, that you would have your Belly full of

crying, before you went away : Betsy can teflf
this, fhe is in the Court, but muft not be hearg |

L. C. f. Holt. She may be called, if you wil),

Mrs, Bayuton. Pray Mrs. Rawlins, did you nop
once come up to me, and faid you had been twjc
there, and wifhed that yod could fee Mr, Swendy;
and that you could not be eafy without his Com:
pany ¢

Mrs, Rawlins, As I am upon my Oath, [ pe.
ver faid fuch a Thing,.

Mrs. Baynton. Mrs. Rawlins, did not you fay 5
Hundred Times, that you loved Mr. Swendfe,
above any Man in the World? ’

%\/Irs. Razwlins. Inever fad any fuch Thing in my
Life.

Mrs. Baynton, Did not you peel Walnuts for
Mr. Swendfen, and defire me to carry them to him

Mrs. Rawlins. 1 never did fo.

Mrs, Baynten. My Lord, I would have her afked;
whether fhe confented to be taken away, directly,
or ndirectly ?

Z L. C.7. Holt. What {ay youto that Mrs. Raz;-
15 ?

Mrs. Rawlins, My Lord, It was all againt my
Knowledge and Will, I never confented to ir.

Mrs. Bayuton. Mrs, Rawlins is not this true, that
you puiled your Ring from your Finger, and gave
it me to have a Wedding Ring made by ir, which
difcovered your frec Confent to the Marriage ?

Mrs, Rawlins. No, Mrs. Baynton, do you think
that I would have given any manner of Confent
to be married to him, without the Advice of my
Friends, if I had not been forced to it 2

Mrs. Baynton. Did not you fend all Mr, Puel’s
Letters back again, and delired him in your Let-
ter to come no more at yous; and that you would
have nothing to fay to him, and that if he came he
would put you to fuch a Fright that you would not
be capable of feeing him?

L. C. 7. Holt. Did you tell her fo?

Mrs, Rawlins. 1 do not remember that I told

her any fuch Thing.
L.C.J. Holt. Did you fend back Mr, Pugl’s

Letters ?

Mrs, Rawlins, 1 do not remember that 1 fpake
any Thing to Mrs. Bayinton, tho’ I did fend back
the Letters,

L.C. 7. Helt. Why did youfo?

Mrs. Rawlins, It was not upon Mr., Sewendfen's
Account that I did fo.

L. C.¥. [lt, Do you remember that you re-
peated to her any of the Contents of a Letter that
you had written to Mr. Pugh, about fending back
his Letters ?

Mrs, Rawlins. No, my Lord, T did not,

Mis, Baynton. My Lord, Thad it from her own
Mouth, elfe how could T have known of it ? I dud
not know it tili the told me. Mrs. Raslins, how
can you fay you told me not thefe Things ?

Mrs. Rawlins, No, Mrs. Baynton, 1did not.

Mrs. Baynton, Mrs, Razolins, you do not fay truc.
I never knew nothing buat what I had from her own
Mouth,

L. C. 7. Holt. You fent his Letters back again,
pray upon what Account did you do fo?

Mrs. Razwlins. It wasupon Things that we heard
of Mr. Pugh, that was not very handfome, Mrs.

Bufby can tell the fame.. ‘
L. C. ¥. Hdlt. Did the Courtfhip break off?

Mrs. Rawlins, My Lord, it was but the Day
before this Thing happen’d.

Mr. § r.‘!j-
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Mr. Serj. Darnel. Mivs, Bufty, did you know of the
fending back the Letters 2 And who was it that put
Mis. Rawlins upon {ending of them back ?

Mrs. Bufly. Yes, Sir, itwas by our Advice:

Mr. Serj. Dainel. Whofe Hand was it that wrote
the Letter ?

Mrs, Bufby. Mrs. Berkley.

Mr. Serj. Darnel. Was it by her Inclination and
Confultation of her Ifviends ?

Mrs. Baynton. Had not you a miftrult, that there
was Love betwixt My, Swendfen and Mrs. Rawlins ¢

Mrs. Bufby. 1 had no miftrult of any fuchThing.

Mrs. Baynton. Why did you tax me with it then?

L. C. 7. Helt. When was this ?

Mrs. Bayuton. My Lord, it was at the Limner’s;
| heard fomething as 1t Mrs. Rawlins fhould fpeak
Words of Difcouragement to Mr. Pugh. Mrs. Buf-
by, when I told her of 1t, fhe denied it, and faid,
Mrs. Bayuton, 1 do not know this. But here is
Mys, Rawlins her {elf, and fhe fhall anfwer for her
{if, if fuch a Thing iss She thoughe, if there was
anyStrangenefs between Mrs, Raselins and Mr, Pugh,
it was occafton’d by Mrs. Rawling’s Love to Mr.
Sweinden.  When they alked my Advice of the
Thing, Mrs. Rawimsand Mrs, Bafby told me, that
Nr. Pugh had Three or Four Thoufand Pound Stock:
| faid, 1f Mr. Pugh had fuch a Love for Mrs, Ratw-
firs as he pretended to, that he would do well to
have drawn out One Thoufand Pound, and given
ir to the young Woman.,

L.C. F. Holt, Mrs. Baynton, have you any thing
o0 afk ¢

Mrs, Bayiton. Perhaps I may have more to {ay,
but I am 1n Confufion, my Lord : Mrs. Bufly, as
well as Mys, Rawlins, was never eafy, but when
Mr. Szvendjeir was there.

L. C. 7. Holt. Mrs. Rawlins, upon the Oath that
you have taken, did you confentto yourbeing taken
away after the Manner as you were, or gave any Ln-
couragement to Mr. Swendfeir ?

Mrs. Rawlins. No, my Lord, I do not know
thit I ¢ave him any manner of Encouragement,

Mrs. Raynton. My Lord, fhe gave him all the
Encouragement imaginable,

L.C. 5. Helt. 1pray, Mrs. Bayiton, donot put
your fclf tnto a Paflion ¢ [ fpeak in Ifavour to you s
you will not deliver your felf fo well in Paffion, as
without,

Mrs. Bayaton, She lay baiting of me Night and
Day, and always fpeaking to me of her Love to
Mr. Swendfen y and to hear her fpeak the quite con-
trary, really it moves me, my Lord.

Betty, Adrs. Baynton®s Maid, called.

Mrs. Baynton, Befty, have not you told me,
that Mrs, Rawlins faid fhe would fill her Belly with
Crying before thewent, and that fhe would enquire
for Mr. Swendfen ?

Betty. No, 1 faid no fuch Thing,

L. C. ¥. Holt. Speak the Truth, without being
bulld by one Side or other.  Did you hear that
ever Mrs. Rawlins went into the Chamber to cry, or
nquire for-Mr. Swwendfen ?

Betty. No, my Lord, I never heard it.

Mys., Baynton, My Lord, 1 never was theWoman
that afked this Maid any Queftion any way, but fhe
frankly told me all this 5 and fhe often faid, that the
was fure Mrs. Rawlins had a very great Kindnefs for
Mr, Sweirdfen : And one Day fhe hearing of fuch a
Noife of I.aughing, and the Doors flinging, that fhe
went down Stairs to fee what was the Matter 3 Mr,

Swendfen was there then, and Mr. Pugh, Mr, Pugh

- was {o offended at Mrs. Rawlings Mirth, that he

Yo, V.

went away in a great Diftafte 5 and the faid, that
Mrs. Rawlins was never eafy, but when the was
talking of Mr. Swendfen,

Mrs. Baynten. Betty, did niot you fay, that fhe
afked you feveral Timesof Mr. Sweid/on, and withed
he would come and dine with themn ?

Betty. 1 never heard her but once,

My, Swendlen’s Fury retuin to give i theiy Ver-

dict all Twwelve,

Gentlemen, are you agreed in your Verdit ?

Anf. Yes,

Who fhall fay for you ?

Anf. The Foreman,

Eralmus Johnfon, a Dane, aid oie of the Fury

Jaid, He was not {atisited.

Fobufon, If 1t fhall pleafe you, my Lord, T am
not fatisfied 5 I do not find, from any of the Lvi-
dence that hath been given, that he was privy to the
Arreft 5 my Confcience will not let me comply with
the refl, that he is Guilty,

L.C. %. Helt. What kind of a Confcience have
you ? Do you not believe what the Witnefles huve
faid?  Have you any Evidence that Mrs, Rawiins
went away with her own Confent ¢

Yobufon. 1 do not find, my Lord, that it was
done by him.,

L. C. ¥. Holt. Did not he go to Hartwell’s Houle,
and from thence, while fhe was under the Force,
went with her to the Ve Tavern, where he married
her 2 Which was a forceably taking by him.,

Fobufon. Bur, my Lord, 1t was with her Con-
fent 3 elfe how could he marry her ?

L. C. % Helt. Tho' fhe did confent to the Mar-
ringe ;5 yet if fhe was taken by Force, it 1s the fame
Oftence,

Toremain, My Lord, he did agree that this was a
Point of Law, and would leave it with your Lord-
fhip ; he believes the was forced, but he thinks he
was not privy to the Woman’s Actions that he em-
ployed.

Fobnfon. My Lord, I do not fec there were any
Evidence againft him,

L. C. ¥. Holt. When the Bailiffs were employed
to take her, it appears by the Sequel, that it was
with an Intent that he might marry her : What can
be plainer 2 Govern your felf by Reafon.

Fobufon. 1 believe that there was a Force by the
Baihifs.

L. C. 7. Holt, Did not he take the Advantage of
the Force 2 And was that to any other Purpofe, but
for hitm to marry her ? There was no Caufe of Action
cither againft her or Mrs. Bufby.

Fobufon, It proved fo, my Lord.

Foreman, My Lord, he would know whether he
were in that Statute, in Point of Law, if this Maid

did confent to 1t ?

Fudge Powel. He was guilty of the Thing 3 he
was confenting to 1t afterward.

Yobufon. They were in Streets and Houfes before
they married ; and fo, if fhe had not confented, fhe
migght have cried out.

Fudge Powel. Did not he go to Hartwell’s Houle,
and to the Vine Tavern ¢

Fobufon. I cannot believe him guilty, as1 would
anfwer it before God and the World. |

L.C. . Holt. Pray confider, do not givea Ver-
di& contrary to plain Evidence,

Fobnfon. By all the Circumftances, fhe was as
willing as he: All that I can fay to it, my Lord, s
that he had fomething of Connivance with thisWo-

nlﬂn. .
Foreman, e beheved that all along.

P PP ?ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ 3
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Yobnfon. 1 fay, Mr, Foreman, at the Beginning
there was fucha Thing, as was done by Mrs, Bayu-
ton, without his Knowledge.

Foreman, He did confent before you to take your
Lordfhip’s Judginent 5 that if your Lordihip be of
Opinion that he was concern’d i the brit Force,

then that will carry 1. _
Yobufon. 1 do not know that fhe complain’d to

any body, my Lord : [ donot fpeak for any Favour
or Affection, my Lord; but tis merely out of a
tender Conlcience,

Loreman, He agreed, that if the firlt Force was
within the Statute, then he would comply ;3 and
that we came away upon, to have your Lordfhip’s
Opinion, e believed, Mr. Swendfen did employ
the Woman,

L. C. ¥. IJt. Do you agree ?

Fobnfon. 1 cannot, but I leave it to your Lord-
fhip’s Plealure,

Nountague, 'The Fadt he does agree to 5 he does
agree that fhe was taken away by Force.

L. C. 7. Ilt. Was fhe taken away by Lorce?

Sobufon, She was by the Bailiffs.

L.C. f. Ilir. Did not he take the Advantage of
this ?

Yebujon, She was under the Force before,

L. CJ. olr. Belides, Did not you perceive
that fhe confunted for fear fhe fhould go to Newgate ¢
The Law ol Euglaud fays, that 1s a void Conlent,
which 1s obtained out of Fear.

Jobuon, My Lord, I don’t know there was any
Violence ufed by him either in Word or Deed.

L. C. 7. Hlt. Was not he prefent when Vio-
lence was uled ?

Fobufonn. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Holt.  Then was Violence ufed by
hin,

Fobnfor. But She was very well fatisfy’d both be-
fore and after fhe was married.

L. C. . Holt. She was under Force, before fhe
was marrted 5 and indeed, all that Night, and af-

terwards,
Mr., Fobrfon, She was not hindred to fend Let-

ers.

Coun, Who would you have carried them, the
Bailifts, or Mrs. Bayuton ?

Fobufon. No, my Lord ;5 but fomebody for half
a Crown, or a Crown,

L. C. 7. Holt, It appears very evident, if you
will behieve Witnefles, that fhe was under a Force,
before the was married, when fhe was married, all
Night after, and the next Day when fhe was at the
Recorder’s. 1t you are not fatisfy’d, I'll fay no
more, not one Word more,

foreman. We muft go my Lord, and have been
Fafting all Day, Heis prepar’d for Fafting, if ic be
for a Day, or two or three,

Fudze Powel, The Queftion is now, Whether
you do not believe, upon all this Evidence you have
heard, whether this Lady was not under an Arrett,
and taken by thefe Bailiffs ? |

Fobufon, Yes, 1 do believe that; but I do not
believe Mr, Swendfen employed them ; all that I
ipeak upon is this, that {he had her free Liberty.

Foreman, My Lord, he was refolved to ftand by
what your Lordfhip thould fav,

Judge Powel. 1f he did not fet them to work, yet
his A& afterwards made it as bad as if he had actu-
ally employ’d the Bailiffs,

Jobnfon, 1 can fay no more, I mult agree with
the reft,

Gentlemen, Are you agreed ?
Foreman, Yes, my Lord, weareall agreed now,
Then, Is he Guilty, or not Guilty ?
Foreman, He 1s Guilty, —And fo you fay al),
Yes.
What Goods or Chattles, {5, ?
Foreman. We know of none.

L. C. 7. Holt. Mrs. Baynton, Will you oo op ;

Mrs. Baymton. 1 hope your Lordfhip will take
Notice that my Servant own’d it once,

L. C. . Holt. What was it ?

Mz, Monitagne. Only whether hie was to dinie
there,

Mrs, Baynten, That which I fuid, my Lord, fhe
faid to me.

Mrs. Baynton. Mrs. Raswiins, Will you be plealed
to anfwer me fome Queltions ?

Mrs. Rawlins. 1 will.

Mrs. Baynton. Did not you fit down in the orcat
Chair in the Dining-Room, and you faid, now |
muft go to Bed ? Did not you pluck off your
Things, and gave them to me, and I gave them to
Mr. DBlake’s Daughter 2

Mrs. Rawlins. I conlider Mrs, Baynton, that you
undrefled me,

Mrs. Baynton. You fat in the Chair, and up-
drefled your felf, How can you deny it ?

Mrs, Rawlins. Mrs. Baynto, 1can deny it, for
I did not.

Mrs. Baynton. Nay, more than that, when you
were 1n Bed, Did not you call to Mr. Swendin,
my dear Hufband, Why do not you come to Bed ?

Mrs. Rawlins, 1 faid no fuch thing,

L. C. 7. Holt, Where was this ?

Mrs. Bayuton. My Lord, it was at Mr. Blaks.

Mrs. Baynton. Did not you fay, Come to Bed
my dear Hufband, you muft love no Body in the
World but me ?

Mrs, Rawlins. No, Mrs. Baynton, 1did not 5 I
have taken an Oath this Day, and I faid no fuch
thing,

Mrs, Baynton, Did not you fay, that you loved
him above all the Men in the World ?

Mrs. Rawlins. No, Mrs. Bayiton, 1 did not tell
you any fuch thing,

Mirs. Bayaton. Did not you fay thefe Things ?

Mrs. Rawlms. No, Mrs, Bayntoi,

Coun. Speaking to Mrs. Bayutor, faid, Do ycu
know that ever Mrs, Rawlins writ any Letters to Mr.
Swendfen ?

Mrs. Bayuton. She would 5 but T would not let her.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Why would you not let her ?

Mus. Baymton. 1 told her I would not cariy any
Letters to him, butif the defired me to tell him nv
thing by word of Mowth, Iwoulddoir an. -
Lord, when Mrs, Rawlins was Arrefted, [ .o~
down Witchffreet, the Ceach that the was in coe i
along then, and I fecing her in it, that w.. .
only Reafon that I went into the Bailifi*s Hai
When I came there, fhe hung about me, kifl-d mw.
and faid fhe defired me to ftand by her ; when your
Lordfhip hears, you will believe me no other than
a Friend to her.  She begged me not to leave her.
I offered Bail to Mr. Hartwell, but he would not
take it 5 but faid I behav’d my felf fawcily,  And
when Mr. Swendfen came in, fhe faid, now fhe was
happy. Befides, my Lord, when he was there, he
did not defire her to'go out of the Houfe,

L. C. ¥. Holt.. If you had no Defign but for
her Good, How came you to Mrs. Nightingale’s up-

ol
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on fuch a Defign with Pretence that you had a
Law-Suit, Fe. 2 And why did you carry her out
i1 the Coach, 1n order to be Arrefted ?

Mrs. Bayiion, My Lord, it was not the firlt
Time that they went with me n a Coach, they
defired me feveral Times to fet them down, and I
did fo.

L C.7F Holt. Why did you this 2 You pre-
tenided that you had a Law-Suir, and that you came
to Town about it, and it appears not that you had
any.
}Mrs. Bayiton. No, my Lord, I did not.

Mrs. Niohtingale. My Lord, It was Mrs, §t.

¢t that recommended Mrs, Baynton to me,

L. C. 7. Holt. We know that,

Mrs. Bayntor. 1f I were {fuch a Woman as they
reprefent me to be, Why did they not warn me out
of thetr Houle. Mrs. Razwlins, fay the whole Truth,
and remember that you are upon your Oath, 1 de-
fire not Favour or Affection. Did not you fay to Mr.
Sceenndfenry, "This is my own dear Hufband, and this
i the Ring that married us? Did not he begin to
fpeak, and you faid to him, Hold your Tongue,
and ler me {peak ?

Mrz. Raselins, Mrs. Baynton, you know [ was
very much intoxicated, I hardly knew I had a
Head.

Mis. Bavnion, Mrs. Rawlins, you can drink your
Glals of Wincas well as any Body elfe, M. Swend-
S was often there at Cards, and fhe was the moft
uncafielt Creatare m the World when he was not
her Partner.  Did not you defire me to let you fic
by him in particular ?

Mrs. Raswlins. No, I did not.

Mrs. Baynton. Mrs. Razwlins had faid this feveral
Times to Mr, Swendfen, to defire him to fir by her,
We play’d at Cards, and {av’d the Winnings tll it
thould come to 20 5. and defigned 1t for a Treat,
Did not you fay you would treat Mr. Swendfen,
and would fend forWalnues and Apples ¢ But I faid,
No, you fhall not ¢

Mrs. Rawlins. 1 did fend for Walnats and Ap-
ples; but 1t was not with a defign to pleafure
Nr. Sceendfen.

L. C. . Iolr. Mus, Baynton, Why did you fay
Mr. Swendien was your Brother ?

Mrs. Buyiton, I never {aid he was my own
Brother.

L.C. ¥ Ielt. You fad it.

Mrs. Baynton. No, my Lord, 1 faid he was my
Sifter-in-Law’s Fufband.

L. C. 7. Holt. How was fhe your Sifter-in-
Law,

Mrs. Bayunton. By Adoption, my Lord.

L. C.7¥. Hdt. By Adoption, What do you mean
by that ¢

Mrs, Bayntoir, Mrs. Rawlins, if you had no mind
to him, Why did you give him fuch Encouragement,
iIS to kifs him, and go betwixt his Legs and kifs
nm ¢ -

Mrs. Rawlins. 1 take it upon my Oath, that 1
nzver did fo in all my Life,

Mrs. Baynton, Did you not love him ?

Mrs. Razwlins. No, not well enough for to make
him my Hufband.

Mrs. Baynton, My Lord, It is very hard that all
thele Things that I have faid to her, are all true,

and fhe hath made a Refolution to fay nothing
but No,

L. C. . Holt. Mrs, Rawlins, Didyoudefign to°

have Mr, Swendfzn for your Hufband ¢
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Mrs. Rawlins. My Lord, 1 was threatned to be
fent to Newgate, if I did not marry him, You
know, Mrs. Baynton, that you faid, that if I did
not marry your Brother, they would carry me to
Newgate,

] Mrs. Baynton. 1 never in my Life faid any fuch
thing,

L.C.}. Holt. Pray, Mrs, Bayiton, give an Ac-
count how you have lived ?

Mis. Baynton. I never run into any Body’s Debt.

L. C. . Holt. Had you a Hufband ?

Mrs, Baynton. Yes, my Lord.

L. C. J. Holt. How long hath he been dead ?

Mrs. Baynton, Eight Years To-morrow.

L. C. }. Holt, But you have had a Child lately,
within this four Months : Are you married now ?

Mrs. Baynton, Yes, my Lord, Iam married.

L. C. }. Holt. How do you prove that ?

Mrs. Baynton. 1 could give your Lordfhip an
Account; but it Is not proper now, before the
whole Court.

L. C. J. Hoft, Ts it not proper now ?

Mrs. Bayuten. No, my Lord, for fome Reafons.

L. C.7. Holr. Ithink it is very proper. Pray
give an Account how you have lived ?

Mrs. Baynton. 1 have a Sifter at Barbadoes that
hath been very kind to me.

L. C. }. Holt. Was you married to Mr. Baynton ?

Mrs. Baynteir, Yes, my Lord.

L. C. f. Holt. Mr, Haitwell, Who direfted you
to take out this Writ againlt Mrs., Rawlins, at the
Suit of one Fones ?

Mr. Hartwiell, My Lord, 1 was fent for to the
Star ana Garter ‘Tavern in Drury-Lane, by Mr, Holt.

L. C. 7. Holt., Where 15 he ?

Mr. Hartwell, He is not yet taken. He fent for
me twice before I went, When I came to him, I
received Money for a Writ againft that Lady 5 on
which I fent my Affiftant for a Writ.

L. C. . Holt. Who was your Affiftant ?

Mr. Hartwell., (Pointing to Spurr, faid, be was
bis Affftant ). 1 {ent the Writ to Mr. Wakeman, to
oct himto ferve it.  He was not at Home, and L
went to him the next Morning, I afked him whe-
ther he would ferve the Writ, he told me he would 3
and I told him the fame that Mr. Helt told me,
that it could not be done till Friday Morning, On
Friday Morning Mr., Holt went with me, and thefe
Officers, Wakeman and Spurr. He bid us be ready,
and faid the Coach was coming.  So we ferved the
Writ as we were ordered, and went to the Star and
Garter Tavern in Drury-Lane 5 from then.z I car-
ried her to my Houfe. If I had had any miftruft
of any bad Defign, I would have carried her back
again, But I came forward with her to my Houfe.
In a little time after fhe had been there, came
Mrs. Bayuton, and one that is gone now [meaning
Mr. Swendfen] was fent for, by fome Stratagem
that I knew not of. They being together, told
me, that every thing was agreed of and made
eafy.

}’L. C. 7. Holt. What was made cafy ?

Mr. Hartwell, The Debt, as I thought, my Lord.
When I carried the young Gentlewoman firft to my
Houfe, I left her with my Wite and a young Wo-
man. When I came Home again, I found Mr.
Swendfen and this Gentlewoman there, who told
me, that every thing was made eafy. On which
they defired to go to any Tavern, I knew not where :
But they agreed to go to the ¥ine Tavern in Hel-

bourn,
Ppp2 LC7.
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L. C. 7. Hot. Why did you take her from her

Friend Mrs. Bufby.
Mr. Hartwell. It is ufual with Officers to do

with Prifoners as they pleafe.

L. C. . Holt. That is a barbarous Thing to fe- p

parate them one from another, when you could ap-
vrehend there was no Danger of being relcued.

Mr. Hartwell, MyLord, [ beg yourLordfhip’sPar-
don, I have no Counfel but my felf 3 I may fpeak
Things in Point of Law that may prejudice my
Life 3 but asto the Purpofe T'll fpeak the Truth,

L. C. . Holt. You made her put on her Mafk 3

you forc’d her to it.
My, Hartwell, Mrs. Rasolins, Did I force you to

put on your Mafk?
Mus. Rawlins. Yes, he forced me, but I would

not at firft 3 but he forced me.  When I cry’d out
Murder, he faid, Put on your Maifk, and hold
your Tongue, or you fhall go to Newgate.

L.C. ¥ Iblt., What Writ had you againft
Mrs. Bufby ?

Mr, Hartwell, There was no fuch thing, myLord.

L. C.¥. Ihlt, You faid you had a Writ againit
Mrs. Bufby, and another againft Mrs. Raw/ins.

Mr. Hartwoell, My Lord, asto a Writ aganft
the young Lady, there was one 5 I know no other
poltavcly.

L. C. 7. Holt. Why did you refufe Heli’s and
Swendfen’s Bail.

Mr. artwell. It was no fuch thing, my Lord ;
I cannot help what the People fwear: 1 hope to
prove to the contrary, both from the beginning to
the end,

L. C.¥. Holt. Why did you part with your Pri-
foner at the Vine Tavern without Bail 2

Mr. Hartwell. My Lord, 1 no {ooner came into
the Fiae Tavern, but the Perfon that employ’d me,
cave me the Money ;3 which was this Woman
{ pontiiig to Mrs, Baynton].

Mrs. Baynton, You faid Holt employ’d you, I
aave-him no Money, my Lord 5 and he declared,
that he never faw me before in his Life.

My, Parker called.

L. C. 7. Helt. Where do you hive ?

My, Parker. 1lived at the Star and Garter then,
and Mr. Hvlt was there, who fent me for Mr.
Hartwell.

Mr., Hartwell, My Lord, when I came there,
Mr. Helt was drinking, and it was all out but a Glafs.
Fle afked me to drink 3 which I did.  Then we
went from the Siar and Garter down to the Mifie
in Weftminfler, which was Fol’s Houfe. Being
there, and I fmoaking a Pipe, in came this Lady
[ pointing te Mys, Baynton] and gave me Money
fora Wrir. I fent my Affiltant for the Writ, and
the firft Perfon | lic off; which was Mr. #akeman,
I made ufe of to afiift meinit, When I ferv’d ic
at the Star and Garter Tavern, this Gentlewoman
[poiiting to Mrs, Baynton] afk’d me where I lived ¢
I fuid in Witchfireet.  Said fhe, take care.of her
(Mrs. Rawling) and take her along with you to your
IToule, oryou will lofe your Money. So I carried
her to my Houfe, -and having Bufinefs elfewhere, I
left her with my Wife, and 2 young Woman to keep
her Company.  When I came again, 1 found M.
Swendfen and this Gentlewoman there drinking a
Pur of Sack, They told me if T would go to any
Tavern, the Bufinefs fhould be made up. We took
- Coach and went to the Pine Tavern, and tiere the
Matter was madean end of.  They told me that
they would fatisfy me for my Trouble on Monday

Night, if I would meet them at Mr, Hol#'s, Away
I went, and was taken Il to that Degree that T
thought I fhould have died.

L. C. F. Holt. How can you prove that fhe em.
loy’d you.

Mr. Harpwell, 1believe I fhall have fomebody to
prove that, But, my Lord, the main Witncfs of
mine is not come in, and that is Mr, Folt,

L. C. 7. Holt. He is fled.

Mr. Hartwell, But, my Lord, I fuppofe his Wife
is here. My Lord, I hope you will allow Mr. 7741,
man to come into the Court, that I may afk him

fome Queftions.

Fuftice Powel. A Woman cannot be a Witnefs
for or againft her Hufband ; Then for what reafon
fhould fhe be called ?

Mr. Fartwell, What can be more material than
my going to Holf's? Ihave no other Perfons
to appear for me,

L. C. 7. Holt, Did Holt firlt employ you ?

Mr. Hartwell, He firft fent for me, my Lord.

L. C.F. Holt, Have you any other Witnefles ?

Mr. Hartwell. My Lord, 1 thought they call’d
for IWakeman,

Mr. Wakeman called,

L.C % I, Afk him what

will,
Mr, Hartwell, Mr. Wakeman, Who was it em-

ploy’d me,

Mr. Wakemair, He never told me who employ’d
him till he came to the Recorder’s, and then he
told me that this Woman [ patuting lo Mrs, Bayn-
ton] employ’d him.  The Recorder afk’d me who
it was employ’d me? Hartwell made Anfwer,
and faid, I cmploy’d him ; and faid hikewife, that
the Woman brought him Money for the Writ,

Mrs. Baynton, 1 never gave Hartwell Money,
nor employed him, nor confefled to the Recorder,

Mr, Wakeman callld a Witnefs, who faid for
Hartwell, that ’twas Mrs, Baynton confefled be-
fore the Recorder upon her Examination, that fhe
gave Money to, and employ’d Hariwell to fue
out a Writ againlt Mrs, Kawlins, at the Suit of 77,
Fones for 201, and gave for Reafon, on farther Exa-
mination, that the faid Foues owed Mrs. Bayuton 201,
And he wrote to Mrs. Baynton to get Arrefted Mrs.
Rawlins for 201, due from her to Foues 3 and that
on fuch Arreft, Mrs, Ratwlins would pay the Mo-
ney to Mrs, Baynton.

L. C. . Holt. Have you any thing more to fay?

Mr. Hartwell. My Lord, I never faw Mr. Swend-
fen before he came to my Houfe with Mrs, Bayntor,
when the young Gentlewoman was there.  'When |
came in, they were drinking a Pint of Sack together.
The young Lady was very free to go the Vinz
Tavern. Madam, Were you not free to go ¢

Mrs. Rawfins. I do not deny but I was free to go.

Mr. Hartwell, Did we offer any Rudenefs to you
at that Place ¢ _

Mrs. Rawlins. No, nct then,

L. C. ¥, Holt, That -is the Thing you are (0
anfwer to, your taking her away by Force.

Mr, Hartwell. My Lord, I know nothing of it 3
I cannot help it, my Lord, there is nothing in it,

Mr, Hartwell, Mr, Wakeman, Did 1 know any
thing of your being with Mr. Holt and Mr. Swend-
fen at the Frve-Bell Tavern ?

Mr, Wakeman. 1 don’t know that you did.

Mr. Hartwell. No, my Lord, I knew nothing
of it till Jaft Thurfday he told me of i,

L. C. . Holt, Who {ent for Mr. Swendfei Ii/[
' I3

ueltions you
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Mrs, Rawlins, Mrs, Bayiton.

Mr. Hartwell. Mrs. Rawlins, Was 1 in the Houle
ar that Time ¢

Mrs. Rawlins. No, I did not fec you there then,

Mr. Hartwell, My Lord, with SubmifTion to
your Lordfhip, I underftand by fomething [ have
heard, fince I have been in Cuftody, that this Gen-
tewoman, Mrs. Bayiton, faid to Mrs. Rawlins,
Shall I fend for my Brother ?

L. C. ¥. Holt. Do you keep a Publick Houfe ?

Mr, Hartwell. No, my Lord, only a Prifon-
Room, but fell no Drink : This Gentlewoman was
in the Parlour all the while,

L. C. §. Holt, Have youany thing morcto fay ?

Mr, Hartwell. Nothing at all; my Lord ; I was
ral’d by the Perfon that employ’d me.

Fuft. Powel, What did you apprehend by this ?

Mr, Hartwell. She told me there was one gone
for 3 and fhe faid {he would bring a Gentleman to
pay me the Moncy.

L. C. . Holt. Mr. Spurr, What fay you?

Mr, Spurr. 1 know nothing more of the Matter,
than Mr, Hartwwell’s giving me Money for taking out
the Mar/bal’s CourtWris, and I wasemploy’d by him,

L.C. 7. Holr. When Mrs, Bufby cry’d out, did
you not fay, What have you got by your Bawling ?

No cufiver mad.

Mr. Mouniague, We have a few Words to re-
ply, if the Prifoners have done. The Gentlewoman
at the Bar nfilts upon it, that Mrs, Razding was
confenting to the Matter, was tn Love with Mr,
Swendfen : We think, not only by the Evidence
aiven, but by what they fay themielves, that fhe
was carry’d away by Force.  Indeed when fhe was
taken into Hartwell’s Houfe, there was no body
by at that Time, but thole fhe was not afraid of.
To conclude 5 if there was any Confent by Mys.
Rawlins, it was only to have her baiPd 3 1t was thar
only thac fhe defign’d.  FHariwell {ays, he was
only employ’d as a Badliff by Helt: He carry'd
them trom his Houle to the Vine Tavern : Now,
what Occafion had be to carry them to the Tavern
for Bail 2 We fhall prove further, that when they
cume to the Viwe, Hartwell himlelf was faid to
bz the Bail tor the Aétion.

Anne Cotchet called, and fworn.

Mr. Meuitague, Miftrefs, pray will you givean
Account how Hartsell brought the Prifoner there?

Cotchet, Mr. Hartwwell, when the Coach came,
ordered a Pint of Wine for the Coachman, The
Drawer {faid, We draw, and draw, but don’c know
who will pay for it. Mr. Hartweli came to me,and faid,
itwas an Arrelt for 120/, that he would fee us paid.

L. C. Y. Holt. Was it the Woman in the White
Gown that was Arrefted for 120/,

Cotchet, Yes, my Lord.

Mr., Hartwell, Did you fee me in Company with
the Parfon ?

Corchet, You came down Stairs, and ordered 2
Pint of Wine for the Parfon, and half a Pint befides
and told me the Parfon was the Bail,

Mr. Hartwell. 1 did not know that the Parfon
was in the Houfe, till I had jult done my Bufinefs,
and was going away. Did you fee me with the
Parfon Madam Rawfins 2

Mrs. Rawlins, 1do not.tell you fo.

Mr., Mountague, Allthat is to be prov’d in this
Indi&ment is, that the was taken away againft her
Wiil, and afterwards compell’d to marry.

Cotchet, 1 did not fee Mr. Hartwell after that,

L. C. ¥. Holt. Gentlemen of the Jury, thefe
three Prifoners are indicted for Felony, upon the
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Statute made in the third Year of Kihg Hanry the
Seventh ; That they with Hangen Swendfen now con-
victed, and Thomas Holt that is fled, did violently
and felonioufly affault one Pleafant Rawlins, being
feized of an Eftareof Inheritance of about 20f, per A,
and pefiefled of a perfonal Eftate of the Value of
2000 /, and took her away by Force againft herWill;
and that he, Swendfen, did marry her. Now the
Queftion 1s, Whether the Prifoners ar the Bar are
guilty of this Crime ?  Tirlt, As to Mrs, Bayuton
you have heard what an Account is given of her ¢
She was a Perfon that came to ledge at Mrs, Night-
ingale’s Houfe 1n Stretton-Grounds in Weftminfler ¢
She went for 2 Widow, by the Name of Sarah Bayn-
ton, It feems, Mrs. Bufby and Mrs, Rawlins did
lodge about three Years in Mrs, Nightiygale's Houfe,
"They being all fingle, were very well fatisfy’d one
with another. Mrs, Rawlins was plac’d by her
Guardian under the Care of Mrs, Bufby ; and hasa
perfonal Eftate of 2000 /. and 20/, a Year, About
three Weeks before Michaelmas laft, you hear of one
Mrs, §t. Jobn that was an Acquaintance of one Mrs,
Nighiingale’s, came to her and told herof Mrs. Bayi-
ton, a well-difpofed Gentlewoman, that was come
toTown about a Suit of Law, and thought fhe thould
{tay about 2 Month, and thought that her Houfe
was a proper Place for her Lodging, and gave hera
very good Charalter, that the was a ctvil religious
Woman, of a good Converfation, and defired to be
near the Church,  After fome Time, Mrs, Bayuton
came her felf. She faid, as Mrs, 8¢, Fobn had done
before, that the came 10 Town about a Law Bufi-
nefs, was a Widow in the /7gf, Mis. Nightigale,
by reafcn of the Character that was given her, re-
ceived her into her Houle, When {he was there,
the behaved herfelf very civilly for fome Time 3 fo
thae Mrs. Nightisgale and Mrs. Bufby were well
pleafed with her, and thought her to be a Gentle-
woman of very ingenious Converfation,  She tells
them {hie had a Brother that had Intereft in Ship-
ping 5 and fo there was an Invitation of Mrs, Bifby,
Mys. Razwliis, and Mrs, Bayaton, to go on Ship-
board, where they were treated by Mr. Sweidfen,
Mr, Swendfen ufed to vifit Mrs, Bayaton 5 and fhe
ufed to call him Brother: While fhe was there,
Swendfen dined ¢ ot 10 Times. She had not been
there long, before they began to have different Ap-
prehenfions of her from what they had at firft, and
were very uneafy at her Continuance. Mrs, Baynlon
did apprehend there was fome Appearance of Un-
cafinefs ;3 and came to Mrs. Nightingale and told
her, {he had made an end of her Suit of Law, and
had no oceafion to ftay in T'own, but would return
into the Country. It feems Mrs. Nightingale and
Mrs. Bufty were well pleafed with Mrs, Baynton's
Warning. Before fhe went away, fhe underftood
that Mrs, Bufby and Mrs, Rawilins uled to go to
Oxendon Chapel 5 fhe came to them and faid, (he
had occafion to go that way with a Band-Box to
her Milliner’s 3 told them fhe went ina Coach, and
if they pleafed they might go with her, and fhe
would fet them down ata Place ncar the Chapel.
They accepted her Civility, thinking nothing of
any Defrzn; and as the Coach was driving along, 1t
was ftopped by Bailiffs, and allon a fudden Hart-
well opens the Coach, and thrufts himfelf into 1t
Mrs. Bufby and Mrs, Rawlins were not confcious of
any Caufe of an Arreft, thought the Arreft wasupon
Mrs. Baynton, they began to be concern’d for hers but
it appeared that twas upon them, and then Mrs,

Bayntonfeem’d asmuch concern’d for them when they
“were both to be carry’d away; but afked Harfwell

what
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what it was for ? He told them it was no greatMatter;
but if you and I talk rogether a litcle, all will be well,
Mis, Bayuton exprefs’d her felf to be much concern’d
for Mrs. Bufby 5 fhe advifed her not to talk any
Thing with him, without her Friends were nigh.
And when they were in the Coach, it was directed
to be drove away, Mrs. Bufby defired to be carried
to Fleetfrect to her Friends; but Hartwell would
carry her to the Star and Garter Tavern in Drury-
Laie.  Mrs, Baynton continued in the Coach until
they came thither, and then pretended to go for
Mrs. Bufby’s Friends 5 and when they were at the
Star and Garter Tavern they were carry’d into a
Back-Room. Mis., Bufby forced her felf with the
young Woman into a lore-Room ; then Hart-
well laid Hands upon Mrs. Rawlins, and faid fhe was
his Prifoner, and carries her away by Violence, forces
her down Stairs, and fwears at her to put on her
Mafk, otherwile he would carry her to Newzale.
Mus. Bufly, the Prifoner above Stairs, wasto go to
Newpgate, as was pretended 5 but Mrs, Rawlins was
to go to the Marfhalfea.  Away fhe was carried to
the Houle of Mr, Hartzoell 5 but Mrs, Bayrton who
pretended, that as fhe was going by chance tha
Way heard Mrs, Razg/ins named 5 thereupon fhe goes
in, and very luckily finds her there, and pretends
to pity her Condition, and faid fhe had been with
teveral of her Iriends to be her Bail, but could pro-
cure none of them to come, Then fhe faid the would
oo for her Brother Swenmdfein, who fhe was fure
would be her Bail.  Upon that Mefluge he came,
and then Mrs. Rawlins was to be carry’d to the
Vige Tavern,  Mus, Baynton went with her thither,
as they pretended, to make up the Bufinefs. Then
it was propofed that Holt and Szvemdfen fhould
be Baill.  Hartzeell vefufed them as infufficient :
Upon which the was told fhe was in danger of going
to Newgale, and Bail could not be taken ; and the
only Way was, that the muft be marry’d to Swend-
Jeir 5 and if fhe did not marry, fhe fhould go to
Newpate,  Mus, Bayizoi took the Ring from oft her
Finger, i order to get a Wedding-Ring to be made
by it 5 which being procured, there was 2 Parfon in
the Foule ready provided with a Clerk to do the
Office, who camie into the Room where the Mar-
rizge was made, and fo ended thar Arreft.  From
the Zine Tavern fhe 1s carry’d with Mr, Szoendfon
and Mrs. Bayuton to Mr. Blake’s Houle, and there the
was forc’d to Bed: Within an Hour and Half they
arife again, at Seven a-Clock at Nighe ; and thus the
Marriage was confummated.  As for Mrs. Baynzon
there 1s this further Proof upon her, that fhe did pay
Hurtwell for this very Arrelt, which is proved
upon her by her own Confeffion, before the Recorder.,
Then, asto Hartwell, he 15 affeCted by thefe Cir-
cumftances. Lirlt, there was no Procels againft Mrs,
Bufby, but yet fhe was Arrefted and carry’d to the
Gurter Tavern, where the was kept in Cultody un-
til the Evening, and could not procure any Friends
to be called to hers and Guring theT'ime of her being
there, Mrs. Rawlins was married to Mr. Swendfer
at the Vine Tavern. And 1t is further prov’d againft
him, that when the Parfon was come, he told the

Miltrefs at the Pize Tavern, that the Parfon was to

be one of the Bail, It is alfo prov’d, that he infifted
upon very good Bail ; for he rold the Woman of the
Houlfe the Arreft was for 120/, when as itappear’d
it was but for 20/, Now you are to confider what
hath been faid in their Defence, Mrs, Baynton fays,
that Mrs. Rawlins was in Love with Mr, Swendfen,
and did complain of her Confinement and hard
Ulage s and that fhe told her the could help Mr.
Swendfen to a young Lady at her own Difpofal ; and

that there was one Mr. Prugh that made Application
to Mrs. Rawlins 3 but fhe return’d his Letters that
fhe had recciv’d from him : That Mrs, Rawlins did
fay, that fhe could help Mr. Swendfen toa Lady thae
had a Fortune at her own Difpofal, which is own’d
by Mrs. Rawlins 5 and that by that Lady fhe did
mean her felt ; but that fhe had any familiar Dif
courfe with him in the Garden, or that fhe was Sick
for him, and went up and cried for him, that fhe
denies upon her Oath.  And further fays, that fhe
never intended to do any Thing agamft the Advice
of her Friends, or that fhe had fet her Love upon
him. Then Mrs. Baynton charges Mrs, Bufly, that
fhe had a Kindnefs for her Brother Swendfen, be-
caufe The faid he was her beloved Likenefs, Mys,
Bufby owns, that he was fomething like her Huf-
band, and on that Account mighr innocently call
him fo.  As for Hartwell, he 1elies on his being
a Bailiff, and in Executton of his Office, being em-
ploy’d by Mr. Helt and Mrs. Baynton, and that the
paid him for the Wit Mr. Tolt {ent for him, and
he knew nothing but of Arrcft, and was not privy
toany other Defign. It is prov’d indeed, that Mr,
Holt did {fend for him,  This is the Sum and Sub.
(tance of his Defence. 1 mwit tell you, that if
Haitzeell was employ’d in this Defign, 10 order to
take her into Cuftody to carry on this Marriage, and
was privy to It, then he is equally Guilty 3 but if
he did only At as a Bailiff, and did not know the
Defign, then he is not Guilty,  But his Arrefting
Mrs. Bufby, againit whom he had no Procefs, and
taking Mrs. Rawlins from Mrs. Bufoy to his own
Houle, and from thence carrying her to the Vine
Tavern; Ins pretending that the Warrant was for
120 /. when as in Truth 1t was but for 20/, and his
pretending that the Parfon was to be the Dail,
though he was not prefent in the Room where the
Marriage was, but hard by ; yet he was in the fame
Houle, which is all one, if he knew what Defign
was a-foot : Thele are the Things you are to confi-
der of. As for Mrs, Bayuton, the pretended fhe was
a Widow, and you hear how fhe proves it 3 and
when fhe is taxed with having a Child, then fhe
fays fhe hath a Huofband,  And when fhe is atked
about him, fhe will give no Account, nor how fhe
fupports her felf.  She {uid indeed the paid every
Body thetr own, and that the has no Difference with
any Body whatfoever. She pretended the was Mrs.
Razelings Iriend in what the did 5 butit s plun
by what fhe owns her [elf, that fhe employ’d
Hartwell, and paid him for the Writ, And her pre-
tending to fet them down at Oxendon Chapel, there
it was her Defign to bring them under that Force
to effect this Marriage. I muoft leave 1t to you to
confider, whether from the beginning to the end the
was not an Actrefs and a Manager of this whole
Bufinefs, She hath been atked how Mr, Swendfer
came to be her Brother,  Iurft fhe fuys, he was her
decealed Sifter’s Hufbane,  Then being atked who
was that Silter ? She faid he was an adopted Sifter’s
Hufband. It was very extraordinary for her to go
to Mr. Hartwell’s Meoufte the young Gentlewo-
man, and pretend that fhe came by chance, and
heard her Name, 1 muft leave it to you Gentlemen
of the Jury to confider of the whole Matter : And as
for Spurr, he was an Under-Officer, a Bailiff’s
Follower, and might be ignorant of the Bufinefs.
Youhave not Evidenceenough tomake it appear that
he was privy to this Defign, and therefore you are
toacquit him 5 but as to Mrs, Baynton and Hart-
well, if they were privy to this Defign of a force-
ably taking away of Mrs, Rawlins, withan Intent to

marry her to Swendfen, asit is plain that he was an
Actor,
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ador, and fhe Abettor in the Force; then Gen-
tlemen you are to find them Guilty : if you are not
{uisfed, you are to Acquit them.

The Jury went out for half an Hour, and brought

in the following Verdicts.
Mrs. Bayuton, Guilty.
Mr. Hartwell, Not Guilty.
Mr. Spurr, Not Guilty.

L. C. F. Holt faid 1o Hartwell, You have bad a very
Merciful Fury, let it be a Warning io you for the future.
Mrs. Baynton. My Lord, [am with Child,

L. C. F. Holt. Thatwill be conlidered on Saturday

November the 28th,

The Prifoners were called to the Bar to receive Sen-
tence of Death.

Mr. Sofl. Gen. I pray your Lordfhip’s Juagment
againlt the Prifoners at the Bar.

Cl. of Arr. Haagen Swendfenr hold up thy Hand.
Thou haft been convicted of Felony done by thee
and committed on Mrs. Pleafant Rawlins, and the
Jury hath found thee Guilty 5 What have you to fay
for your fclf, why you fhould not receive Sentence
of Death according to Law ?

Mr. Swendfen. 1 could fay a great deal, but I fhall
fay but a very little. I do not doubt but the ho-
nourable Court obferv’d how various the was in her
Evidence, What fhe deny’d in my Trial, fhe con-
fef.d in Mrs, Bayirtor’s 5 and fo I leave it to the
Court, if there may be an Arrelt of Judgment ull
the next Term,

L.C. . Hblt. Unlefs you can fhew us{ome Caufe
for it, 1t will not be granted.

M, Swendfen. My Lord, She faid thofe Things
in her Triul which fhe deny’d in mine.

L. C. . Holi. Some Things fhe mentioned in
your T'rial, that (he had no occafion for in hers.

Mr. Swendfer. The fame Things that were in my
Trial were in hers.

L.C. ¥ Illt. There were fome Things in her
Trial that was not In yours.

Cl. of vy, Sarab Bayntonhold upthy Hand, Thou
hatt been Indited for Felony, and found Guilty.
What haft thou to fay for thy felf, why you fhou’d
not receive Sentence of Death according to Law ¢

Mrs. Baynton. My Lord, I am with Child.

L. C. . Holt. That is no Plea againit Judgment,

Mrs, Bavaton, My Lord, I defire that 1t may be
taken into Confideration, how that fhe contradited
her felf in her Evidence ; thatfhe fpokethofe Things
in Mr. Swendferw’s Trial, that fhe contraditted 1n
mige. I chink [ have a great deal of Injultice 5 I
am as innocent as any Perfon in the Court.

L. C. . Helt. That you did this Thing is molt
apparent ¢ that you deluded this young Perlon, and
pretended yourfelf to be a Perfon of Quality, a Reli-
vious Woman, and one that came out of the Coun-
try about a JLaw-Suit ; that you pretended that this
Mr, Swendfen, the Prifoner at the Bar, was your
B-other, your Sifter’s Hufband ; and all this Falfe
Dealing was to bring him in to delude this Woman.
It is phin, you had no Suicof Law, as you pretend-
od, It is plin, you took out this Procefs againft
the young Gentlewoman. It is plain, that you pre-
tended you would fet them down at a Chapel.

Mrs, Baynton. It is not the firft time, my Lord,
that | fet them down,

L. C. ¥. Holr, But you made ule of this Strata-
gem to accomplifh the Arreft.  You have deluded
the World by thefe Things ; and indeed 1t 1s very
hard againft you.

Mrs. Baynton. My Lord, they defired me to fet
them down,
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L. C. . Holt. The Licence was taken out be-
fore the 6th of November a confiderable time,

Msr. Baynton. MyLord, She cannot deny but fhe
{poke for it to me. She her felf ordered it tobe done.
My Lord, when I was upon my Trial, abundance
of People prompted her to fpeak thofe Things fhe -
knew nothing of 5 Mrs. Bufby in particular ; thouglh
1 do not queftion but the her felf would have mar-
ried Mr. Swendfen, for fhe exprefled Love for him
in calling of him her Beloved Likenefs.

L. C. F. Holt, She faid he was like her Hufband
and therefore on that Account fhe might fay fo.

Crier, Makean O 1es.

Mr.Swendfen. My Lord, my Trialhas already made
a great Noile in the World ; and I do not know but
that by this time it may be come to the Queen’s
Ear, therefore I defire that your Lordfhip would
be pleafed to make a favourable Conftruction of it
to her.

L. C.¥. Holt, Well, Ido not queftion but Her
Majefty hath heard of it.

Crier, Make an O Xes, while Fudgment is given.

Jultice Powell, You that are the Prifoners at the
Bar, Haagen Swendfen and Sarab Baynton, you have
been both Trieed and Convicted of a very great Of-
fence, for which you are brought to receive that
Judgment that the Law requires. You have had a
very folemn Trial, and have both been Convicted
upon very plain and full Evidence, Your Offence i
of a very high Nature ; and I am glad that you have
had fuch a folemn T'rial, that all People may know
how great a Crime this of Fortune-ftealing is (which.
is Death by the Law) and may take Warning by
you ; it may be a great many People do not know
how penal this Offence may be, but I hope your
Trial may be a Means to deter others from making
ufe of fuch wicked Pracices. Your Offence hath
been in a Nation where Property is better preferv’d
than in any other Government in the World. Here
it is Death for a Man to take away any Thing,
though never fo fmall, by way of Robbery : How
much worfe is it for you to take away the Child of a
Man, and with her all that he hath gotten by his
Induftry all his Life-time, atonce? This is moft
certainly a very great Offence againft the Publick,
being fo great a Violation of Property ; and the In-
jury you have done to this Woman is very great too,
and cannot be repaired: All the Satisfaction that
can be given, is by taking away the Lives of thofe
Perfons that were the Contrivers of it. You Haagen
Swendfen have had the Privilege (the Law allows to
Forcigners) of a Party-Jury 5 and I believe, had
there been any room for a Jury to bring you in not
Guilty, you hadnot been found Guilty 5 but the Fact
wasprov’d foplain upon you that they could not poffi-
bly avoid it. It is true, you infifted upon it that you
were not prefent at her firlt taking, and that (he gave
her Confent to the Marriage. It is true, thac you were
not prefent when fhe was firft taken, but there were
{trong Prefumptions to conclude that you were pri-
vy and confenting to ir, which will render you equal-
ly culpable as if you had been prefent. Ior when
the was taken in Cuftody, fhe was brought to an
Floufe where Holt and you were feen together 3 Holt
being the Man that fet the Coach, and gave Di-
reions to the Buailiffs when to feize her; and be-
fides, you had a Licence prepar’d for your Marriage
to her. Thefe are very great Circumitances of your
being privy to the firlt raking,  Bue admitting you
were not privy to the firft taking, you were privy to
her being in Cuftody under an Arreft, when you

was brought to Bail this Woman 5 and Word was
brought
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brought in that they were contented to take
Bail, hut excepted againft your’s; and when fhe
was told by Sarab Bayiton fhe muft go to Newgate
unlefs fhe marry’d you, you were prefentat all this ;
and this being done and aled whlft the firft Force
was continued upon her, is in Law a forceably tak-
ing 3 fo that you are plainly guilty of a forceable
taking., And then alfo, if that were neceffary, of
marrying of her by conftraint, fhe buing under
Menaces, that if the would not marry you the muft
0o to Newgate: You yourfelf were confcious, this
was no fuch Confent as Marriage requires, {ince

that Evening you made Application to a Julticeof  you came, and from thence 1o the Place of

Peace to take an Affidavit from her that fhe had
given her Confent. When you brought Witnefies
to give an Account of your former Life and Con-
verfation, that fome Years fince you were an able
Merchant in your Country, one in great Credit, an
ingenious Man, and of good Intereft and Acquain-
tance there, [ confefs, I had great Commiferation
for you, and thought that this Misfortune befel you
upon the Account of your Acquaintance with this
1l Woman 5 the Acquaintance with fuch a Woman
will make a rich Merchant quickly poor, will foon
reduce a wealthy Man to a Morlfel of Bread. 1
am afraid that the hath been a very great Inftru-
ment 1n your Ruin,

And you Sarab Baynton, when you were afk’d to
give an Account of what kind of Life you liv’d, it
appear’d to be but 2 very forry one indecd, fo that
I could not but conclude you to bea very lewd
Womun, You had Wit and Parts enough which
might have been of great Service to you, it you had
lived honeftly 5 but you made ule of them to ano-
ther End, and 1t 1s not fitting that you fhould live
Jonger that cannot live better,  You contrived and
caurried on all this wicked Defign from firlt to laft 5
and that you nuighe the better perform it, you went
to a civil Houfe under the Charater of a Gentle-
woman, that came out of the Country about a Suit
of Law. There you pretend to be a very good Wo-
man, and feem to be much pleafed with the Fami-
ly, becanfe they were fober People; but your De-
fign was to entice and delude this young Woman,
Whether your Defign ar the beginning was to com-
mit this Fact, I cannog tell 5 but being not uled to
this Courfe of Life, you could not wear your Dif-
gutle long withour Difcovery 5 you began to be
fufpected and to be feen through 5 the Family was
very willing to be rid of your Company 5 which
you perceiving, you refolved you would Atchieve
your Defign before you went, For that End you in-
vite them into a Coach, promifing to fet them down
where they were going 5 but inftead of that, you em-
ploy Bailifls to Arrett them 5 for you with your own
Fand paid the Baiif} that was to do it 3 and after
they were taken, you pretended to pity them, And
when Mrs, Rawlins wasat Mr, Hartzoell’s Houte, you
pretended that you accidentally and providentially
over-heard her Name mentioned in Mr. Hartwell’s
Houle, as you pafled in the Street. You go into the
Ioufe, and pity her Condition, and propofe your
Brother for her Bail 5 but inftead of that, all your
Defign was to bring about this Marriage ; and for
that ®End you forced her Ring from her to get ano-
ther made by it, It was you that told her fhe muft
o0 10 Newgate tnlefs the married your Brother ;
and atier chat forced her to Bed,  From the
Begtning to the End you carried on this wicked
Detign to the Ruin of this young Woman 5 you
have a greae deal to anfiver for. I have [tated this
Matter, that you may be fagisfed thae chis Fact

hath been proved againft you both very fully, ang
therefore you can (:}Cpf:& no other than all AW;l'd of
the Punifhment the Law requires, that s, Death, I
hope you will reflect upon thofe evil Coypfes I];:u:
have brought you to this End.  You have byt 2
fhort Time to live, and therefore it would ya wel‘l
for you to confider your Future State: You ma

have better Inftructions for that than I cqp gi;r}(:
you 3 therefore I will now proceed to the Sentence

which 1s, "

That you flall go heitce to the Place from cuhy,
| Executiyy,
and tha! theve you feverally bang by your Necks yug).
you are aeady and fo the Lord have Mercy upos
yaur Souls,

Mr, Swoendfein. My Lord, now I am bound to dg
this Woman Juflice.  She hath not been the Cop.
trver of it, It was all done by my Direction 5 and
for her fake I defive the Queen may know of i,

L. C. J. Holt. Well, that will clear up the Dol
to fome of your Countrymen, who did think thac
you were not the Contriver of it

M. Swendfen. I defire, my Lord, that the Matter
may be reprefented to the Queen as favourable ag
you can.

Cl. of Arr. Sarch Bayntoit, Hold up thy Hand.

Baynton, My Lord, I am with Child.

L. C.¥. Hdlt. Leta Jury of Matrons be fent for.

They are fent for. Upon the bearing of ber Sentence
She fell into Fits,

Cl. of Arr. Youthe Matrons of the Jury, fhall
view and diligently enquire, and a true Verdiét give
according to your Lvidence, whether Sarab Payirtoi
be with Child, quick with Child, or not.  So help

you God.
The Names of the Jury of Matrons are as follow

Mrs, Sarab IVebb.

{ Mrs. Dorothy Mordit.
| Mrs. Eliz, Guernella.
Mrs. Maiy Rogers,
Mrs. Fane Smithfon.
Mrs. Margaret Leach.

Mrs, Sarab Fobufon,
Mrs. Chriftian IValker,
Mrs, Sufannab Goff.
Mrs, Mary Herbert,
Mrs, Sarab Randol,
Mrs, Mary Vere,

L. C. 7. Lolt. You the Matrons are to confider
well the Oath you have taken, which is diligently
to enquire whether this "Woman be quick with
Child: It fhe be with Child, but not quick, you
are to give your Verdict fo; and if the be not
quick with Child, then fhe is to undergo the Execu-
tion of the Sentence 1n conventent Time.,

About balf an Houvr after the Furysf Matrons came 1.
L. C. . Holt. Are you agreed in your Verdict ?
Aifew. Yes,

L.C. 7. Holt. Who fhall fay for you?

Anfw. The Fore-Woman,

L. C. ¥. Holt. Do you find the Prifoner to be
with Child, with Quick Child or not ?

o [\I/Irs. Fobufon, Yes, my Lord, fheis quick with
ild.

L. C. . Holt. Is this your Verdict 2

Mrs, Fobufon. Yes, Sir.

L. C. . Helt. And fo you fay all?

Anfww, Yes, my Lord.

L. C.¥. Holt. Hark ye, Mrs. Baynton ! Thefe
Women by their Verdict give you longer Time to
prepare you for Death, and therefore I hope you
will improve your Time, for the Judgment is paft,

and will be executed foon after your Delivery.
Sarah
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Sarah Baynton was repricved,

bt Haagen
swendfen wwas execuited,
He made wo Speech at the Place of Execution, but

referr’d bimfelf to the following Paper, which be lefs
with the two Divines who attended bim,

«« ¥ Do believe the World will expet I fhould fay,
o« § fomething for their Satisfaction, That T had
«¢ 1 Defign to have Mrs. Rawlins for myWife is moft
«ue, I was told of her by a Neighbour and
«« Friend of hers, and then made a further Enquiry,
« and found her Quality fuch as I mighe, without
« any Exceptions, prefume to, her Father being
¢ the Son of a Tradefman 5 the next was, how to
«« get into her Acquaintance 3 and not knowing how
«¢ 1o be introduc’d, I prevail’d with, and perfuaded
¢« Mrs. Baynton to take a Lodging in the fame Houfe
«¢ with Mus, Rawlins, by which Means I found eafy
«« Accefs to my Wifhes, and was as welcome to the
« Family, as if I had been one of themfelves, I had
¢ their Company on Board a Ship, where I gave
<« them an Entertainment, and was invited to dine
¢ with them, and by degrees I poflefs’d my felf of
¢« Mrs. Rawlins’s Affe€ion fo far, that fhe feem’d
« yneafy without me, and frequently importun’d for
«“ my fpeedy Return, and obliged me to {it next to
¢ her at Table, faying, that if I did not, the would
¢ not eat, and treated me with many private Ca-
« refles, by which Lovers, who have not frequent
«« Qpportunity of fpeaking, do by Signs and Tolens
“ exprefs themfelves.

¢« [ do declare thar T had as good Reception as a
« Lover could wifh for, and all the Encouragement
«“ imaginable 5 infomuch that nothing feem’d dif-
« agreeable to my Intentions, but all things did pro-
“ mife to facilitate my Defign with Succefs, (he her
 felf having told me that the was at her own Dif-
¢ pofal, and would marry to pleafe her felf,

«« My Familiarity with Mrs, Rawliis before my
¢« Marriage was fo great, that there was no room
«« |oft for me to practife Violence upon her 5 tho’ 1
« muft fay I was impatient of Delays, and wifl’d
«“ for an Opportunity to accomplifh my Defire.

¢ But as for the unhappy Contrivance of the ar-
¢ yefting Mrs. Rawlins, 1 had no fhare in it, but was
« nerfuaded to confent to it by Mr. /—— and s
¢« Wife ; and when the Intrigue was brought to Per-
¢ fo@ion, I comply’d, and lid hold of the Oppor-
‘“ tunity, in order to marry Mrs, Rawlins, which
« with lictle Difficulty, and lefs Perfuafion, I ac-
 complifl’d ; {o having, without any Force or Vio-
« Jence, declar’d to the Minifter that fhe was at her
“ own Difpofal, and free to marry me, which the
“ the Minilter declar’d in open Court, at my Trral,

« After we had heen in Bed, comes in one Mr,
“« Beunet, a Conftable, with fome of Mrs, Rawlinss
‘¢ Relations, who requird me to go with them be-
« fore a Juftice of Peace 3 finding they had no War-
“ rant, I refus’d to give Obedience to their Com-
‘“ mands,which created fome Difpute ; and myWife
“ hearing the Noife, came out of the Bed-Chamber,
““ defiring me to be quiet, and let her {peak to them;
““ which accordingly fhe did, in thefe exprefsWords
““ following, viz. Coufin, Ibave married this Gentle-
““ man with my own free Confent, heismy Hufband,
“ and this is my Wedding-Ring, fhewing the Ring
““ on her Finger 1 As for Myr. Bufby, 1 will give bim
““ under my Hand be fhall come into o Trouble, aua
*“ what would you have more ?

VoL, V.
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““ Then faid they, if it be fo, then God blefs you
““ both together, and drank a Flafk of Wine or two
““ with me, and then departed ; they were no foon-
“* er gone, but I afked her, whether fhe would be
““ willing to appear and declare what the had faid
“¢ to her Friends to a Juftice of Peace, and fhe faid
‘¢ fhe would with all her Heart ; then we went to
“ Mr, Juftice Baber, in Zork-Buildings, and declar’d
* the fame to him ; he told her he would take No-
“ tice of her Face, and bid her ftick to that,

¢« The next Day, about eleven of the Clock,
¢¢ there came a Conftable with 2 Warrant, .and cat-
«¢ ried us before the Recorder, unto whom fhe faid
‘“ the fame thing over and over, Then faid the Re-
““ corder, Alas! Child, they made you drunk, aid you
¢ did not know what you did. To which {he anfwer’d,
¢ That there were a great many there prefent that kucw
“¢ her Life and Converfation, that fbe did not ufe to be
¢ drynk : And when the Recorder could rot prevail
<t with her, he conceiv’d, that my being perfonally
¢¢ with her, oblig’d her to ftand fo firm to her Mar-
¢ riage 3 he then order’d me to be pull’d away by
<« Force from her, at which the fell a weeping ;
¢ how fhe afterwards was lectur’d by her Friends,
¢« was fufficiently attefted by my Profecution, Trial,
¢ and Sentence s and afrer 1 was committed to
«« Newgate, 1 was remov*d by a Habeas Corpus to the
“ Queeir's-Bench Rar, there to be arraign’d, and
¢ pleaded Not Guilty to the IndiCtment. I pleaded
¢ for longer Time to prepare for my Trial, but was
<¢ allow’d but four Days ; when I was brought to my
< Trial, I moved for a Council to plead my Caufe,
¢ qs being a Stranger, and not acquainted with the
«« Lawsof England ; my Lifc being thus at Stake, a
<« powerful Intereft againft me, and the Court not
<¢ for me, render’d my Cafe both defpicableand de-
¢¢ plorable 3 and as for fome of my Evidence, 1do
« verily believe they were bribed by the adverfe
«¢ Party, others taken off by finifter Art, and fome
¢« hinder'd by Force from appearing in Court for me.
«« Asfor Jultice Baber, he fhew’d himfell but cold-
¢ ly in giving hisTeflimony, and faid, that my Wife
«¢ did confefs before him, that fhe was marry’d by
¢« her own free Confent 3 but at the fame Time he
«¢ added, that fhe feem’d very much diforder’d : As
«« for that Gentleman, I forgive him, and fhall leave
¢ God to be Judge between him and me.

<¢ [t is to be noted, That my Wife did not deny,
¢ in open Court, that fhe had made the Declaration
«¢ aforefaid, of her Marriage, to Mr., Bennct, the
«« Conftable, and others, that Night we were mar-
¢ vied: Burt faid, fhe did not know what fhe did
«« when fhe faid {o, and many other’Things {he pofi-
¢ tively, upon Oath, denied at my Trial 5 which
< makes me have Pity upon her poor Soul, confider-
« ing fhe confefs’d many Things ac Mrs, Baynten'’s
<« Trial, which fhe denied upon Oath at mine :
«« The World may fee what itis to be a Stranger,
¢ and unacquainted with the Laws ; nay, I my felf
« heard my Wife openly confefs in Court, in Mrs,
¢ Baynton’s Trial, That there was a young Lady in the
<« World, who was at ber oswon Difpofal, 1hat wift’d
< me a good Wife 5 and atlaft confefs’d fhe her felf
¢« was the Perfon. | a

« Amongft my many Misfortunes, I was repre-
< fented by my Wife’s Friends to the Court, to be
«¢ 3 Sharper and a Bully 5 but I call’d n, and pro-
¢t Juc’d feveral Gentlemen of Repute, to give Ac-
«« count of my Life and Converfation, who have ac-
¢ cordingly attefted the Honefty of my Principles by

¢ my Practice.
Qa9
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¢ It is further obfervable how my Jury difagreed
¢ albout the, Verdict, - There was one of them, Mr.
<« Tirafnus Fobnfon, a Perfon to me altogether a
‘<« Stranger 5 “for'I declare, in the Prefence of Al-
“.mighty God, that I do not-remember to have
* «been in his Company threeTimes in my Life, ex-

¢¢ cept in Church: This Mr. Fobnfon alledg’d, that ¢ aslm ‘
N ¢ pofitively declare fhe had no Hand in the.Intrigye

- ‘“'none of the Evidence did prove, or fwear, that
¢¢'had any Hand in the Arreft, nor ufed any -Force
¢t or Violence to the Gentlewoman, but fhe con-

<¢ fefed the Marriage, which was prov’d by feveral |
¢« Witneffes 3 which render’d my Cafe fo hard, that |

<¢ the faid Mr. Fobnfon infifted-upon it to have me
¢ difcharged, according to the Dictates of his Con-
¢¢ {cience, but at laft he was over-rul’d.

¢ Since my Conviction I haveus’d all the Means

~ <« could to procure my Pardon ; but finding litle
. % or no Probability of it, Iam now going to beg
¢ for Entrance at the Gate of Mercy tn Heaven,
¢« which I befeech God to open for me,

¢ ] expefted my Trial thould be publifhed, that

¢ the World might fee my Treatment ; what [ have
“ done, and what I have lefc undone in my Cafe ;
¢¢ but I am inform’d it may not be printed. I have
«¢ f1id this-only to do my felf Juftice, altho’ I could
¢ fay a great'deal more of Moment to the Purpofe ;
‘¢ but my Time being fo very fhort and precious, I
¢ muft employ that little Time to the faving of my
‘“ moft precious Part, my Soul.

*“ I humbly befeech Mankind to belicve me 5 and
<¢ that I have faid, or fhall fay, arethe Words of a
¢¢ dying Man 5 this is not the Time for me to equi-
‘¢ yocate, nor to go out of the World with a Lie in
‘“ my Mouth : I do therefore declare, and call the
“¢ oreat omnipotent God of Heaven to my Witnefs,
"<t thae ] have afferted nothing, to the beft of my
¢« Knowledge, but the whole Truth, nor utter'd a
«¢ Syllable- out of Malice, or Bitternefs of Heart,
< againft any Perfon whatfoever 5 but fo far from it,
¢¢ 1 do frankly forgive all my Enemies, and befeech
¢ God to put it in their Hearts to repent of their
““ Sins.
¢ Asformy Wife, I am fo much in Chanity with
¢ her, that I cannot believe the Severity extended
“ to me, did altogether proceed from her felf, but
¢ her confenting to {pill my Blood, makes the Guile

“ her own,  God of his great Mercy give her o
«¢ true Senfe of her Crimes, that the heavy Tudo.
¢ ment “hanging over her ;Flead may ot deﬁ:er?d
¢ on her. - R

“¢ As for Mrs, Baynton, whois likewife under Sep,

-<¢ tence of Death-on the fame Account with my

¢ felf, as I have in the Court, {6 do'] now again
\ "t

¢ of my Marriage, any more than what fhe did by
*“ my fpecial Dire&ion and Perfuafion ;7 for My
““ Baynton was wholly a.Stranger to!Mrs.' Rawlins
““ until the unhappy Contrivance of my Marrincr;
““ made them acquainted, neither did. know M;
““ Baynton till Fune laft paft 5 tho’ fome have been
““ pleas’d to firy that I kept her Company for thireg
““:Yems, and have had'two Children by her ;- al]
“ which [ declare is a wrong Notion, and nothine
fof Truth mit. The obly Load I have gn in?
““ Confcience is her Death, of whichI am the upn.
“ happy Inftrument. I befeéch.God in his Mercy to
““ move the Queen’s Clemency to fpare her ILife, that
““ her Blood may not rife in Judgment againt me,
““ As for my felf, Iam now & goingto fuffer an
““ ignominious Death, for a Crime which my own
““ Conlcience doth not accufe me of, but the Rigour
“¢ of the Law hath made it my unpardonable Crime.
¢ And as I forgive all Mankind, fo I beg Forgive-
““ nefs of thofe, whom, thro’ Inadvertency, or other-
““ wile, I have injur’d or offended, befeeching God,
¢ of his grear Mercy, to vouchfafe them Forgve-
‘¢ nefs whenfoever they fhall afk i, )
““ My great Comfort is, that T have reconcil’d my
“ felf with my God, and that I die in my natural
¢¢ Senfes, and that thort Time 1 have had fipce my
“ Trial, I truft in my Saviour, I have not ﬁnifpsnt.
¢ And now, O Lord God ! of thy infinite Goodnefs
““ hear my Petilion, pardon my Offences, aid forgive me
““ sy Sns, forgrve mine Enemies, and lay 710t 71y Blsod
““ lo their Charge, but grant that a fincere Repentance
““ may wafh away their Guilt,
““ I am now going out of this Vale of Calamity
‘“ and Sin to my cternal Repofe, where, thro’ the
¢ Merits of my Saviour Jefus Chrift, I hope to fee
¢ God tn his Glory 5 and fo I conclude, O Lord re-
““ cerve my Soul into thy boundlefs Mercy, for the Me-

“ vits of my Saviour Fefts Chriff.  Amen,

S B

CXXVH The Trial of RicHARD HaTHAWAY, af Surry Afizes
for a Cheat and Impoftor, March 24, 1702. 2 Ann.

Proclamation was made for all Perfons concerned.to
S attend.

G8a%Z2078 H E Prifoner being brought into Court,

2247 and acquainted what Liberty he had
.to challenge * thofe Gentlemen thac
were called 5 he making no Chal-
.. « lenges, the Gentlemen that were fworn

on the Jury were,

Charles Bludworth, \WVill. Draper, )

Henry Tendall, Rich. Nicholas, }Equ;

Walter Kent, it | Cefar Bradfbaty, '

Fobu Burchet, Fobn Caler, ,

Fobi Pettiwward, lSm;:, Pearfon, }Gent.
Rich, Hammond,

Thoinas Lowfield,

The King aganlt Richard Hathaway, for an
Impoftor.

Surty I The King's Attorney General bas exhi-
bited an Indittment againft the Defendant, by the
Name of Richard Hathaway, df Southwark, ix the
County of Surry, Labourcr 5 and the Information feis
forth, That the faid Richard Hathaway being a Per-
Jou of an evil Name and Fame, and an Inpoftor, and
contriving and malicionfly intending, one Sarah Mor-
duck, the Wife of one Edward Morduck of South-
wark, in the faid County, Waterman, who for the
whole Courfe of ber Life was an boneft and pions Wo-
man, and not a Witch, nor ufing Witcheraft, Inchant-
ment, Charm or Sortery, to bring into the Danger of
lofing her Life, the 11th Day of February, in the

12th Xear of the Reign of the King, at Southwark,
i
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iv the faid County, in the Prefence and Hearing of di-
vers Perfins, falfly, malicioufly, devilifbly, and knotw-
ingly, and as a falfe Impoftor, did pretend and affirm
bifelf, by the Jaid Sarah, to be bewitched, and by the
Occafion of that pretended Witcheraft, be conld ot eat,
and by the Space of Ten Weeks to faft, and was affecied
with divers Difeafes s and that be by drawing Blood
from the faid Sarah, by feratching, fbould be freed from
the faid pretended Witcheraft 5 that the fasd Richard
Hathaway did then, and there, with Force and drms,
ferateh the faid Sarah, and did draw the Blood of ber,
the fuid Sarah, by feratching 5 and thereupon, be, the
faid Richard Hathaway, did then, and there, falfly,
malicionfly, and knowingly, by affrming bimfelf to be
fieed from the faid Difeafes, by drawing the faid
Blood, wwhereas in Faft and in Truth, the faid Ri-
chard Hathaway was wever bewitched, and bad not
fafted for the Time aforefaid, nor for any greal Time ;
and that whereas i Truth and in Fafl, the [aid Ri-
chard, then, and there, well knew bimfelf not to be be-
witched by the faid Savah, tothe great Contempt of onr
Lord the King and bis Laws, to the evil and <wicked
Example of all athers in the like Cafe .offending, and
againf? the Peace of our faid Lord the King, bis Crown
and Diginity, &c.

Mr. Raymond, May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury, the Information fets
forth, That the Defendant being a Perfon of an evil
Fame, and an Impoftor, and malicionfly contriv-
ing to take away the Life of one Sarab Morduck, the
Wite of Edward Morduck, who always was a good
Woman, and not a Witch, nor ufing Witchcraft,
the 11th Day of February, in the 12th Year of the
Reign of the late King, at Sontbwark, in the Pre-
fence and Hearing of divers Perfons, did falily, de-
vilithly, and knowingly, and as a falfe Impoftor,
pretend and affirm himfelf to be bewitched by the
f11d Sarab, and that by realon thereof he could not
Eat, but had falted for ten Weeks, and was alfo
affefted with divers Difeafes, and that by his draw-
ing Blood from the {aid Sarah, by fcratching, he
fhould be freed from his faid pretended Bewitching
That the Defendant did thereupon fcratch the faid
Sarah, and did draw the Blood of the f{aid Sarab
by fuch his fcratching, and thereupon he falfly af-
firmed, -that by drawing the faid Blood he was
frecd from the faid Difcafes ;5 whereas in Truth and
Fact he was never bewitched, nor had he fafted as
aforefaid, and he knew himfelf not to be bewitched
by the faid Sarab, in Contempt of the faid late
King, and his Laws, and againft the Peace of his
Crown and Digpnity.

Mr, Counyers. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury : This is an Information
againft Richard Hathaway, for a Cheat, for endea-
vouring to impofe upon the People a Belief, that he
had been bewitched by one Sarab Morduck, and
that as an Effect of her pretended Witchery, he vo-
mited up Nails and Pins, and that he could not
fpeak, nor open his Eyes, and that great Noifes
were heard in the Houfe where he lay, and therecould
be no Remedy for him, but by his fcratching and
fetching Blood of this Sarab Morduck 3 and by this
Means the poor YWoman has been very much abufed
by her Neighbours, reputed a Witch, and brought
toaTrial for her Life as fuch 5 but that there was
nothing but a malicions Defign in it, will appear by
the Evidence that will be produced.  This Richard
Hathaway was for fome Time an Apprentice with
one Melling, a Black{mith, in Southwark., About
September 1aft was Twelve-month, he gave out that
he was bewitched, and he went to this Woman's
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Houfe and feratched her § and the Pretence was,
that {cratching and fetching Blood of her recovered
him, The Minifter of the Parith, Dr. Martin, hear-
ing that it was noifed about, that the Defendant had
been relieved by fcratching Morduck, came and vi-
fited him, He could neither fpeak nor fe¢, as he
pretended ; but underftood what was faid to him,
and gave Aflent to what was propofed to him, by
holding up ot his Hands. Dr. Martin tells him, he
heard this Woman had bewitched him, and that his
fcratching of her was the Means by which he was re-
lieved ; and that he defired to fee the Experiment
himfelf, and therefore had brought Sarah Morduck
there, and defired him to hold up his Hand, if he
underftood what he faid ; whichhedid, Dr. Mar-
tin had another Woman there at that time (tho’ that
was concealed from Hathatway) and Sarab Morduck,
by the Doctor’s Diretion, fpoke to him, and came
to his Bed-fide, and the Defendant was by the Doc-
tor bid to fcratch her,  When he came to feratch,
the Dottor took the Hand of the other Perfon, and
put it into the Defendant’s Hand, and as foon as he
had fcratched the other Perfon his Eyes began to
open, and he could fpeak ; and immediately it was
macde known to himfelf and the Company, that the
Perfon he had feratched was another Perfon, and
not Sarab Morduck, But notwithQRanding this, he was
not fatisfed, but ftill there was a Profecution of
Sarab Morduck for a Witch, and fhe was forced for
fome Time to go and refide in London : And there
the Rabble got about her and abufed her ; of which
Complaint was made to a Magiftrate in the City,
and Sarah Morduck was had before him, and then
Hathaway was fent for, and there again {cratched
her ; and it was fo far credited there, notwithftand-
ing the Account given by Dr. Martin of the Expe-
riment he made, that the poor Woman is commit-
ted for a Witch, and afrerwards brought to a Trial
for her Life ; and upon the Trial it appeared plainly,
that all this was a Contrivance, and there was no
Evidence tocharge her with the bewitching this Man;
and after a long hearing, upon a full Evidence, the
Jury acquitted her, and the Man was committed
for a Cheat,  But notwithftanding this Acquittal,
he ftill goes on to perfuade People, that he was be-
witched ; that he had fatted feveral Days together,
and could noteat 3 and then for a further Conviction
that he was an Impoftor, and only endeavoured ma-
licioufly and falfly to impofe this Belief on People,
he is about the Beginning of latt Nevember commit-
ted to the Care of a Chirurgeon, one Mr. Kenfey,
where for Two Days he did not eat 5 but afterwards
his Stamach began to come to him, and when he
could get any Vi€tuals privately, he had a very
good Stomach, and could Eat and Drink till he
was drunk. And it was contrived, that Holes were
made into the Room where he was, and the Maid
that looked after him was direéted to give him No-
tice, that fhe would help him privately to Victuals ;
and from the fecond Day after he was there, tll the
eleventh Day, he did conftantly eat every Day, tho’
he pretended he fafted all chat Time, and had done
fo for fourteen Weeks, and he was {een to eat thro’
thofe Holes, Allthis, and much more, will be fully
proved by the Witneffes.  So that there has been
a great Affront to the publick Juftice of the Nation
by this-Proceeding, many having abbetted i, and
they have put‘up Bills in feveral Churches to pray
for him againft the Trial, and gathered Money to
{upport him in this falfe and malicious Pretence.
Mr. Brodrick. My Lord, the difcovering and
punithing {uch a Cheat as this, is highly neceffary 3

Qqq 2 and
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and not only for the vindicating the publick Juftice
of the Nation, but for the Sake of Religion it feif,
which fuffers by nothing more, than by the coun-
tenancing of indireét Prattices, made ufe of upon
a Pretence of maintaining and fupporting its Credit.
Religion has in it felf {uch genuine and native
Truth, as mult work Conviction upon:the Under-
{tandings of all Perfons, who allow themftlves Lei-
fure to confider it without Prejudice: But when
Tricks and little Arts are carried on for a Time,
and attain a general Credit, and appear afterwards
to be what are called Pious Frauds, they do far
more Mifchief than all the Good propofed by fuch
Pratices can make amends for, Ior when Men
who are fceptically inclined, find that the Genera-
lity of Mankind run away with Stories of this Na-
ture, and thofe Fadls afterwards prove undeniably
falfe, they carry their Doubts on much too far, and
are apt to conclude, that they cannot fecurely rely
upon the Relation of others, and general Confent
of Mankind, for the Certainty of any Fact whatfo-
ever., It is therefore the Duty of all Perfons, that
are concerned for Religion in general, to endeavour
to dete¢t fuch Practices which weaken one of its
moft folid Foundations,

And, myLord, we conceive this Profecution very
neceflary, in order to the vindicating the Juftice of
the Nation, Here was a Woman that underwent a
folemn T'rial, and upon a full Hearing was acquit-
ted, yet afterwards, norwithftanding the thorough
Examination of the Fact, and fuch an Iividence given
as convinced every unprejudiced Hearer of the In-
nocence of the Defendant, and the Malice and Hy-
pocrify of the Accufer, fuch a Spirit did reign, thac
it was reprefented that the Accufer had hard
Meafure 3 and not only the Jury, but the Court too,
were refle€ted on : Nay, it went fo far, that after
the Innocence of the Woman appeared by her Ac-
quittal, a Magiltrate (whofe Name the Witnefles
will difclofe in their Evidence) gave publick Coun-
tenance to this Impoflor (for by that Name I will
venture to call him) and fo far gave Credit to him,
that when the poor Woman was abufed by the
Rabble, and her Life being in Danger, fhe made
Application to that Magiltrate {or Protection 3 who,
inftead of affording it to her, encouraged her Profe-
cutors, as if fhe had really been gutlty of the Witch-
craft Inid to her Charge 3 and confiderable Collecti-
ons were made for this Man, to fupport his Spirits
under the Difappointment he met with in her being
acquitted.

This Profecution was neceffiry too, upon the Ac-
count of the poor Woman, who, unicfs fome Check
be put to the unruly Proceedings of unthinking
People, is not yet fafe in her Houfe, but in Danger
to be torn in Pieces : And 1t was thought moft pro-
per, that this Mazter fhould be thorouglily examined
in this Place, where the Scene of his counterfeiting,
for the moll part, did lie 5 that prepofefled People
might be ar Witnefles of the Fairnefs of the Pro-
ceeding, and that all Perfons might have an Op-
portunity, if they thought fie, of offering any thing
fit to be offered in his Defence,

My Lord, we need not trouble the Court with
ividence tending to prove, that the accufed Perfon
is not guilty of Witchcraft : She 1s acquitted of that,
and it ought not to be fuffered to be made a Dif-
pute, But owr Evidence will go beyond that, not
only that there was ro Colour or Foundation for the
Charge on her of being a Witch 5 but that the De-
fendant did malicioufly, without any Ground, and
contrary to his own Knowledge, charge her with
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the having bewitched him. And I'think our Fyi.
dence, all through, will prove this Matter fully yp-
on him, that he was not bewitched, nay, that he
did not believe himlelf to be fo, yet charged and
profecuted her.

The firft part of his Eretended Witchcraft thewed
it felf, by his vomiting Pins: How that Bufinefs was
managed, and how he was detected in it, the Wi
nefles will declare,  And though we are not obliged
to endeavour the giving an Account of what it was
that induced him firft to undertake this Impofture, I
think it will appear by the Evidence, that he had
fome Aim and Profpect of Gain to himfelf, For,
upon his firft pretending to vomit Pins, we fhall
prove he had prepared a Narrative of his owu being
Bewitched 5 and be bimfelf earried it 1o a Printer, tha
fo he might bring a Concourfe of People to him :
But the Printer being a Man of fome Underftanding,
look’d on him to be a Cheat, and would not meddle
with the Copy. He prachifed this Trick of vomiting
Pins feveral Times 3 but pretending to it once,
before one who did not take every thing upon T'ruit,
but was curious enough to obferve nicely, and
fearch him 5 after fome Refiftance, feveral Roces of
Pins were foriid in his Pocke!,

The next Difcovery of his Impofture, was the
Affar wherein Dr. Martin was concerned 3 who
brought two Women to him :  The Particulars of
which having been already opened, I'll not repeat
them. The Do&or put an inocent Deceit upon
him, but it was in order to difclole a vile Impolture,
When the Woman was brought to him to be
fcratched, being confcious to himfelf, how little real
Effe&t the barbarous Experiment would have upen
him, the whole Company obferved, that he fcl
three or four Times from her Hand to her Elbow,
before e fcratched, that he might be fure it was a
Woman’s Hand : And when he had fcrarch’d, and
felt Blood, his Eyes werc opened, tho® it was the
wrong Wormnan,

Another Inftance of his alling a Part, with Defign
to impofe upon the World, was, when he was car-
ried from the King’s-Bench to Mr. Kenfey’s, It was
neceffarily to be imagined, that if he eac or drank
nothing, nothing would come from him, either by
Stool or Urine, He confidered this, and for fear it
fhould be taken notice of, that he difcharged him-
felf after fo long a Faft as he pretended ; having
Occafion to make Water, he found the Lid of a Box,
and making Water in 1t, put it out of Siche, on
the Bed’s Telter 5 and the firlt Dilcovery of his
Counterfeiting at Mr. Kenfey's, was by the dropping
of that Water on the Cloaths of the Bed.  After he
had been two Days tfste (during which Time he
really did not eat) Mz. Kenfey not knowing but that
his Consplexion might tncline him to fuch a Sullen-
nefs, as to ftarve himielf, rather than dircétly con-
fefs his Cheat, having firlt examined his Mouth and
Throat, and finding nothing there but as it was
all other Men, and that he had not only all other
Organs, but that of {wallowing, without any Ob-
{truction, as other People had, thereupon he framed
this Defign : He took Occafion to pretend a Quarrel
with the Maid-fervant wholived in his Houle, with-
in the hearing of the Defendant, and told her, fhe
was as very a Elypocrite as this Fellow 3 and afeer
warmWords on both Sides, and a {eeming Refoluti-
on by her that the would quit her Service, the Ma-
fter went away, leaving the Maid and the Defendant
together.  She, tainfinuate her {elf into the Defend-
ant, faid, FHer Mafter was an odd Xind of a Man,
a dangerous Man, theicfore fhe would not have the
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Defendaiit take any thing from him 3 dnd faid, fhe
would take care to fupply him whilft he ftaid 1 the
Houfe. Tlien his Stomath camé to him very feadily,
1nd he was fo fiir from being unable to drink, that
1e drank Brandy and other Liquors t6 Excéfs, and
s for feveral Days.  But ftill thofe 1 the Houfe
being wary, thoughe it miglit be pretended by Peo-
ple who were very willing to believe him, that this
ippened by the Charm’s being diflolved, and that
he was unable to eat before; and thercfore it wis
thought advilable to bring in feveral Perfons of Re-
pumtion, who thould obferve him through a Hole fit
tor the Purpofe : Who, after they had feen him eat,
-xamined him how long hehad been a Fafter? And he
made Signs, that be bad fafted twelve Weeks, and
Jung up bis Belly as a Proof of bis Empliitefs, accord-
ing 10 bis common Pragtice, though be bad in their
Sight, juft before, ealen a plentiful Meal. So that,
Gentlemen, 1t 1s evident, that what he did was done
malicioufly, and with a Defign to deceive and 1m-
pofe upon the World. After this, there being {uffi-
cient Proof of the Impolture, it was thought fit to
bring him before a Court of Juftice ; thereupon this
[nformation was exhibited againft him: And if we
prove it, 1 doubt not but that you, Centlemen of
the Jury, will do that Right to the Government,
and to Religion, as to find him guilty of it, that he
may be brought to the Punifhment that fuch a
Crime delerves.

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, I humbly pray your
Lordip’s Indulgence of the fame Side 5 and beg
Leave to obferve, this Man was formerly troubled
with Fits, and there was a Defign laid by him and
his Friends to create a Belief in People, that thofe
Fiis were the Effe@ of Sorcery and Witch-
craft 3 but whether to get Money, or take away the
Life of the Woman, or both, I fubmit to your
Lordihip’s Judgment upon the Evidence. *Tis cer-
tain, they proceeded fo far as to bring her to a
Trial, and did what they could to take away her
Life. And the better to carry on their Defigns, and
to prepare the World to believe the Impoftor, we
thall fhew, that when he had thefe Fits, 1t was in-
duttrioufly publifhed, that he was bewitch’d, and
that it was by this Woman ; and if he could but
f{cratch her, he would be well, Dr. Martin, the Mi-
nitter of the Parith, hearing of it, came to him ; and
to make an Experiment to difcover the Impofture,
brought another Woman with the pretended Witch,
and faid to Hathaway, if you think the fcratching
thisWoman, meaning Morduck the pretended Witch,
will do you any good, hold up your Hand : Which
he did.  Then the Do&or put the other Woman’s
Hand into his ; and although at that Time he pre-
tended to be Blind and Dumb, and he and his
Friends would have had it thought, that he lay un-
der the ftrongeft of the old Woman’s Charms 5 yet
he was apprehenfive of what he did, and fo jealous
left he thould be impofed upon, and thereby his
Impofture difcovered, that he felt feveral Times from
the Wrift to the Elbow, to difcover whether it was
the Arm of the pretended Witch or no, belore he
would begin fcratching 3 and then believing it to be
hers (it being much about the fame Size) fell to
fcrarching, and being told he had fetched Blood,
his Eyes were immediatcly opened, and his Speech
reftored.

The Doétor thinking every body was convinced
of this Impofture, and believing the poor Woman
would bz quiet for the future, went away.

But notwithftanding this DeteCtion, the People

were diffatisfied 3 and #&elling, the Malter of Ha-
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thitvay, and others, being angry at the Difcovety,
purfued the Woman with more Malice than before :
Where-ever they found her, they cried out; 4 Witch,
and ufed her fo barbaroufly, fhe was forced to leave
Sonthwdrk, where fhe had lived many Years; and
all her Employment, which had been profitable to
her, and to go live in London. |

Their Malice purfued her thither 3 and there Zs-
thaway, with Soldiers and others, in a riotous Man-
ner, got into the Houfe where fhe lodged, and would
have broke open the Door where the was; but a
Conftable being called in, the Seldiers went off, and
Hathaway was carried before an Alderman of the
City 5 and the poor Woman and her Friends ac-
quainted the Alderman of the riotous and illegal
Proceedings, and prayed that Juftice might be done
upon them. But inftead of punifhing them, he was
pleafed to fay, there was too great Provocation for
what they had done 3 and giving Credit to the Accu-
fation of Hatbaway againft the Woman, ordered her
to be carried up Stairs to be fearched, to fee if the
had any Teats, or other Signs of a Witch, and per:
mitted her to be feratched by Hathaway, and then
committed her for a Witch 5 refofing 500 /. Bail,
and difmifled Hatbaway.

The Woman afterwards was brought to a Trial
at Guilford Aflizes, and was acquitted, and he was
committed for a Cheat: And to make more ample
Difcovery of the Impofture, he was taken to the
Houfe of Mr, Kenfey a Chirurgeon, and there he was
obftinate, and would not eat for the firft two Days 3
and a Quarrel was feigned between Mr. Kenfey and
his Maid, he faying fhe was as bad an Hypocrite
as Richard Hathaway, and gave her Warning to be
gone. The Maid feemed very angry with her Ma-
fter, and faid to Hatbaway, Whatever you do, do
not eat any thing that is given you by my Mafter
or his Brother, for they are your Enemies; and
promifed fhe would help him privately to what he
wanted. Whereupon he thinking fhe had been his
Friend, and that he was fafe in her Hands, took
Meat and Drink from her from Day to Day, and
cat heartily, and drank fo very plentifully of Strong
Beer and Brandy, and was fo merry, that he play’d
on the Tongs, and Danced, and fhew’d Tricks be-
fore, the Maid 3 but when any body clfe offered him
Meat or Drink, he refufed it, making Signs that he
could not fwallow, and fignify’d to them, that he
had fafted all the fourteen Days that he had been ac
Kenfy's, and that he had fafted many Weeks before,
And as to vomiting Pins, it will appear to you, that
he carried Papers of Pins in his Pocket, to make
ufe of on Occafion: But when he vomited in a Ba-
fon, and his Hands were kept down, and he not
permitted to carry them up to the Bafon, there was
not one Pin in the Bafon. |

I will not trouble your Lordfhip with a Detail of
all the particular Inftances of this Cheat, but will
call ourWitneffes; and when we have proved the fe-
veral Maters that have been opened, there will be no
Room to doube but that the Defendant is an Impod-
tor, and the greateft this Age hath produced.

Mr. Conyers, We will firft call Dr. Martin (whd
awas fiworn) we will go on with our Evidence in the
Courfe of Time. The firft Time that Notice was
taken in the Parifh of this Bufinefs, was in September
was Twelve-Month., Dr. Martin, pray give my
Lord and the Jury an Account, Whether you know
Richard Hathaway, and when was the firft Difcourfe
of this Witchery. _

Dr. Martin.  February lalt iwas Twelve-Mohth;

(the ninth Day, to the beft of my Remembrance)
eamie
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came to Church in the Afternoon, and after the Cu-
rate was gone into the Defk to read Prayers, I was
aoing into the Pew ; but hearing a great Hurly-burly
tn the Church, I {cnt the Sexton to know what was
the Occafion of it,  He brought Word that there
was a Witch in the Church 3 fo the Curate could
not go on in reading Prayers 5 and the Sexton went
and brought in one Sarah Morduck to me, and after
her came a great many of the People into the Veftry 5
fo that the’ it be pretty large, it was prefently filled.
And this Saralh Morduck came up to me, and told
me what was the Occafion of her being brought
there. I afk’d her how fhe had behav’d her felf
among(t her Neighbours, that fhould give fuch Oc-
cafion to deal thus with her, She began to cry, and
faid, fhe had given no Occafion for it. 1 told her,
I had nothing to do to enquire into the Bufinefs,
but bid her continue in the Veltry, the whole Con-
arcgation being fo much difturbed, that they would
go out of the Church if fhe ftaid in it.  So I turned
every body out of the Veltry, and locked her in.
And Sermon beinz ended, I came into the Veftry,
but found fhe was gone 5 and vpon Enquiry, I un-
derftood the Realon was this, The Sexton told me,
that fhe faid, if fhe {taid ull ali che People went out,
fhe thould be torn in Pieces, and begg’d of him to
Jet her out while the Plalm was finging after Ser-
mon, that the might go away undifcerned, and ac-
cordingly fhe went.  Afterwards many of my Pa-
rithioners made Application to me to go to Richard
Hathaway, who was fuppofed to be bewitched 5 and
told me, thatit was taken very ill that I had deferr’d
it fo long. Upon this 1 went to him the next Day 3
and meeting his Mafter below Stairs, I afked him
what Condition his Servant was in.  He faid, he
was Blind and Speechlefs, and was a very difmal
Object. [ faid, I defired to be excufed, for I did not
love to fee any dilinal Sights,  But he faid, he was
very fenfible, and knew every onc by their Voice.
And with that, I wentinto the Room, and his Ma.
fter (fpeaking to Richurd Hathaway) faid, Mr. Mar-
tin is come to [ee you. Says I, Richard, Iam come
to fee you, and if you know me hold up yourHand
e did fo, and took me by the Hand and kify’d i,
1 afk’d him whether I thould pray with him in the
Prayers of the Church, and if he defired i, I bid him
hold up his Hand : He did fo, and I prayed with
him, and he did feem to be aftected with it, and
lifted up his Hands feveral Times, AtterwardsI took
my Leave of him, and went down ; and I difcourf-
ing with his Mafter for fomeT1me, I afked him what
he thought was the Reafon of it i he faid, an evil
Tongue ; and a bad Woman, Sarab Morauck, had
bewitched him,  But how de you know that ? His
Mafter then told me he had feratch’d her, and found
Good by it ; and faid, he was utterly undone by it,
and if he did not fpeak to the Church-wardens to
take him oft his Hands, he fhould be ruin’d, And
hearing of this Scratching, it came into my Head
to try an Experiment too 5 fo I went away, but
without difcovering my Intentions.  And about
‘I'cn a-Clock at Night, to prevent Jealoufies, I went
to the Houlfe where Sarab Morduck lodged, and
found the was gone to Bed,  Ileft Word that I de-
fired to fpeak with her the next Day : But inftead of
her coming to me, her Brother, My, Hearne, came
to me, and thanked me for preferving his Silter
from the Mob. I gave him the Realon why we did
that, and I told him then what I intended to do.
He anfwer’d me, I am afraid my Sifter will be fo
(fly that ic will fail in the Execution.
feave that to me, 1 would give fuch Directions n
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the Matter, that it was impoflible for it to mifear.
ry : So he left me to my Liberty to do whyt |
thought fit. Then, faysI, when I fend for her, dq
you come with her, I went to the Houfe where
Hathaway lay, and went into the Room, where he
lay with his Eyes faft fhut, and feemingly Specch.
lefs. 1 fpoke to him, I am informed you have re.
ceived Benefit by feratching Sarah Morduck Jormerly,
now if I can gel this IWoman for you to feratch ber,
Do you believe by feratching ber you fhall receive any
Benefit 2 If you do bold up your Hand : So he dig’
‘and by and by there came a Meflage that M,
Hearne and the Witch were come. I then defired
Mr. Bateman, whom 1 brought with me for that
Purpofe, to fit by the Bed-fide while T went down,
left any might inform him what was faid, or he
might over-hear any thing {poken below. So he fate
there, and I went down, and I bid them let in a3
many as would come in 5 and when the Room was
full, the Door was lock’d. T had before met with 2
poor Woman, whom I ordered to follow me, who
received Alms of the Parith, defigning the fhould
be the Perfon the Experiment thould be try’d on, 1
told them I delign’d to try anorther Woman, and I
will make him believe he feratches the Witch, The
Anfwer was, This will fignify nothing, Wellingss
Wife faid, he had fcratched another Woman, and
it fignified nothing. Now this was, to the beft of
my Remembrance, one /7ilonghby, who is a very
Big Woman, and very much unlike Sarabh Morduck :
But I defired the Satisfaction to fee it done my felf 5
upon which it was confented to, Then I afk’d the
Woman [ bronght about it ; I told her I would give
her a Shilling if fhe would let this Man fcratch her »
She flew off, and faid the would not {uffer it for all
the World. At laft fomebody faid, here is aWomnan
will {uffer her felf to be fcratch’d 3 and this was one
Yobufon, 1 afl’d her if the would fuffer her fIf to
be feracch’d 3 fhe fuid fhe would, if there would
come no Damage by 1t. Says I, whatever Damage
you fuftain, I will make it good to you ; and you
being about the Size of Sarab Morduck, are a very
fit Perfon. She did decline 1t for fome T'ime, but at
laft fhe confented 5 and after fome Inftructions given
to her and Morduck, we went up together with many
of the Neighbours.  Tho’ you cannot fze, fays I, 1o
Richard Hathaway, you can bear that there are ma-
iy Pecple in the Room 5 now, before all thefe People,
Do you believe that Sarah Morduck bas dene you this
Mifehief 2 If you o, bold up your Hand, He did fo.
Do you believe you fhall be relieved by feratching her ?
If you do, bold up your Hand, He did hold up his
Hand. Sarah Morduck, do you fpeak to bim, that
he may kunow you are the Perfon.  Says fhe, What 15
the Matter <with you 2 Do you believe this Woman,
faid I, to be the Perfon that has bewitched you 2 If
so# do, hold up your Hand,  He held up his Hand.
Then afk’d Sarab Morduck, are you willing this
Man fhould {cratch you ¢ 2%es, with all my Heart, lie
Jall bave my Hear?'s Blood, if it svill do bim any Goed.
Then, fays I, pray give me your Hand, Here it
is,  And inftead of taking her Hand, I took Fobx-
fon's, and clapt it into his ; and I did obferve, that
two or three Times he felt from her Wrifk to her El-
bow 5 and I fud, I have fomething elfe to do than
to waiton you (and I fpoke to him fomewhat ea-
gerly) if you will not feratch, I will be gone. Then
he {cratch’d her, and fhe whifper’d me in the Ear,
fhe believ’d fhe fhould faint. I faw he had razed her
Skin, and [ faid, you have drawn Blood, and you
may be f{atisfy’d. 'With that he left off, and turned
on his Back in his Bed, I turn’d out Fobufon im-

mediately



1702 Alfliz.

mediately, and I.and Morduck ftood together, and

he lay ftill for fome time 3 but I faw, nothing would -

do, if I did not work him up. Now, fays I, I would
f1in fee how his Eyes are now 5 come fome of you,
look, do not his Eyes twinkle? With that'both his
Eyes were are open as mine are now, and hé caughe
hald of the Apron of Sarah Morduck,. and look’d
her inthe Face. Then I told him his Miftake ; and
Fobnfon came in with her Arm bleeding, SaysI this
s the Woman you {cratcht, you have not touched
Sargh Morduck’s Arm, not fetched one Drop of
Blood from her. The Fellow upon this {feem’d very
much catt down. Now, fays I, give way to no
Humours, and go about your Bufinefs, and ferve
God and your Mafter. Then I went down, and
feveral People were fatsfy’d. 'Well, fays I to 77el-
ling, your Man’s Eyes are open now. It's well,
fays he, if his Eyes continue open, He can fpeak
and fec too now. I do not know, fays he, it is
firange if he fhould do well after this. Farewel,
fiid I3 and I went into Londen. Upon my Re-
turn, about Five-Clock, I enquird about him, and
found there was a greater Mob in the Houle than
efore 3 and I was accofted at my firft coming in
by the Mafter and Miftrefs of that Fellow: What
ive you done ? you have ruined both me and my
F;lmily——'-

L.C ¥ Hdt. Who {aid fo:

Dr. Martin, The Malter and Miltrels of this
Fellow. Why, What Flurt have I done you ? You
have given it out to bea Cheat.  Did you get any
Money by it? No, I never did expectit. But pray
o0 and look on him new, he isin a worfe Condition
than he was before. Here hath been two Doctors,
and they will take their Oath that he is bewitched,
So I went away; butasI went out, I was {topt
by Fobufon. She cries out, What have you done ?
What is the Matter, faid [, Does your Arm fefter ?
No; but this wicked Woman has {pread abroad that
by {cratching me he was relieved, and fhe 1s not the
Witch, but I am the Witch; and it had reacly’d her
Hufband’s Ear, apd he was become fo jealous of
her, that he would not have any thing to do with
her, I went away after this, and going home, met
her Hufband, and gave him all the Satisfaction I
could, that his Wife was no Witch, And I was
informed the next Day, that Sarah Morduck had
been drage’d again to the Houfe, fome time after I
went away, and brought to Hathatway’s Bedfide,
and he foracch’d her, and his Eyes were opened,
and he eat and drank, and walk’d about. Upon
this, T, fent ope Evening to him to come to me;
and I took him into my. Study, and faid, What is
the Meaning of ir, that you make {uch a. Tronble
in the Parifh, to condemn this Woman for Witchery 2
[ fee no Reafon for it.. Says he, fhe has-done mea
oreat deal of Hurtsy faid Hatbaway, fhe has be-
witch’d me. He_ faid, thar was the Woman had
done him_all the Prejudice he laboured under. Then
fays I; you,are-a poor:fort of Fellow, yon.mult get
your Living by, your-Labour ; now youhad better
go into_the Country-out of her Reach, No, Sir,
fays he, I am baund Apprentice-to my Maiter ; and
if I go, I fhall be as.bad,there as I am herc: And
feeing I was bound here, this_Parifh mult keep me;
and if-1 fhould go into the Conntry, they.wll fend
me back agaip. Why will you not.try.?. No; I will
not,
donot, ‘Then, fays he, I, may,as well not believe
what you fay in'the Pulpic; I.may.faystosyou,  as
our-Saviour-fajd to the Jews, Tha’ you fee Miracles,
you will mat believe.  Whereupon,. 1. turn’d. hum

for a Cheaf and Impoftor.

Do you not believe I.am bewitch’d?- No, 1
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away, ~and did .not think I fhould have had any
thing:more to do with him, -But about Zaffer laft,
Sir Ehomas Lane fent to me, to defire me to corie
to:him; the Witch being then got into Loudos
for Sheleer. . |

I went accordingly, and iyhcn.,I came, :I found
Hatbaway, his Mafter, and feveral others there,.

found him looking brifkly, and eating hearuily, and

[ afl’d the meaning of it, It was anfwered, That
before Sir Thomas Lane, he had drawn Blood of
Saralh Morduck, and that had brought him to him-
felf. I fent in my Name to Sic Thomas Lane, and he
fent for me in.  There was Sir Qwen Buckingham,
and I thaink, Dr. Hamilion. There were feveral Peo-
ple examined, while I was there, about this Perfon 3
and after all Sir Thomas Lane defired me to tell
what ! knew in this Matter, I gave an Account of
what T have done here. Says Sir Thomas Lave,
Richard Hathaway, Do you know that Gentleman ¢
Yes. How ? I havefeen him i the Pulpic. What,
no where elfe ? Did not you fee him by your Bed-
fide? No. WasnotI with you at your Bedfide?
No. All this while he was cating Bread and Cheefe 5
till Sir Thomas Lane fpoke to him, Lay by your
Bread and Checfe, and be not fo unmannerly. Says
I, this is very unaccountable, that he fhould not
know me; and yet he had faid, that after Mr. Mar-
tin was gone, I was a great deal worfe than 1 was
before. This is a very unaccountable Thing, and E
defire to know how this is confiftent 3 therefore I
do defire that his Mafter may be called in. And his
Mafter was fent for, and Hathaway was gong out
to call him. No, fays I, I defire he may not go
out, I will call his Mafter myfelf, When /7elling
came in, I afked him whether he did not tell me
that Hathaway was fenfible from the Time I came
to him? Yes, he was, Now 1 defirc to know how
thefe Things are confiltent ? And to put this out of
doubt, that this Man did fee me, the Woman {tood
at the fide of the Bed by me near the Feet, and he
took hold of her Apron readily. How can he come
off in this Matter? Says Sir Thomas Laie, They
tell you he had a moft violent Fic after, and thac
made fiim forget what was done before.  Another
Queftion was afk’d Mr. #efling, You know you de-
fired me to get this Servant of yours off your Hands,
and that T would fpeak to the Churchwardens a-
bout it. Now I am inform’d, thisServant of yours
was going to Goodman's-fields, and as he was going,
the Prefs-matters met him, and he being a likely
Fellow,. they- whipt him aboard. Is this-true or no
Yes. And then you got a Letter, and went down
and fetch’d him up. Yes. Then, fays I, How
come his Mafter to be fo much concern’d to be rid
of him as he pretended; and yet when he might
have been rid of his Servant, would not take the
Opportunity ? To that Sir Qwen Buckingbam an-
fwer'd, It was only his Charity for him to fetch
him from aboard; he could do no Iefs confidering
his Condition: Sol came away. Ina lutle Time
after, 1 heard that this:Sarah Morduck was bound
over to the Affizes, and I was fubpeena’d- to give
my Evidence the Jaft Affizes at Guilford.

Their the Tudifiment was read, upon which Sarah
Morduck was Tried and Acquitted of Bewitching
Richard Hathaway.

Mr. Goniers. Dr. Mariin, pray go on.

Dr. Mariin. 1 was fubpena’d-to go to the
Aflizes, but before the Affizes came on, there were
Bills put up in feveral:Churches, and particularly
at Chrijh-Church, where I hapned to preach. [ read
the Bill; A- ppor- Maw- béing:afflisted by.air' evil Wo-

man,
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man, wow coming Lo her Trial, defires the Prayers of
this Congrepation, 1 went down to Guilford 1o the
Trial 5 and when'T came up, I thought all People
would be fatisfy’d with the Juftice that was done.
Bur when I came to Town, I was abufed by many
People, both openly and privately :  2on bave the
Biood of that innocent Man to lie at your Door 5 The
Woman bad been bang’d, if you bad not faved ber 4
The Fudgments of God will fall on you. One Woman
followed me to the Water-fide, and faid, I was the
Occafion of the Ruin of that innocent Man ; for fhe
her felf ——

L. C. ¥ Holt, Whois this?

Dr. Martin, 1 do not know her, I only give
Iividence of the Abufes I underwent,

Mr. Conyers. Do you know any thing after the
Afhzes, how he behaved himfelf ?

Dt, Martin. No, Sir, I know nothing of that.

Mr. §. Fenner. What was done by other People,
ought not to be given in Evidence,

Mr. Broderick. 1f this Man does prove an Im-
poftor, it will aggravate his Crime, if the Confe.
quence be mifchievous, and the World be ftill abufed
with a Perfualion that he was bewitched,

Mr. 8, Fenner. What was done by other People
fignifies nothing to us,

Mr. Broderick. This is very material, foritis a
Confirmation that there was a Defign carried on——
(being interrupled).

L. C. ¥. Holt wo Serj. Femiier. What other Peo-
ple did, muft not affect this Man. But hear what
Anfwer can be given, you that are the Queen’s
Council ?

Mr, Broderick, 'The Charge of the Information
is, That he, as an Impoftor, pretended himfelf to
be bewitched by Sarab Morduck, to deceive the
World, and prejudice the Woman. And what can
be more proper Lvidence of that Charge, than thae
altho’ he really was not bewitched, yet he had fo
prevailed upon the Opinions of the People, that
they {till believe him bewitched, and aftronted Dr.
Martin for being inltrumental in her Acquittal : *Ts
all of a Piece, a Continuance of the fame Impofiure.

L. C.*f. Holt. This Evidence is proper.  He 1
indiéted for a Cheat, for endeavouring to beget an
Opinion in People by his fraudulent Practices that
he is bewitched, Now, Dr, Martin fays, the Peo-
ple were (il pofleflet with fuch a Belief 5 and
thereupon affronted him, becaufe they thought he
was inftrumental i having the Woman acquicted.
Now, [snotthis an Evidence that his pretending
himfelf to be bewitched, begat that Opinion in the
People.

Mr. Serj. Fenmner. What the Doctor has faid all
along, has been of what others have done.

L.C. ¥ I, No, it has been what he faw
himfelf.  You fay this Man’s Evidence is moft of
what others havcfaid. Not fo, He has by himfelf
prayed with him, and tricd an Experiment with
him upon a wrong Woman.

Mr. Serj. Feuncr. He tells you what 77%:ling faid,
and others ;3 How does this atte¢t my Chienr, what
another Man, or another Woman faid ?

L. C. ¥. Holt. He was infulted upon the Account
that Hathaway pretended himfelf to be bewitched,
blind, fpeechlefs, and not able to eat.

M, Sery, Fenner. MyLord,with Submiflion, other
People’s cenfuring the Doctor cannot be brought as
Evidence againft my Client, unlefs they make 1t ap-
- pear that he had a Hand in it, unlels he put them
upon It

L. C. . Holt, What other People have faid, ab-

ftractedly confidered, ought not to affe® Richard
Hathaway 3 but if there be Evidence that Hathaway
hath been guilty of Deceit, and a Defign to deceive
People, Will you not allow it be given in Eyi.
dence, that the People have been deceiv’d? Apd
how came they to be deceiv’d, but by his felgning
himfelf to be bewitched ? ?

Furyman, Mr, Serjeant, If you have any Thine
to object, we defire to hear what you fay, for }(DE
{peak fo law we cannot hear you.

Mr. Serj. Fenner. 1 object to what the Docor
fays by hearfay only.

Furyman, 1 believe that will be little confidered
by the Jury.

L. C. F. Helt. 'The Information is for an Impof-
tor and Chear: Now whatis that ? A Chear isa
Defign to impofe on the Credulity of others, to in-
duce them to believe a Thing that isnot true, Now
Dr. Martin’s Bvidences what Hathawa: did, and
that People did believe him to be bev.itched 5 and
they abufed Dr. Martin, and told bim he had dune
very ill in the Cafe of this Woman ; and if it had
not been for him fhe had been condemned.

Dr. Martin. 1 have only one Thing more to fay
it was reported that I had been bribed 5 I was told
I had received feveral Guineas 3 that the Judge was
bribed and the Jury bribed, and the Judge would
not fuffer theW oman to befearched, he being bribed,

Mr. Conyers. Dollor have you dont ?

Dr, Martin. 1 have.

Mr. Conyers. We will next call Mrs, Fobufon who
was {cratched.

Mr. Broderick. Sir, 1 think you muntioned 2
Gentleman that you fent for up? Where isi ?

Dr. Mertin. He is here.

. Mr. Brederick, What 1s his Name ¢

Dr. Murtin. Mr. Bateman.

My, Broderick, We will call lim to give an Ac-
count of that.

Mr. Conyers. We will firft call this Woman.
Mrs. Fobufon, Were you at any Time with Dr. Mar-
tin at fuch Time as Hathaway pretended to be be-
witched ?

Mis. Jobnfon. Yes.

Mr. Conyers. Then pray give my Lord and the
Jury an Account of what you know about 1.

Mis, Fobnfen. 1 went into the Room to fee Surah
Norduck.

Mr. Couyers. What Room ?

Mrs. Fobufon. 1 was in the Room where Dr.
Martin ferched her to be fcratch’d 5 and Dr, Martia
told me, he dcfigned that he fhould {cratch fome
otherWoman ; and he defired me to let him fcratch
me ; but I denicd him, and faid, I was a Wife, and
was not willing 5 at laft I confented, and he told
me I muft not fpeak when I came into the Room
where Hathaway was 5 and he brought me to the
Fellow ; and he faid tc: him, If you think the Blood
of this Sarab Murduck will do you any good, hold
up your Hand. 'Which hedid. Then he bid Sarab
Morduck {peak to him 3 which fhe did,  Says he s
Are you willing this Man fhould fcratch you?  She
faid, Yes: My Hear’s Blood, if it will do him
good. So with that he feratch’d me, and Sarab
Mosduck cry’d out.  He had razed the Skin of my
Arm, but no Blood came prefently,  Dr. Martis
defired me not to fpeak, and Idid not ; the Blood
came afterwards, but none then,

Mr. Conyers. Were you in the Room when the
Doctor fpoke to him ?

Mrs, Fobnforr. 1 went into the other Room; Dr.
Martin put me out before him.

Mr. Conyers.
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Mr. Conyers. Was not you brought in again, ?

Mrs, Fobufon. No, I went in of my. own accord.

Mr. Conyers. In what Condision wds be then.?

Mus. Fobufon. He looked in this manner, his Eves
{taring: open.

L. C. . Holt. Were his Eyes fhut, when you firft
came-and was feratch’d, or opent

Mis, Fobufen. No, they.were hafb fhut:

L. C. ¥, Holt. Did he {peak. then ¢

Mrs, Fobssfon. No, he faid nothing wher T came
hack, till his Fiyes were open, and then he faid,
0 Ghrift Fefus, or O Lord Fefus.

Mr, Phipps: But did he feel your Arm before he

feratch’d you ¢
Mrs, Fobufon. Ycs, over and over.

Mr. Couyers.  Call Willian Datcnan  (Who ap-
peared and was fworn), Pray give an Account what
you know of this Defendant’s vomizing Pins.

Villiam Bateman, About a Twelve-month ano
[ went to {ee Richard Hathaway.

My, Conyers. Were you defired to go to him by
Dr. Martin 2 ’

IWiltiam Balessan., 1 can’t remember that,

L. C. 7. Holt. Where do you live ¢

IWilliam Bateman, 1n Pembrokefbire.

Mr, Conyers. Then you do not remember any
thing that paft then ?

[¥lliam Bateman. 1 do not fay 1 do not remen-
ber any thing, but I do not remember whether
Dr. Martin defired me to go to him,

Mz, Conyers. Give an Account of what you know
about his vomiting Pins,

William Bateman,  Aboug this Time Twclve-
month, on a Swaday Night, a Woman canie to
Dr, Martin's Houle to enquire for him. [ went to
the Door ; and the Woman faid, If Dr. Martin
would but come now, he might {ee Hatbaway vomic
Piiss, Can I fee him, fays1? Yes, faysthe. Sol
went 1minediately 5 and m the Houle there were
littke Chinks that I could {ee through 3 and I faw
him walk about the Honfe, and heard him talk to
the People, and 1 ftood fome Time to hear him.
At lalk T koocl?d, and he came and let me 4 and
feeing me, he feeoed to be troubled, and feigned
himlelf o bz 1 fome Pain,

Mr, Raymard. You fay you loik’d through the
Chink, How washe then ¢ Repeat that,

Wiilici Batenan. Fle feem’d o bz as well as he
1S NOW,

Mr, Raymoad. \What did you do then ?

IWilliam Batesmon. 1knocked, andheletmein
andd when I came valiere the Light was, he knew me;
and I Gidto bim, 1 hear you fpew Pins,  Yes,
fays he, Says I, Prithee let .me fee thee. So he
{ate.on a low Seat, and they gave him fomething in
a:Cup, and by drinkingthis 1 was to{ee him vomit
Pins ; and ‘e took fome Drink, byt as far as 1
could parceive.he did not {wallow any.

Mr. .Conyers. “What was the Eftect.of it ?

Hilliam Batewman. He prewended then to be in
an Agony, and vomited feveral Times, and there
-were ‘Pins.on the Ground, L.had .the Room fwepe
wery.clean, and.gaveihim,the fame again, He.vo-
smited again, and -there were abundance.of Pins.on
theiGround again. :1:beiieve he vomited fourteen
onfifteen Times, and:1.believe.there were.fome hun-
dreds.of Pins.on.the Ground ;3 .butd thought the
Pins were dropt:from-one or other ;5 and L.took.up
fome of them, and.they were dry 5 and I took, up
4wo or .three.in a.Chain 5 .and I:faid, :I ‘bélieved
thofe were the Pins that.wereifhewn at our Houfg,
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No, no, fays his. Mafter, thefe are,not the fame
and he did endeavour, to fatisfy me that he did vo-
mit thefe Pins 3 fo I defired he'might have a Pot to
vomit in 3 and Ehad a Pot brought and made very
clean, and I fzarched hjs Mouth and found naq Pins
there ; and I held the Por.to his Mouth clofe, an@t
he often endeavoured to put his Hand to the Por,
and L would not fuffer him, for I perceived his
Hands often moving to his Pocket. He vomited
foveral Times, and there were fome Pins feattered on
the Ground, but none in the Chamber-pot,  Says
I, thefe Pins do not come opt of his Mouth 3 bu
tlhz People were very prefling on me to believe they
{lid, ,
1. C. ¥. Holt. 'Who were they 2

William Bateinan, They were all Strangers to
me. Upon this ] told them, I believed he had a
Slight of Hand ta convey them there, and I took
hold of his Pocket., He ftopt my Hand, and would
not Jet me put my Hand intoit.  But after {fome
Time, faysone, Léthim, let him fearch your Pocker.
So I did, and took out feveral Things, and among;
the reft feveral Parcels of Pins, and I believe thele
were they that he convey’d on the Ground.

L. C. §. Holt. Did you fee him take them out
of his Pocket ?

IVilliams Bateman, No, but 1 took out feveral
Hundred.

Turymon. What {ort of Shape were they of ?

IVilliam Eateman. They were of a very odd kind
of Shape.

L.C. ¥. Holt. Were they {trait or crooked 2

William Batemay. They were craok’d in ftrange
Figures, like them on the Floor.

Mr. Piederick. And he made a great Difficuity
of letting you meddle with his Pocket ¢

William Batemer. Yes. .

Mr. Phipps. Aund when you would not Jet him
put his Hand to the Por, there were none in the
Pot, but only on the Ground ?

IWilliam Bateman. Yes, Sir.

Furyman. Did you fee any Pins come out of his

Mouth ¢
William Bateman. No, Sir. |
M. Serj. Fenney. 'What became of the Pins you

faw on the Ground ; you fay you faw abundance,
what became of them ?

William Bateman, 'They were {wept away.

Mr, Serj. Fenner, Who fwvept them away ¢

1#7liam Bateman. Some of the Family.

Furymai, 1 think he faid that feveral.of the Pns
were taken up dry, werc any of the Fins that were
ou the Ground dry-? '

illin Bateman, Yes; and I .faid, thefe Pins
did not come from hum. |

Mr. Serj. Fenner. When was this?

WWilliam Bateman, About a Twelve-maonth ago ¢

Mr. Broderick,. Now, my Lord, we will fhew
your Lordfhip that he drew.up a Narrative for the
Prefs, giving an Account of this Bufinefs. [ Call
Richard Ball, who was fworn.] Mr. Ball, Pray

give an Account of what you Know of Richard Ha-
thaway’s.endeavouring to print a Story of his vomit-

ing of Pins. _
Ball, About a Twelve-month ago, mn Decein-

ber, Richard Hathaway brought a Writing, and

withal a .Difh-full of crooked Pins, and rtold us,
.thole Pins.he had vomited,” and.that he had .been

afflicted by a-Woman in Southwark, and I think he

faid he. had not eat any thing from my Lord-Mayor's

L

Day.
| Rrr
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Mr. Brodeiick, What did he defire you to do 2
Rail. To print this Paper,  And after he had

told this Story, he faid he had been with a Woman

in Goodmais-Iiclds, There was a Boy with him,

And he deflired us to piine his Paper, It related the

Story of his vomiting of Pins, He faid he had

taken Quickfilver, and it would not move him 5 and

Madam Goeodiwin was mentioned feveral Times in

the Papers, that fhe had cured him.,

Mr, Coiryers, How came it that you did not
print his Paper ?

Bal, My Mafter ftood by 5 favs he, You leok
very well 5 T will have nothing to do with ity I
believe you are a Cheat, I believe no fuch thing,
fays he s and tpon that went away, DBut the next
Day there was a Paper printed by fomebody 5 and
Richard Hathaway comes to us afierwards, and fiays,
You have pented a Paper, tho® you would nor have
iof me: Bue it is not true, fayshe 5 1 can give a
better Account,

My, Bioderick, Then he talked verv freely to
vou. the’ hie had not eat in ix Weeks before ?

ball. Yes, Sir.

Mr, Brederieiz, And he looked very well ?

Ball, Yes, Sir s and we wonder’d at 1t

Mr. Conyers. Call My, Hearne (whe svas fiworn).
Mr, Hearne, pray give my Lord, and the Jury,
an Account of what you know of this Mutzer.

[earne.  About September was Twelve-month,
my Sitler was fall’n upon by this Hurhazwav, and
fcratched and abufed in a barbarous Manner 3 and
abeat fix Weeks after fhe was {erarched again,
* Alter this we went before Jultice Riebes, and Juftice
Riches perfuaded them to be quicr, and not to
trouble this Woman 5 and he perfuzded hier to re-
move to fome other Place.  After this there was o
Tumult made about her in Newpate-fircet,

Mr., Conyers, Were not you prefent when Dr,
Murtin was with the Defendant 2 ,

Hearne, Yes, Sir,

Mr. Coiyers. Then give an Account of cha,

Heairpe. 1 went o Dr, Martiz 5 and Dr, Mariin
told me that he would try a Siratagem (to fee
whether he was bewitch’d) by making him feratch
another Woman., 1 told him, I was afiaid we
Miould be beeray’d.  Says he, Let me alone to ma-
nageit: So I faid nomore.  Says ke, Do you go
and fetch Sarab Alorduck to me, and T will go be-
jore,. So I came with my Sifter to #72/lixz's Houfe,
where Dr. Martin was, and there was a Houfe full
of People: And then he ordered the Door to be
fhut 5 and then Dr. Aartin left me ac the Bed-fide,
and he gor a Woman that was willing to be feratch’d.
She refuled at firlt, but afterwards conferted, And
then Dr. Martin brought them mto the Room
where HHathawey was 5 and he afl’d him if he did
beleve that {cratching Sarah Mordiick would do him
any good 3 If he did he fhould hold up his Hand ;
and he held up both Hands.  Says he then to Sa-
rab Morduck, Are you willing to be {eratch’d? Yes,
her Heart’s Blood to do him good, Then give me
your Iand, fays he; but inftead of hers he took
Mis. Fobufor’s IHand, and gave it into Hathaway’s
Hand. And Hathawwaey tock her by the Wrift, and
felt her feveral Tinaes.
you will fcratch her, feratch her, I cannot wait on
vou always, Thep he fell to work, and Dr, Martin
faid, he will open his Liyes prefently,. there is Blood
cuough 3 and he prefently opens his Eyes and catches
Sarab Morduck by the Apron, and holds her as faft
as he could, and the Woman that was fcrately’d was
gone into another Koovwm s with alf the Strength I
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had I could hardly loofen his Hands from Sarah
AMrduck. Now, lays Dr. Martin, You are miftaleq
thig is not the Woman you have {cratch'd ; ﬂnd:
then his Countenance chang’d, and he locked fike
a Fool, he was fo furprized. Then fays Dr, Massiy
Where is the Woman that he feratch’d ? And
fetch’d Fobufon out of the other Room, and fhew'y
him her Arm, that fhe was the Woman he hag
cratch’d,  Says Dr. Martin, 1 fee what you are »
oo and mind your Bufinefs 5 or to that effeét ; and
then we went away.  This was about Twaive of
One a-Clock the 11th of Febrnary,  And whengue
were uone, the fame Day, as foon ds it wiis dark,
they got half a Dozen ufty Fellows 0 go to S
Morduck’s Houfe, und there they abufed her,

L. C. 7. {ilt.  Flow do you know that > Dig
you fee 1t ?

Hearne, My Lord, I will &l you prefendy,
When fhe had had this Mifchief fhe fent for me,
and when I came, her Shift on her Back was as wer
as muck. She fent for me, becaufe fhe had none
to affift her but me, and I found her that Nighe in
that pickle,  They faid, as foon as we were gone,
the Fellow was bad again, and they have put this
Trick upon us; but we will have the right Witch
to {cratch her,

L. 5. Lelt. Who wag at the Houle that Nighe
that you {ay the was in an 1ll Condhtion,

Hearne. There were {everal at the Fonfe then,
Mys, Sarab Hays the Landiady was there, and
o:hers.

L.C. . Helt. You fay they wete in a Fubbub,
and wouid have the nighe Woman feratch’d, VWho
was 1t that would have 1t fo.

leaiwe. 1 heard fo.  But when I came to ker,
[ found herin a lamentable Condition.  Then |
went to Juftice Riches, and defired his Warrant o
take fome of them 3 and he granted it, and I took
up onz Ofbenrn 5 and when I came with him to
Juftice Riches, we had no Body to fivear that the was
lame a Ped, and fo he was difcharged ; and Juftice
Riches faxd, 1f there be no other to prove it on the
Trial you will {pend a grear deul of Money to no
Purpofe, and therefore he let hin go.  So the was
moved 0 Panls Wharf, but a Company of Fel-
lows {ollowed her thither.

L. C. }. Helt. How do you prove that ?

Fearne. 1 heard of it, and defired the Land-
lord to fend for a Conftable 5 hedid fo 3 and when
we came there, all the People made their Efcape,
except {/athaway and another Perfon.  So then fhe
was carried before Sic Thomas Lane ; and they tel-
ling him that he had vomited Pins, and other things,
Sir Tomas was perfuaded to believe it. I told
him, thele Fellows had difturbed this Woman’s
Peace, and very much abufed her. Sir Tlemas,
wiil you not ler me know who this Man 15 ?

. C. 7. Holt, What Man do you mean?

Hearne. “foiies. 1 begg’d, Pray let me know
this Fellow’s Name, Says he, If is no matter, there
was Provocation enongh.  And then when we were
talking of the Pins, Dr. Hamilton look’d in Hatha-
way’s Mouth, and found his Mouth very well ; and
he gave him Beer ; and he, when he had taken 1,
{truggled with all his Might to keep it out ; then
he cry’d out.  Let her be fcratch’d, faid Sir Thomas.
Dr. Hamilton faid, Forbear a little, let us fee the
EffeCt of this Beer 5 and fo they forbore a little
longer, ‘Then tliey talked again of the Pins, and
Dr. Hamilton would have her feratch’d again 5 fo he
fpake to the Woman about 1, but fhe would nos

confent 3 for fhe faid fhe had been abufed, and
would




1702, Aflrz.

would not be feratch’d, unlefs they would fecure
ter for the future.  But Sir Tosmras would have her
feracch’d 5 and fo fhe was 5 and then when the was
feracch’d, and he had drawn her Blood, the Fellow
hrultled about Jike a Cock-Sparrow ; and then
they call’d for Bread and Cheele ; and fo he that
before pretended he could not {wallow any thing,
how'd like an Antick to the People, for he was
very greedy. And when he had eaten that, he call’d
for more 3 and Welling fatd, Pray let him not have
ir, it will do him hurt, becaule he has not cat fo
long. Then Sir Thomas Lauc ordered her to be
fripped, and fhe was (tripped above Stairs, and
dien he would commit her to Prifon,

L. C.F. Holt, Why? Did any body {ay {he had
any thing extraordinary about her ?

‘Hearne. No. Dr. Hamilton faid fhe had nothing:
about her 3 I offer’d a Hundred Pounds Security
for her 5 and Sir Thomas Lane would not take it
But when Dr. Martin had been with her at Nighe
I Bul’d her out.

Mr, Bar. Hatfell. Was this Hathaway dumb
when he was at Sir Thomas Lane’s?

I:arne. He fpoke before, and when Sir Tho-
sas Lane bound her over to the O/d-Buaily, and all
that time he was as well as could be.

Mr. Ser, Feuner. Was you at the Affizes at
Grilford?

[learie, Yes, and gave Teltimony for her there.

Mr. Conyers. My Lord, we have a great many
others that were prefent with Di, Martin y but we
have proved that Matter fufficiently, Now we will
fhew how he behaved himielt at Mr. Kenpy's. [Call
My, Kenfy, <who appeared and wwas Sworn.] M,
Kerfy. Do you know Richard Hathaway ?

Mr. Kenfy.  Yes,

Mr. Conyers. Was he not committed to your Care?

Mr. Kc.’i._?fj‘. Yes,

Mr, Conyers. When was it ?

Mr. Kenfy. Tt was in November lalt,

Mr., Conyers. Now pray give my Lord and the
Jury an Account of what you know of his Fafting.

M. Keanfy. He was brought to my Houfe the
Firlt of November laft about Noon. [ went to fee
him at the Kings-Bench, where about Nine in the
Morning I found him in Bed,  The Servants in the
Prifon told me his Tongue was fwell’d. At my
Requett he put out his Tongue, which I found na
very good State and Colour, frec from any Indura-
tion or Contradtion. [ obfervtd the Glands under
the Tongue, alfo his Throat, fo far as 1 could fee,
tree from any preternatural Accident or Impediment,
He was brought to my Houfe about Twelve the
fame Day. I kept him in the Room where we
dined, and offcred him Meat and Drink feveral
Times, which he refufed.  Abeut Llight at Night
we pat him to Bed, and took his Cloaths out of his
Chamber. The next Morning we oftered hirn Meat
acain, and he refufed to cat; and we brought him
his Cloaths, and he was furly and would not rife,
At Night I offered him a Glafs of Cordial, which
he alfo refufed. At the fame Time we found his
Rug wet, which we difcovered to be his Urine
- dropping through the Tefter of the Bed, he having
hid his Urine upon it in the Cover of a large Box,
through which it dreined.  And [ threatned to dif-
cover him, and faid, Pray dilcover who fet you to
work tn this Matter : 1 look on you as a poor in-
ncent Fellow, and that you are {et on by others
that have more Wit ; bur he would difcover no-
thing, The next Morning I forced him to rife,

2nd I found him refoluce in his Humour of Fafting :
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I'{ound Perfuafions and Promifes of a Pardon could
not prevail, nor Threatnings that I would ftarve

him if he would not confefs ;- fo I feigned a Quarrel

with my Maid, and railed at her in his Prefence,
faying, fhe was as very a Hypocrite as Richard
Hathaway, and that T would be troubled no more
with her. ~ And I order'd her, fo foon as my Back
was turn’d, to rail againft me as bad as the coyld,
and charge him not to take any thing from me or
my Brother, for fhe alone would take care to feed
him.  After this we took him up every Day, and
contrived Places and Holes, whereby we difcovered
him to cat and drink heartily, fometimes three Times
a Day, he thinking no body was Witnefs to it bue
the Servant.  Particularly one Day I had Fifh and
Oyfters for Dinner, and I ordered the Maid to give
him foine, and to give him ftrong Beer and Brandy
too, and he cat and drank freely,  And afterwards
he brought up his Dinner, and I coming in, told
him I was glad the Witch was found out at miy
Houlfe, and I told him to-morrow I would find out
the Pins and Needles. He took the Poker, and
raked the Afhes over ir, that it might not be feen
what he had vomited.

L. C.J. Holt, But did he know that you faw
[im eat ?

Mr. Kenfy. No, my Lord. The nexe Day I offer’d
him fomething to eat, to fee if 1 could make him
{fpeak. But he pretended to be fo faint that he
could not get off his Chair 3 this was after he had
eat feveral Days,  And he danced and glay’d on
the Tongs.

L.C. 7. Hdlt. But did you not fee him drink ¢

Mr. Kenfy. Yes, my Lord.

L.C. %, Helt. But did he know you faw him ;

Mr. Kenfy. He thought no body faw him bue
the Maid ; but I faw him drink.

Mr. Brederick. How did you fee him ?

Mr. Kenfy. 1 hid my felf in a dark Place in my
own Buttery, and did {ee him eat and drink fe-
veral Times. I did not fee him eatevery Day, But
the eighth Day he endeavoured to make his Efcape.
My Brother and my Sons went into his Chamber
with his Cloaths, and Hathaway having drefs’d
himfelf, watch’d his Opportudity, and jump’d out
of the Room, and bolted them in. But they ftay-
ing fo long, I fent the Maid up, and fhe met him
{tealing down Stairs, and then he went back again
and let them out. On Monday the 10th 1 gave
him his Cloaths, and I being alone, he had not.Pa-
tience to drefs himfelf, burimmediately feized me ;
but ftruggling with Iim, he pretended Feeblenels,
and fell on the Bed.

Mr. Conyers. Can you give account of any thing;
afterwards?

Mr. Kenfy. Yes,
Mr. Conyers. What Difcourfe had you with him

then?

Mr, Kenfy. I will tell you. He was very furly.
That was the firft Day he fpoke. I came to him,
and told him he was a Fool ; that his Friends were
in Culledy, and had not been true to him, but had
difcovered the whole Matter 3 and advifed him to
make a Dilcovery himfelf 3 and if he would, I would
go with him to my Lord Chief Juftice, Upon thas,
he cried paflionately, and fud he would tell the Lord
Chief Juftice the whole Truth, But my Lord not
being at his Chamber, he in about an FHour recant-
ed, and faid he was bewich’d, ' When he cried, he
afk’d if his Mother was fafe,

Mr. Coiyers, Did he at any Timg tell you how

tong he had fafted ¢
| Rrra ~ Mr, Kenfy.
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Mr. Renfy, Yes. He made Signs that he had
falted feveral Times when we had feen him eat,
and he took his Cloaths and wrapt them over him.
And I faid unto him how long hait thou fafted be-
fore you came to my Houfe? e made Signs that

he had fafted ten Weeks,
L. C. ¥ Holt. Did he pretend to be Dumb? -

My, Kenfy. Yes. And latked him how long he

had fafled at my Houle; and he pointed Two
more.
Mr. Cenyers. You fay he made Signs that he had
fafted ten Weeks before he came to your Houfe,
ancd two Weeks while he was theree. Now how
often did you fee him cat at your Houfe after the
two firlt Days?

Mr, Kerfe. I faw him cat feveral Times at
Noon and Night, Aud after I had fcen him ear.
I would have perfuaded him to eat, and he made
Signs ftill as if he could not cat, and fhook his
Head.

Mr. Serf. Jeimer, Tow did you know what he
meant by fhaking his Head ?

L. C. % Holt., How did you know what he
meant by his counting ¢ How did you know that
he meant Weeks ? *

Mr. Kenfy.  Ele counted upon his Iingers, my
Lord, Taik’d him how many Weeks he had fafled
before lie came to my Houfe, and he counted Ten
Fingers 3 and how long he had fafted at my Houfe,
and he counted Two more, And I afk’d him
whether he had fafted Twelve Weeks then, and he
mile Signs of Twelve,

Mr. Serj. Jenser. You fay he was dumb, and yet
coulil hear.

Mr. Kenfy.  Yes,
M. Scry. Feuncr. How 15 that hikely, that he

fhould hear, and yet was dumb ?
L. C. % Helt, Cannot a Man hear, tho” he be

dumb ?

© Mr. Coryers. Call Elizabeth Baker.  Where s
Mhe ? [She was Sworn] Were you a Servant to Mr,
Reirfv when this Man was at his Houle ?

Ehiz, Baker, Yes, 1 was,

Mr. Coiyers. Then pray tell my Lord and the
Jury what you know of him.

E. Ba'er. Richard HHathaway came to my Ma-
fter’'s Houfe about twelve a-Clock on Sutusday.
When . we went to Dinner at one a-Clock, my
Muafter offer’d him Meat and Broth, und he re-
fufed ity he was afk’d to cat feveral Times, but
{Ull refufed it., They afl’d him agun at Nighe,
and he thook his Head, and would not eat,  And
when he went to Bed, we took his Cloaths, and
lock’d him i, And the next Day he refuled to
rife, and at Noon they went to fee if he would
cat any Thing, and offer’d him a Glafs of Sack,
and he refuled 6. And on Mozday Morning he
was afk’d to rife again, and he would not; but
my Mafter would have him rile 5 and would have
him come down and {it by the I'ire 5 and when he
was come down, afk’d hun to cat, but he would
not, And at Iaft he fook’d i his Mouth, and
faid he faw nothing but that he nughe cat and drink
it he wonld.  And my Malter faid to me, When
I am with himy I will call you up, and take an

Occafion to fall out with you, and when Tam gone,
do you rail at me, and tell bim he fhould take

nothing of me or my Brother, Andfo I did; [ faid
my Mafter call’d me Prelbyterian Jade, but I faid
I did not know what Religion he was of 3 and thac
he was not more willing to have me go, than I
was to be gone,  And I told him he fhould take
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nothing of my Mafter or his Brother, ] wouli
look after him while I ftay’d.  So I went oyt of
the Room, and fetel’d a Glafs of Brandy, ang
gave it to him,  But there was a Child with me
and he refufed to drink it, with a Sign pointing (4
the Child 5 fo I fnd I would hide the Child, ::;m]
I ftood between him and the Child 5 and then |y
drank 1t.  And the fame Day I gave him fome
Pudding and Small Beer 5 and at Night I carried
him a Pint of Ale and a Toaft, but tound he had
not eat the Pudding: I faw him eat the Toaft apg
drink the Ale; but I did not-fec him eat the Pyg-
ding, tho’ I {uppofe he eat it afterwards, for I fiw

& Dl’
IL N0 more,

Furymai, In what manner did you convey this
Provifion to him ?

Ls. Baker. My Mafter gave me the Key, and ]
went in and ftatd while he eat and drank, and ]
made him believe 1 had got the Key by Seealth,
And T gave lim a Glafs of Brandy on Moiday
Night, and he drank it.  And the next Day he ¢it
and drank 5 he drank fome Broth, and eat boil’é
Mutton at Noon s and at Night he eat a Chop of
Mautzon, Bread and Cheele, and drank Beer ang
Brandy,  On Weduefday we had a Shoulder of
vViutton roafled, and after they had dined, | oave
hiny a Plae of Mear, and he cat it in the Kirchen
with me, and drank freely.  And fo he did every
Day after while be was at our Houfe, '

Mr. Couyers, Did any ever fee him eat befides
your {clf,

k. Baker. Yes. That Day that we had fith, he
was in the Kitchen 3 and being there, he went and
walh’d his Hands, and I gave him a Plate of Fifh,
and fet 1t by him 5 and he ook it, and earit. And
I gave him a Bottle of Stout, and told him it was
my Birth-day, and he muft drink my Health ; and
after he had drank it, he pointed to his Forehead,
hgnifying 1t was got into his Head ; and about two
Hours after, he was very merry, and danced about,
and took the Tongs and play’d upon them. Bug
after that he was mighty fick, and vomited fadly.
And, fays my Mafter’s Brother, we fhall fee the
Pins and Needles now.  And to hide it, he falls a
pulling the Fire over it.

My, Conyers. Did any of the Neighbours fee him
eat ?

L. Baker. The 11th Day of the fame Month,
we had a Shoulder of Veal for Dinner ; and after
Dinner, my Mafter bid me fet by fome for him,
and he would have {fome Gentlemen to fee him eat
it.  They were accordingly hid in the Buttery and
Coul-holes and Richard Hathaway was broughe
down, and he took his Bread and Mgat, and eat

heartily, and drank with i,
Mr. Raymoud, Who were thofe Gentlemen that

faw him eat ? )

E. Baker, Mr, Collet. Mr. Norberry, Mr, Page
and Mr, Stanton.

Mr, Conyers, Thefe Perfons are here.

Mr. Sery. Fenner. My Lord, all this is of what
was done after the Trial, this Evidence ought not
to be given ; the Record bears Date the firft Day
of the Termy, and all this is faid to be done in No-
vember 3 1t 1s all after the Record.

L. C. j. Holt. It is to prove the Impofture com-
mitted before now.  What Mr, Kenfy fays of his
pretending to faft twelve Weeks, the” two or more.
be not within the Time of the Information, I hope
they may give it as Evidence fubfequent to prove
what was done before,

Mr. Ser;.
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Mr. Serj. Feiier, But I oppofe all this of eating

ot their Houfe,

L.G. ¥ Holt. Itisan Evidence of his chcatingr

fince that Time, and that out of the Information ;
but it is an Evidence alfo to prove that his pretended
fafting before was a meer Deccit 5 for he then pre-
eended to have fafted ten Weeks before he came
thither, and after pretends to continue fafting in the
fime Manner ; if that be proved to be a Fraud, 1c1s
ftrongly to be inferred, that this pretended fufting
hefore was {o too.

Mr. Serf. Jenner, But then they may not give
Evidence in Mateer after.

L. C. ¥. Holt. Mauer afterwarcs that proves a
Thing done before s for if a Confeffion be made
fubfequent to an Indictment for a Crime, Shall not
that Confeffion after be brought as Evidence of the
Thing done before 2 Sure 1t may,

Mr, Serj. Jemner. And will that prove what was
before ?

L. C.¥. Holt. 1t 15 certainly fo.  The Thing is,
Whether [ can give m Evidence any Thing after o
prove what was done before.  If he pretends to
falt twelve Weeks, ten Weeks Lefore he came
there 3 and the two Weeks after, he did not faft
but only pretended ie: Whether what he did afeer
b: not Evidence of what he did before ? Sure it 1s,
For he thot cannot hold out fafting two Weceks, but
was glad to eat, tho’ he pretended to faft, may
ftrongly be prefumed to have eaten during the wn
Weeks, tho’ then he pretended to faft.

Mr, Couyers. Call Mr, Stanton. (IWho appeared.)
Was you at Mr. Keny’s Houfe to fee Richard
Hathaway eat ?

Mr. Staion, Yes, Mro Keify came to me the
11th of Novewber, and defired me to come to his
Houle, to fee whether he cat or drank or not 5 and
I went, and was put into a dark Place, and I faw
rhe Victuals before he was brought 5 there was five
Siices of Meat, and Bread, and Beer,  And he
was brought where it was, and he looked about him
earneltly ro fec if any one faw him, and then he fell
to, and eat as heariily asany Man could,  And hear-
ing a Noile whilft he was eating, he run away with
it, and fet it on the Drefler.  The Maid faid, there
s no body coming ; and then he went to it again,
and eat it up, and drank the Drink, and fat down
by the Fire, And afterwards we went to him, and
carried a Bottle of Drink with us, and drank to him ;
bat he made Signs that he could not drink, and
fhew’d us that his Belly clung to his Back, which
we thought was very {trange,

Mr. Conyers. Call Muatthezw Shipps, and ——
Bagter. (They did ot appear.) o, Huit, (He was
fworn.) My Lord, we call this ivian to give you an
Account of the ftrange Noifes that they pretended
were heard in Mr. /7elling’s Houle 5 and we will
make it appear how that Noife came. Mr, Hunl,
pray give an Account what you know 1 this Mat-
er.

Yo. Hunt. My Lord, an Acquamntance of mine,
one Ac/pin, told me that he had watcl’d with Ri-
chaid Haibaway one Night 5 and the next Day he
came to me, and told me he fell a-fleep, and had not
watch’d him as he oughe ; and defired me to fit up
with him, and to obferve him as narrowly as I could,
and fee if I could find any Deceit in him.  Accord-
ingly I did fo; and when I came into the Room, I
fate downon the Bed-fide. There were two Gentle-
men in the Room, Mr. Pocock, and Mr. Butler, and
Thomas Welling.  Hle lay as if he were almoft dead.
In a lile Time his Maller, Tho, /#elling, brought
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in fome Pins' in a Coffee-difh, and’ faid he had
brought them up that Day, and that he believed he
would bring up more. And after this feeing of the
Pins, I went to Mr. Pocock, and faid, I did imagne
the Pins might lie in his Mouth, rather than in his
Stomach ; and therefore it was very proper to have
his Mouth fearch’d.  And Mr, Pocock replied, Who
will venture to do it ? And I faid, If they would
wiafli the Fire Poker clean, and put it into lus
Mouth, to prevent his biting my Finger, T would
do it. Immediately upon this Hatbaway raited him-
fclf, and began to make a Reaching, as tho’ he
would vomit ; and then #%lling and his Wife fud,
now he is going to bring up Pins.  Thereapon 1
knceled down by the Bed-fide with a Candle in my
Hand to obferve his Motions ; and after he had
{train’d fome Time, he made a Motion with his
Tongue at cach fide of his Mouth, but I could not
perccive any thing come up his Throat, tho’ his
Mouth was wide open 5 and by and by he diew up
his Mouth, and turned out two or three bright Pins,
and prefently after two more, which I cateh’d m my
Hands, and fhew’d them to the Company, faying,
they are bright and new 3 and his Mafter faid he be-
lieved they came out of fome Chandler’s Shop.
Afterwards Hathaway lay down very quiet, and fo
continued for fomeTime, And/Pelling’sWike coming
into the Room, afk’d why the Charms were not put
on ? | replied, T have been told the Charms have been
always taken off from him by the Wirch 5 but was
refolved to watch fo narrowly that INight, that they
fhould not be taken from him,  Then W#elling and.
his Wife offering to put on the Chaims, Hathaway
made a ftruggling, as tho’ he was unwilling to have
them on 3 and /7eiling f2id, you have always lound
Benefit by it, Why will younot ? They aye order’d
by Mr. Builer.

L. C. . Helt. What are thofe Charms ¢

Yo. Hunt. Thrce little Things in black Bags, 1
did not know what they were. And they afk’d him
whether he was willing they fhould be puton ; if he
was, he fhould hold up his Hand ;s but he was un-
willing.  But I faid, I was minded to have them
puton ; {o he lay ftill, and Mrs. /¥elling, or fome
other Woman, few’d chem to the Bofom of his Shitt.
After the Charms were put on, I watch’d to fee
what would become of them 3 and perceiving Hath-
away to make feveral Motions with his Hands
about them, I ftruck his Hands. I bid him either
keep his Arms ftraight in the Bed, or elle put them
out of the Bed, for that the Charms fhould not be
taken off that Night, Then I and the Company
fiteing il about the Bed, 7/elling faid, Hearken,
you will not believe 5 hear what a Noifc there s,
the iike is heard here almoft every Night. Where-
upon all were filent, At laft I heard a imall {cratch-
ing or rubbing at the Bed’s I'eet 5 and putting my
Head clofe to the Bed’s Feet, liftning, I heard
fomething fhriek 3 and perceiving the Bed-cloaths
ftir, I took hold of the Fellow’s I'oot, and (aid,
I have caught the Witch that made the Noile. I
thought it had been Mice at fisft 5 but feeing the
Cloaths move, I catch’d his Foot.  “Thereupon
Iathazoay rofe up, and in a Paflion made a Mo-
tion towards me with both his Flands 5 but T lift-
ing up his Foot, he fell back upon his Pillow, and
lay ftill, and the Noife ceafed 3 and about I'ive
1-Clock in the Morning I left hiw, and the Charms
upon him.

Mr. Conyers. Call Elizabeth Brand (whe ap-
peared).  Pray give an Account what you know of

any Colletion of Money for Richard Hm};nwa)b_
tfiz,




494

Eliz, Brand. Therc was betwixt fix and {eve
Pounds gathered. |

L. C. ¥. Holt. How was it gathered ?

Eliz. Brand, We went about to get Money for
him to bear his Charges to Guilford, and we got be-
twixt fix and feven Pounds,

Mrt. Broderick. Do you know of any other Sums
that were gathered for him ?

Eliz, Brand, Yes, but I know not how much.

Mr. Conyers. Who employ’d you to do this?

Eliz. Brand, A great many of the Neighbours.

L, C. 7. Holt, Who was the Money paid to ?

Eliz. Brand. To Mrs. Welling.

Mr. Conyers. Do you know any thing of lis
fcratching Sarab Morduck ?

Eliz, Brand. 1 over-perfuaded her to ket the
Fellow fcratch her,

L. C.}. Holt. Did fhe confent to it 2

Eliz. Brand, Yes, my Lord, I call’d her, and
faid to her, Let me perfuade you to let this I'ellow
fcratch you ;3 and fhe bid me go and fetch him.
And he came, and fits him down on a low Seat,
Says the, Will you engage he thall not fcratch my
Eycsour? At laft he feraiches, and there came no
Blood 5 and he feratches again, and then the Blood
came; and he cry’d, O my Eyes, O my Eyes.
And I faid, now the Blood comes, and he ftared.
Says I to him, Can you fee mw ? Yes, fayshe, as
well as ever 1 could. -

Mr, Conyers. Mr. Hearne, you was at Guilford
Aflizes, How long did this Fellow pretend he had
fafted ?

Mr, Hearne. 1 cannot be pofitive what he faid at
the Trial as to that 3 but they faid he had fafted
fix Weeks, before Dr, Martin tried the Experiment
with him,

Mr. Consers. Call Matt. Shipps  (be was fawern).
Was Richard Hathaway under your Cuftody ?

M, Shipps. Yes; Ile was brought from Guil-
ford Affizes upon the g1ft of Fuly laft.  He came
home at Eleven a-Clock at Night, and they told me
he was come a Prifoner from Guilford to the Mar-
Jhalfea, where he continued four Days, and he was
ordered to lie with me'y and every Night that he
lay there, he flept very well to my thinking: And
feveral Times I afl’d him how he did, he anfwer’d,
he was pretty well 5 and every Day while he was
there, he cat and drank with me, as the reft of
the Servants of the Houle did, and was not in all
that Time inany Iit as I could perceive, but went
very well out of the Prifon.,

L. C. ¥, Hedt, What did he fay at the Affizes
about his Fafting ?

M, Shipps. 1 was not at the Aflizes.

Mr, Conyers. Then we mult jeave it here,

Mr, Broderick, My Lord, we have the Woman
here that they pretended was the Witch ;3 but 1t
may be, they may think it not proper, and there.
fore we thall let her alone,

Mr, Seirj. Jemner. My Lord, and you Gentle-
men of the Jury, T am Council for the Defendant,
Richard Hathatway, who is indicted for a Cheat and
Impoftor ; and it is for pretending himfelf to be
bewitched, and that he has uled mdireét Arts and
Means to make People believe he was fo bewitch’d s
and that this Sarab Morduck was the Perlon that
had bewitch’d him 5 and that this was contrived by
him, in order to bring Mifchief and Damage on
this Sarab Morduck, and to the evil Example of the
Queen’s Subjetts.  You have heard the Evidence
that has been given, and therefore I fhall not repeat
it, but only obferve fome good Things to you, The
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Dottor has taken a great deal of Pains in this Caufe.,
but that which he does tell you by Hearfay, whap
other Perfons have told him, 1s not fuch Evidence
as you arc to take any notice of, that is, whar
Fobufon told him, and likewife what other Perfong
rold him concerning this Man s for what they have
faid to him of this Man, tho’ it may be true, js
not to come under your Conlideration,  There are
{feveral others that have given Evidence of what
other Perfons have fuid, and they have given it ag
their Opintons that what this Man did was the Caufe
of their Doings; of which you are to take no no-
tice, Bur, my Lord, that which feems to bear moft
hard upon us, is, That becawle the Doétor, and fi.-
veral others have been abufed, both before and after
the Trial, for what they endeavour’d to do 5 there.
fore they would infinuate as if my Client had had
a HMand in it. Butif a Man be doing any thing,
and another takes the Advantage of it to do another:
a Milchief, I hope that Milchief thall not be luid
to his Charge, My Lord, thereis one Man that has
given a great deal of Evidenceas to his Vomiting of
Pins, and fays that he was by, and he fwcpt the
Ground, and after he had vomited, there were
Pins upon the Ground ; and when he had 2 Chambet-
pot to vomit in, he could not find any Pins there, but
there was fome upon the Ground again.  So like-
wife for his Fafting, you have had Evidence to prove
that a Cheat.  And this feems to affeé him moft,
that all this Pretence to be Bewnch’d, and Vomit-
ing of Pins, and Fafting, was a Cheat, Thisis
the Matter that they accule him of.  Of which if
he be really guilty, Tcome not here to defend him 5
but I am to defend him as-far as Witnels will do.
And now, my Lord, if my Brief be true, we fhall
fatisfy you that my Client was in a very lameni-
able Conditton, fuch as gne would think no NMan
could be in and live; and I will lead you by dhfe
Steps.  When he was thus difabled, could neither
(peak, nor take Sultenance, his Mafler, after he
had ferved him two Years, and he had lived very
civilly, and behaved himfelf well in his Mafter’}
Service, till he fell chus il : Then he was fo il that
after the Mafter had fpent a grear deal of Money
with Doctors and Apothecaries, he could get no
Cure for him 3 then he got him into the Hofpital,
and there he continued 2 long Time, and at Lafk
they gave it in that he was incurable, and they
turn’d him out,  But his Mafter made Intereft, and
got him in again, and he continued fome time therc
again 5 and there it was that he was firlt thoughe
to be bewitched: For they had him twice, and
could do no good with him, and the Tenders told
him e nmuft lie under fome evil Tongue ; and
thereupon he was turn’d out as incurable, and with
that Inftruélion that it was an incurable Difeale.
So he came IHome agan, and his Mafter and Mif-
trefs were acquainted with it and they confider
what Perfon it fhould be that thould have any evil
Defign agamft him.  And at Jaft they recollect,
that his Mafler had taken a Room over the Head of
this Sarab Morduck, and fhe had gone to the Shop
often, and had given them very ill Words, and fhe
fhould be even with him one Time or other ; and
therefore they concluded this Woman was the Per-
{fon. Upon this there were many Things contrived,
what Courfe they fhould take to do him good, and
there was one Thing concluded upon in order to
his Eafe (which™ I think none fhould advife) thac
15, the Bufinefs of fcratching,  But this Woman,
when fhe was accufed by them of bewitching hum,

offered her [elf to be fcrateh’d, and fhe was ﬁ:ratcl]ﬁ'ui
an
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id from thence this Man found Eafe.  But after-
wards he fell ilt again, and he went into Lowdon,
«nd was examin’d at Sir Thomas Laic’s 3 and upon
Fxamination they thought that this Man ad lie
ander fuch an AffliGtion. T cunnot fay 1t 1s an ir-
religious Thing to fay there are Witches in the
World 3 but this Man lay under {uch a Diftemper,
that no Doftor could know what to-do with i, And
they could not imagine who fhould do 1t bur this
Woman, and fhe was there {cratch’d by him, and
he did find Relief by it. My Lord,. this being the
Matter of Fa&, we fhall call very fubftantial Wit-
nefles to prove it. As to s Fafting, we fhall prove
that he was put under the Care of very fubftanual
Perfons, and that he did not eat or drink for three
Weeks or 2 Month ; fo that it will appear we hiad no
Contrivance in the World, buc only would get
Fafe if we could.  'We have twenty Wimelles to
call.

I. C. F. Holt. Let them all be call’d.  Call as
mtay as you will,

Mr. Serj. Femier. Call dune Eaton  (Sbe ap-
peared). Do you know Richard Hatbaway ¢

Annz Eaton, Yes, Sir,

Mr. Serj. Fenner. How long have you known
him ?

e Eaton, Ever fince he came to his Mafter.

Mr. Serj. Fenier. Flow long is thae ?

/e Eaton. About five or fix Years.

M. Serj. Jemzer. Do you know what Condition
he was in two Years ago ?

Anite Eatoin. Yes.

Mr. Serj, Femmer. Then pray give my Lord and
the Jury an Account of it.

Aune Eatoir. 1 warcl’d with him feveral Nights,

Mr. Serj. Fenner, Where did you watch with
fim ¢

Anwne Eaton, At his Mafter’s Houfe.

Mr. Serj. Feiner. In what Condition was he
then ¢

Aime Eaton. He was in a very bad Condition,
he was dumb and blind, and his Senfes were gone,
and he feem’d as if he were dead ; and when his
Senfes have conte to him, he has burn’d like a
Flame of Fire.

L. C. . Ik, Yow long did you watch with
him ?

Anite Eaton. About nine Wecks.

L. C. . Holt, Did he faft all that Tune ?

e Eaton. Yes, my Lord.

L. C.¥. Holt. Might he not cat in that Time
and you not fee him ?

Auwe Eaton, §was wich him conftantly at Nights,
but not in the Day 5 I have been with him four or
five Days and Nights together, and did not fee
him eat or drink.

L.C. ¥ Holt. What Time was this that you
watch'd wich him ?

Aune Eaton, From the Time that he came from
Madam Davenport’s, till your Lordfhip confined

him,
L. C. §. Holt. Who put him to Madam Daven-

1oil’s ?

Amie Eaton, 1 had nothing to do with that.

Mr, Sery. Fenner. Can you not tell what Month
that was in ?

Aune Eaten. 1 can’t tell that,

Mr. Raymond. Did you obferve him all that Time?

Anne Eaton. When I went out, 1 left one al-
waiys in my Room.

L.C.¥. Holt. You fay you were with him four
or five Days and Nights together.

— |
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Aune Eaton, Yes, my Lord,

L. C. 7. Heit, Were you with him all Nighe
and all Day ?

Anne fatgn, My Loid, fome Days I had Ceca-
fion o go cut, but then I left fome Ncighbours
with hin.

Mr. Sexy. Fenner. Call Gibon (7o appeared),
Do you know this Man, Richard Hathaway ?

Gibfens. 1havefeen him in a deplorable Condition.

Mr, Sery. Feier When was this that you faw him?

Gibfor. About two Years ago.  His Mafter
afked me to go and fee bim, and when I came up I
faw him foaming at Mouth ; 1 thought he would
not live till Morming,  ‘The next Day his Mafter
defired me to watch with him at Night 3 and 1 dia,
and he was fo bad thar I thoughrt he would not live
tull Morning. Afrerwards I faw him again, and he
was blind and dumb, as it appear’d to ine,
Aad he had a ftrange Motion, he threw himfell for-
ward, and afterwards threw himfelf backward, as
if his Head lay in the Reins of his Back 3 and I faid
to this Woman then, I believe he has broke his
Back. I beheve this was after he came from Ma-
dam Davengort’s, about the Time that he appeared
at the Bar at 2gfliainfler,

L. C. }. Holt. 'The firlt Time that you fpeak of,
when you fay he was blind and dumb, you fay that
was two Years ago ; was he blind and dumb when
you faw him the fecond Time ?

Gibfon. Yes, the fecond Time I faw him he v as
blind and dumb. I faw him m a depiorable Con-
dition three Times,

Yuryman, We defire to know the Circumitances
of his Condition.

L.C.¥. Holt. The Jury defire to be fatished of
the Circumftances of his Condition.  You fay you
faw him two Years ago, aml he was then 1 a de-
plorable Condition, and you faw him twice after ;
the Jury would have you deferibe the Circumfiances
of it as plain as you can. |

Gibfon. His Mafter defircd me to go to him,
and I was willing to oblige him 3 and when I came
to him, lie was both blind and dumb.

L. C. 7. Holt. How long was this after you faw
him the firlt Time? ~

Gibfon. About half a Year after,

L. C. . Holt. Arc you a Neighbour ¢

Gibfsn. Yes, my Loid.

L.C. . Helt. You fay you faw him two Years
ago, and you fay he then foamed at Mouth and
Noftrils 3 was he blind and dumb then 2

Giljon. No, my Lord 5 Lut he was when I faw
himi the fecond Time.,

L. C. 7. Holr. When did you fee him after ?

Gibfon. Tt was about a Twelve-month after that

[ faw him,

L. C. ¥. Illt. And not before ?

Gibfon. He was feven Weeks in the Hofpital,

Mr. Broderick, Then you did not fee him in the
Iofpiral.

Gibfon. I did; but he went almoft double.

Mr. Brodeiick. Did you hear any thing of Mrs.
Morduck then ¢

Gibfon. No, Sir.

L. C. . I, What Trade are you ?

Gilfon. 1 am a Glazier. -

Mr. Conpers. IHave you no other Trade ?

Gibfon. Sometimes 1 work at the Cuftom-Honfe.
One Sunday we went to hear Dr. Pead, and Ricbard
Hathaway went with us,  And when we were gone
out a-Door, he could not fpeak ; and when we

came upon the Bridge, bis Fage was drawn a-w:;_y
e
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fo ftrangely that i aftonifhed me ; he ftagger’d the
Y ength of this Table, and his Face was drawn back
again, and he fetch’d a Reel' 5 but ina Qu
an Hour he fpoke, and his Speech continu’d till he
caine to Grace church-fircet, and there we met Mr.
Fex, and {o he continued till we came to Bifhopfzate :
But coming to Houndfditch, he made Motions that
his Speech was gone again,

L. C. . Holt. Did you hear him fpeak at }Veft-

minfler ¢
Gibfon. No, my Lord,
Mr, Serj. Fenner. Call Hummery (who apgeared).

Do you know this Man ?

Flymmnery. Yes, I am a Neighbour,

L. C. ¥, Holt, What 1s thy Name ¢

Flummery.  Flummers. After Guilford Aflizes
went to fee him, and he was in 2 Jamentable Con-
ditdon 3 he was like a Stock or Stone, Blind and
Domb, I went to {ec him —

L. C. }. Ihlt. Did you cver fee him before ?

Flummery. | faw hin feveral Times, but tock no
Notice of it ; Lut then his Eyes ftood wide open.

L. C. 7. Holt. And yet you fay he was blind,
How could that be ?

Flummery., My Lord, I willtell youhow 3 I
trted him, 1 wagged the Hair of his Eye-Lids, and
put the Candle to liis Eyes, and he took no Notice
of it,

L. C. 5. Hsolt. How could you know that he did
not {ce ?

Flummery, Tiried him,

L. C. 7. Helt, How did you try him ?

Flummery. 1 wied him with my Fingers, and
his Eyes would not wag,.

L. C. 7. Holt. Did he not jook then as he loolks
now ?

Flummery. No,

Mr. Broderick. Did you fpeak to him then?

Flummery, Yes, but I could not make him hear
nor aniwer me,
L. C. }. Holt. Could he fpeak then 2
Fiummery. No, may it pleafe your Lordfhip.
Anire Pearfe, {worn.

Mr. Sery. Fenner. sme Pearfe, "Pray tell my
Lord, what you know of this Réchard Halthaway.

Aune Pearfe. 1 belong to the Hofpital.  When

he came mto the Hofpital he was very bad,
L. C. J. Holt. Was he blind and dumb when he

came in ¢

Anne Pearfe.  After he was brought in he was put
to Bed, and he was taken with a Iit, and { was
call’d to hims and I came to him, and he did not
{tir much, and turn’d up his Eyes,  And afterwards
one of his Malter’s Journeymen came to him, and
he raifed him out of his Bed 3 and one came to
me and faud, Sifter, he is come to the Fire, but he
1s very bad ftill.  Says I, What did you raife him
out of his Bed for ? He went upon his Ankles al-
moft 5 he went very weakly, and continued fo for
fome Time. :

Mr. Serj. Fenner. How long was he in the Flof-
pital ¢

Ame Prarfe, About five Months,

Mz, Serp. Jenmner. Was he out, and came in
dgain ?

Anne Pearfe, Yes, he was. He complain’d he
could not go to {tool 3 and the Dofor gave him
Quitkfilver 3 and when it came from him, I heard
the Apothecary made him take it again, and fwal-

low 1t again.
Mr. Sery. Fenner. When he came in the fecond

Time, Was you thepe then ?
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Anwe Peorfe. Yes.
Mr. Sers. fenner. Elow long was he thera the

uarter of fecond Time ?

Aiie Pearfe, How lonz he was there the fecond
Time, I cannot eell,

Mr. Sery. Fenner.
in the fecond Time ?

Anne Pearfe, No,

Mr. Sery. Jeaner. What was your Opinion of him?

Anne Pearfe. T apprehended him to be in g Very
ftrange Condition ; he lay feven or cight Days, and
did not eat or drink; he had taken Ruickfilver,
and 1z did ot come fromn him, and the De@og wop.
der'd it fhould lie fo long in his Body,

Mr, Broderick, Did the Doftor or vay appre-
hend any thing of Witcheraft in the Cajee 2

dnre Pearfe. No, Sir.  But at this Time his
Eyes were fet in his Head,

Mr. Brederick, \When he was recover’d out of
thofe Fits, did he pretend that he was hewitch'd ?

Aune Pearfe, No.

L. C. 7. Holz, Did you never
that he was bewitched ?

Anne Pearfe. No, myLord, I did not hear of that.

Mr. Serj. Fenner. Call Fo. Smith (ko appeared),
Mr, Sizith, Do you know this Perfon, Richgrd
Hathaway ?

Smith, Yes, Sir,

Mr. §erg. Jemner. How long have yon Lknown
Lin ?

Smith. About five or fix Years,

Mr. Sery, Fenner. How far do you live from him?

Smith. I believe about two Stones-throw,

Mz, Serj. Fenner. Were you well acquainted
with his Condition two Years ago?

Smith, Yes, 1 have done Bufinefs for the Fami-
fy feveral Years,  About five Years ago, I found
him much affli¢ed with Convulfion Fits at his com-
ing to Liis Malter,

Mr, Sers. fenner. How was he about two Yeus
ago ?

Smith. He was in a very ftrange Cendition ;
and I adviled his Mafter to get rid of him, and to
get him 1nto the Hofpital.

Mr, Sery. Fenner, What did he ail ¢

Smith. He lay in a very ftrange Condition.

Mr, Sery, Fenner. How did he lie ?

Suith. He lay ftrugeling and ftriving often, and
fometimes like a Man that was dead 3 and once
when e lay in that Condition I Jaid Cupping-Glaffts
to him, and that enliven’d him.

L. C. ¥. Helt. What did you imagine ail’d him?
Did you think he counterfeited or not ?

Smith, Indeed, my Lord, I can't tell that.

Mr. Serj. Fenner. Why did you advife his Ma-
fter to put him into the Hofpital ?

Smith. 1 car’t eell,

Mr, Phipps. You fay you have known him five
Years, and that he has been troubled with Fits.
Did he ever talk of being bewitched till within this
two Years ¢

Smith, No, not till within this two Years.

Mr, Bar. Haifsll. When he lay feemingly dead,
you do not know whether he counterfeited or no?

Smith. No, my Lord,

Mr. Rar. Haifell, Do youthink a Man can be in
fuch a Conditton-as he feem’d to be, and yet only
counterfeit # ,

Smith. Indeed, myLord, I knownot. I examined
him whether he was fubjet to thofe Fits formerly 3
and he told me, he was very much troubled with

them in the Country,
LGC.J.

Can you tell when he Was pug

here him complain
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L. C. . Holt. You do not anfwer the Quettion.
Cannot 2 Man counterfeit in fuch a Cafe? What
do you think of that ?

Smith, Without doubt 1t may be counterfeited.,

L. C. §. Holt. You fay, when he was in thofe
Firs, you put Cupping-Glafies to him, and 1t en-
liven’d him 3 now, if he were in a real Convulifion,
do you think it would have enliven’d him ¢

Smith. Sometimes it may be fo,

Mr. Serj. Femner. Call Elizabeth Willoughby (fbe
appr’d). Mrs. Willoughby, pray give my Lord an
Account whether you know Richard Hathaway,
and what you know of him.

E. Willoughby. Sir, I have {een him fince the

Aflizes at Guilford,
Mr. Serj. Fenner. Did you never fee him before ?

E, Willoughby. Yes.

Mr. Serj. Fenner. Then give an Account of
what Condition you have feen him in.

E. Willoughby. 1 have fcen him when the Breath
came out of his Mouth like the Barking of a Dog,
I had a Child that was troubled with Fits, and I
was above Stairs, and I heard a great Noife; and [
went out of the Door to fee what was the Mareer,
and over the Hatch Iay Richard. Lord blefs me,
fays I, is it you makes this Noife? And I could
not fancy any thing, but chat it was like the Bark-
ing of a Dog.

L. C. 7. Holt. How thick was 1t? Was it not
fike other Folks?

E. Willoughby. No.,

Mr. Serj. Feaner, What ailed him ?

E. Willoughby. I cannot tell what ailed him;

L. C. . Holt. Do you think he was bzwitched ?

E. Willsughby. T believe he was, my Lord,

L. C.F. Holt. T fuppofe you have fome Skill
in Witchcraft.  Did you ever fee any body that
was bewitched before ?

E. Willoughby, My Lord, T have been under the
{ame Circumftances myfelf, when I was a Girl, in
Sir Edward Bromfield’s Time,

L.C. 7. Holt. How do you know you was
bewitel?d ?

L. Willonghby. There was a Woman taken up
upon Sufpicion for it.

L. C. }. Heit. For bewitching thee?

£, Willonghby, Yes, my Lord.

L. C. 7. Holt, Did you {craech her?

L, Willsugbhy. My Lord, I had no Power to
do any thing. I flew over them all.

L. C.F. Helt, You fay you were in the fame
Condition with this Man, and you fay you flew ;
did you faft too ?

E, Willonghby. One held me by one Arm, an-
other by the other, and another behind, and I flew
theer over their Heads.

L. C. J. Holt. Woman, can you produce any
of thefe Women that faw you fly ?

E. Willoughby. It was when I wasa Child s they
'tIl"c dead ; 1t was in old Sir Edwaid Brovificld’s

ime.

L.C. 7. Holt. 'Whit became of that Woman
that made thee to fiy ?

E. Willonghlby. 1 cannot tell, T have been well
ever fince | was married,

Mr. Serj, Fenuer. How was you cured of that
Witchery ?

E. Willoughby. How do I know ?

Mr., Conyers, Did you feratch her?

L. Willonglby, How thould 1 feratch her, when
Ulad not Power to fee her?

Mr, Conyers. And yet you helieve this Man was
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bewitched as well as you, What Condition was
this Man n? How long did he lie in this Con-
ditton ? ~

B, Willoyghby. Night and Day he has lain over
the Hatch, and over the Bed, and made a great
Noife with his Breath.

Mr, Serj. Fenner., Who did you fufpe& had done
him this Harm ?

L, Willoughby. 1 know not that,

Mr. Broderick. Are you a Widow ?

E., Willoughlby. No, Sir,

Mr. Serj. Jenner. Call Keeling (wbo appeared).
Do you know any thing concerning this Richard
Hathaway ?

Keelig. T watch’d with himh 9 Nights,

Mr. Sery. Feuner. Whar did he cat or drink all
that Time ¢

Keeling, He did neither eat nor drink, nor had
he any Stool all that Time,

L. C. 7. Hdlt. Did you watch with him g Nights
and Days ¢

Kecling. "Thers was another Man that watch’'d
with him 1n the Day; as I came out, he was. let
in; and as he came out, I wasletin, *

Mr. Serj. Fenner. How long was this before
the Trial ?

Keeling. Two or three Days before he came before
Sir Themas Lane,

Bridges fworn.

Mr. Serf. Fenner. Did you watch with Richard

Hathaway ?

Driuges. Yes.
i, Serj. Feuner. How long?
Bridges. Nine Days.
Mr. Serj. Ferner. Did you watch with him the
fame Days that he watch’d with him in the Nights?
Bridges. Yes.
Mr. Serj. Fenner. Did you not ftir from him till

he came ?

Bridges. No.

Mr. Serf. Fenner. Did you fee him eat or drink
all that Time ¢

Bridges. No.

Mr, Serf. Fenner, Where was it that you watch’d
with him ?

Bridges. In an old empty Houle.

L. C. 7. Holt. Where was this Houfe? |

Bridges. By a Dock on the Bank-fide in St. Mary
Overy’s Parifh. '

L.C.¥. Helt. How came you to put hium into
that Houfe ?
Bridges, The Mafters of the Parifh put him

In it.
My, Webb fworn.
Mr., Serj. Feurer. Mr. IVebb, did you get a Houle

to put Hathaway in

I¥ebb, Yes.

L. C. %. Holt, How came you to do fo?

I7:bb. His Mafter ufed to work for me, and he
came to me, and faid, I cannot tell what to do with
my Man, unlefs the Mafters of the Parith take fome
Care of himy and I did fpeak with fome of them
about it; and they faid, we will not-trouble the
Parifh about it, we will {pend a Crown. a-piece,
and put thefe Men into the Houfe with him.

L. C. F..I{olt. You took the Houfe then ?

Webb, We borrowed the Houfe, 1t being empty,
and put in thefe two Men, There were four or
five Neighbours more, and I faid to. hum, 'I_‘hcy
fay you vomic Pins, I will be fatisfied whether 1t be
true or no 3 and we ftript him, and could find none
about him; we fearcl’d his Shire, his Stockings,

S{f his



